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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

Owens Corning was founded in 1938. Since then thrafgainy has continued to grow as a market-leadimgviator of glass fiber technology.
Owens Corning is a world leader in composite arittlimg materials systems, delivering a broad raoigeigh-quality products and services.
Our products range from glass fiber used to reag@omposite materials for transportation, eleétsgmmarine, infrastructure, wind-energy
and other high-performance markets to insulatichraofing for residential, commercial and indudtapplications.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the tel@sens Corning,” “Company,” “we” and “our” in thigport refer to Owens Corning and its
subsidiaries. References to a particular year fea@ompany’s year commencing on January 1 anchgruai December 31 of that year.

SEGMENT OVERVIEW

We operate within two segments: Composites, whiclutdes our Reinforcements and Downstream busisgasd Building Materials, which
includes our Insulation and Roofing businesses.@mposites and Building Materials reportable segmaccounted for approximately 3t
and 64% of our total reportable segment net sedapectively, in 2011.

Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsaias information regarding net sales to externat@mers and total assets attributabl
each of Owens Corning’s reportable segments angrgpbic regions, earnings before interest and tioresach of Owens Corning’s
reportable segments, and information concerninglépendence of our reportable segments on forgigrations, for each of the years 2011,
2010 and 2009.

Composites

Owens Corning glass fiber materials can be fourml/ar 40,000 end-use applications within seven grynmarkets: power and energy,
housing, water distribution, industrial, transptid@a, consumer and aerospace/military. Such endxppécations include pipe, roofing
shingles, sporting goods, computers, telecommubpitstables, boats, aircraft, defense, automaiiekistrial containers and wind-energy.
Our products are manufactured and sold worldwide.pfimarily sell our products directly to parts eheis and fabricators. Within the
building and construction market, our Compositegrsent sells glass fiber and/or glass mat directly small number of major shingle
manufacturers, including our own Roofing business.

Our Composites segment is comprised of our Reierfoemts and Downstream businesses. Within the Rearfeents business, the Company
manufactures, fabricates and sells glass reinfagogsrin the form of fiber. Within the Downstreansimess, the Company manufactures and
sells glass fiber products in the form of fabricst, veil and other specialized products.

Demand for composites is driven by general globahemic activity and, more specifically, by theneasing replacement of traditional
materials such as aluminum, wood and steel withpamites that offer lighter weight, improved strandack of conductivity and corrosion
resistance. We estimate that over the last 15 yearaverage, annual global demand for compositenmaés grew at about 1.5 times global
GDP.

We compete with composite manufacturers worldwiteording to various industry reports and Compastyneates, our Composites
segment is a world leader in the production ofgjféser reinforcement materials. Primary methodsarfhpetition include innovation, quality,
customer service and global geographic reach. tlocammodity products, price is also a method ofetition. Significant competitors to
the Composites segment include China FiberglassL@h, Chongging Polycom International Corporatidd (CPIC), PPG Industries,
Taishan Glass Fiber Co., Ltd, and Johns Man\
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ITEM 1.  BUSINESS (continued)

Our manufacturing operations in this segment aneigdly continuous in nature, and we warehouse noficiur production prior to sale since
we operate primarily with short delivery cycles.

Building Materials
Our Building Materials reportable segment is corsguli of the following businesses:
Insulation

Our insulating products help customers conserveggnerovide improved acoustical performance addrafonvenience of installation and
use, making them a preferred insulating produchéw home construction and remodeling. These ptsdanclude thermal and acoustical
batts, loose fill insulation, foam sheathing andessories, and are sold under well-recognized bmantes and trademarks such as Owens
Corning PINK® FIBERGLAS™ Insulation. We sell our irlation products primarily to insulation installefme centers, lumberyards,
retailers and distributors in the United States @adada.

Demand for Owens Corning’s insulating productsrigeth by new residential construction, remodeling aepair activity, commercial and
industrial construction activity, increasingly sigent building codes and the growing need for gnefficiency. Sales in this business
typically follow seasonal home improvement, remadghnd renovation and new construction industtyepas. Demand for new residential
construction follows on a three-month lagged balie peak season for home construction and remmagdieliour geographic markets
generally corresponds with the second and thirenzidr quarters, and therefore, our sales levelypieally higher during the second half of
the year.

Our Insulation business competes primarily with ofanturers in the United States. According to vasiondustry reports and Company
estimates, Owens Corning is North America’s largestiucer of residential, commercial and indusiriaulation, and the second-largest
producer of extruded polystyrene foam insulatioimd®al methods of competition include innovatemd product design, service, location,
quality, price and compatibility of systems solaso Significant competitors in this business inel@krtainTeed Corporation, Johns Manv
Dow Chemical and Knauf Insulation.

Our Insulation business includes a diverse podfaiith a geographic mix of United States, CanadaaRacific, Europe and Latin America
market mix of residential, commercial, industriatleother markets, and a channel mix of retail, @tor and distribution.

Working capital practices for this business higtalty has followed a seasonal cycle. Typically, msulation plants run continuously
throughout the year. This production plan, alonthuwle seasonal nature of the business, geneealyts in higher finished goods inventory
balances in the first half of the year. Since salesease during the second half of the year, oooants receivable balances are typically
higher during this period.

Roofing

Our primary products in the Roofing business anginate and strip asphalt roofing shingles. Othedpcts include oxidized asphalt and
roofing accessories. We have been able to meefrtveing demand for longer lasting, aestheticaltyaative laminate products with modest
capital investment.

We sell shingles and roofing accessories primahiigugh home centers, lumberyards, retailers,idigtrs and contractors in the United
States and sell other asphalt products internalipanufacture residential roofing products andrexalty to other roofing manufacturers. We
also sell asphalt to roofing contractors and distiors for builtup roofing asphalt systems and to manufactureasviariety of other industrie
including automotive, chemical, rubber and condtouc
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ITEM 1.  BUSINESS (continued)

Demand for products in our Roofing business is galyedriven by both residential repair and remaughctivity and by new residential
construction. Roofing damage from strong stormssignificantly increase demand in this businessaAssult, sales in this segment do not
always follow seasonal home improvement, remodadimg) new construction industry patterns as cloaelgur Insulation business.

Our Roofing business competes primarily with maotufeers in the United States. According to varimaiistry reports and Company
estimates, Owens Corning’s Roofing business iséitend largest producer of asphalt roofing shiniglése United States. Principal methods
of competition include innovation and product desigroximity to customers and quality. Significaeimpetitors in the Roofing business
include GAF-ELK, CertainTeed Corporation and TAMKO.

Our manufacturing operations are generally contiisua nature, and we warehouse much of our proglugtiior to sale since we operate v
relatively short delivery cycles. One of the rawtemnils important to this business is sourced feosole supplier. We have a loteym supph
contract for this material, and have no reasoretiebe that any availability issues will existttiis supply was to become unavailable, our
production could be interrupted until such timdtessupplies again became available or the Compefoymulated its products. Additionally,
the supply of asphalt, another significant raw makén this segment, has been constricted at titAkough this has not caused an
interruption of our production in the past, proledgasphalt shortages would restrict our abilitprmduce products in this business.

GENERAL
Major Customers

No one customer accounted for more than 10% otonsolidated net sales for 2011. A significant iporbf the net sales in our Buildir
Materials segment is generated from large UnitedeSthome improvement retailers.

Patents and Trademarks

Owens Corning continuously works toward improvimggucts and processes. Because of this continnowsation process, patents and
trademarks play a key role in each of our busireg3e/ens Corning has numerous United States ae@ijfopatents and trademarks issued
and applied for relating to products and processeach business, resulting from research and dpwrednt efforts. Owens Corning does not
expect the expiration of existing patents and tnaahls to have a material adverse affect on thenbasias a whole.

Through continuous and extensive use of the cdlKRince 1956, Owens Corning became the first avafi@ single color trademark
registration in the United States. For over 25 ge@wens Corning has licensed from Metro-Goldwyny®&teStudios Inc. (the owner of the
Pink Panther character) the exclusive right totheePink Panther in all of our major market segmanid we make extensive use of the Pink
Panther character in the marketing of our prodifs believe our PINK trademark and the Pink Pantharacter are some of the most
widely recognized marks in the building productdustry.

We have issued royalty-bearing patent licensestapanies in several foreign countries.

Including registered trademarks for the Owens Guridgo and the color PINK, Owens Corning has axiprately 250 trademarks registered
in the United States and approximately 1,500 trad&mregistered in other countries. Owens Cornamdpproximately 400 patents in the
United States and approximately 1,300 patents dssuether countries



Table of Contents

ITEM 1.  BUSINESS (continued)

Backlog
Our customer volume commitments are generally sieon, and we do not have a significant backlogrofrs.
Research and Development

The Company’s research and development expensegdesich of the last three years is presented itatiie below (in millions):

Research and

Period Development Expens
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2011 $ 77
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2( $ 76
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2( $ 61

Environmental Control

Owens Corning is committed to complying with aleonmental laws and regulations that are applieablour operations. We are dedicated
to continuous improvement in our environmental ltheand safety performance.

We have not experienced a material adverse effeart our capital expenditures or competitive posias a result of environmental control
legislation and regulations. Operating costs assediwith environmental compliance were approxifge83 million in 2011. We continue
invest in equipment and process modifications toai@ in compliance with applicable environmentaldaand regulations worldwide.

Our manufacturing facilities are subject to numerpational, state and local environmental protedtovs and regulations. Regulatory
activities of particular importance to our operatianclude those addressing air pollution, watdlugion, waste disposal and chemical con
The most significant current regulatory activitythe United States Environmental Protection Agesioyigoing evaluation of the past air
emission and air permitting activities of the glastustry, including fiberglass insulation. We egppassage and implementation of new laws
and regulations specifically addressing climatengiea toxic air emissions, ozone forming emissiors fine particulate during the next two
five years. However, based on information knowthtoCompany, including the nature of our manufactuoperations and associated air
emissions, at this time we do not expect any cfefreew laws, regulations or activities to have tenal adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition or long-term ligiyd

We have been deemed by the United States Envirdiaihrf@rotection Agency to be a Potentially Respdedtarty (“PRP”) with respect to
certain sites under the Comprehensive Environm&w#aponse Compensation and Liability Act. We hdse been deemed a PRP under
similar state or local laws and in other instarmuéer PRPs have brought suits against us as a&RBritribution under such federal, state, or
local laws. At December 31, 2011, we had envirortaieemediation liabilities as a PRP at 20 sitegrghwe have a continuing legal
obligation to either complete remedial actionsamtdbute to the completion of remedial actionpart of a group of PRPs. For these sites we
estimate a reserve to reflect environmental libdithat have been asserted or are probable eftiass in which liabilities are probable and
reasonably estimable. At December 31, 2011, o@rvesfor such liabilities was $8 million.

Number of Employees

As of December 31, 2011 Owens Corning had appraeiima5,000 employees. Approximately 7,100 of seniployees are subject to
collective bargaining agreements. We believe thatelations with employees are go
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ITEM 1.  BUSINESS (continued)

AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION

Owens Corning makes available, free of chargeutats website the Company’s Annual Report on Fb0iK, Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendstmnthose reports as soon as reasonably praatiaétbl such material is electronically
filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exepa Commission. These documents are availabledghrthe Investor Relations page of the
Compan’s website at www.owenscorning.ca
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS AND OUR INDUSTRY

Low levels of residential or commercial constructia activity can have a material adverse impact on awbusiness and results of
operations.

A portion of our products are used in the marketgésidential and commercial construction, repatt improvement, and demand for certain
of our products is affected in part by the levehefv residential construction, although typicallgytamber of months after the change in the
level of construction. Historically, constructioatizity has been cyclical and is influenced by @iéng economic conditions, including the
level of interest rates and availability of finamgiand other factors outside our control.

Worldwide economic conditions and credit tighteningcould have a material adverse impact on the Compan

The Company’s business may be adversely impactethdéyges in United States or global economic camdif including inflation, deflation,
interest rates, availability of capital, consumgerding rates, energy availability and costs, &edeffects of governmental initiatives to
manage economic conditions. Volatility in finanamdrkets and the deterioration of national and @lelsonomic conditions could materially
adversely impact the Company’s operations, findmegults and/or liquidity including as follows:

» the financial stability of our customers or supgieay be compromised, which could result in addl bad debts for the Compe
or nor-performance by supplier

» one or more of the financial institutions syndichtmder the Credit Agreement applicable to our catechsenior revolving credit
facility may cease to be able to fulfill their fund obligations, which could adversely impact dquidity;

» it may become more costly or difficult to obtaindincing or refinance the Compi’s debt in the future
» the value of the Compa’s assets held in pension plans may decline; a
» the Compan’s assets may be impaired or subject to write dovwmribe off.

Uncertainty about global economic conditions mayseaconsumers of our products to postpone speidi@gponse to tighter credit,
negative financial news and/or declines in incomasset values. This could have a material adwergact on the demand for our products
and on our financial condition and operating resut deterioration of economic conditions woulcelikexacerbate these adverse effects and
could result in a wide-ranging and prolonged impacgeneral business conditions, thereby negatiwghacting our operations, financial
results and/or liquidity.

We face significant competition in the markets weesve and we may not be able to compete successfully

All of the markets we serve are highly competitie compete with manufacturers and distributorsh Bathin and outside the United Sta
in the sale of building products and composite potsl We also compete with other manufacturersdéstdbutors in the sale of roofing
materials, industrial asphalts, and other produotsome cases, we face competition from manufactun countries able to produce similar
products at lower costs. We also face competitiomfthe introduction by competitors of new produmtsechnologies that may address our
customers’ needs in a better manner, whether barsednsiderations of cost, usability, effectivenasstainability or other features or
benefits. If we are not able to successfully conuiadize our innovatiot
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)

efforts, we may lose market share. Price compatibioovercapacity may limit our ability to raiseqas for our products when necessary, may
force us to reduce prices and may also resultdnaed levels of demand for our products and casige lose market share. Our inability to
compete and the loss of customers and pricing pres€aused by such competition, overcapacityl@ratasons could reduce the sales of
our products, thereby adversely impacting our lessnfinancial condition and results of operations.

Our sales may fall rapidly in response to declinein demand because we do not operate under long-teraolume agreements to supply
our customers and because of customer concentratiom certain segments.

Many of our customer volume commitments are sherti therefore, we do not have a significant mactuféng backlog. As a result, we do
not have the hedge provided by long-term volumereets against downturns in customer demand armd.salrther, our costs are not
susceptible to immediate adjustment in responshdages in sales. In addition, although no singamer represents more than 10% of our
annual sales, sales of some of the products ibwilding materials product category are dependerd bmited number of customers, who
account for a significant portion of such salese Toss of key customers for these products, ogrifgiant reduction in sales to those
customers, could significantly reduce our revenndakese products. If key customers experiencentiizd pressure, they could attempt to
demand more favorable contractual terms, which dpldce additional pressure on our margins and ftasfs. Lower demand for our
products could adversely impact our business, firzicondition and results of operations.

Adverse weather conditions and the level of sevestorms could have a material adverse impact on ouesults of operations.

Weather conditions and the level of severe stomnshave a significant impact on the markets fodegial and commercial construction,
repair and improvement.

» Generally, any weather conditions that slow ortiresidential or commercial construction activigncadversely impact demand for
our products

» A portion of our annual product demand is attriblgao the repair of damage caused by severe stomrpgriods with below
average levels of severe storms, demand for swathupts could be reduce

Lower demand for our products could adversely impac business, financial condition and resultsdrations.

Our level of indebtedness could adversely impact oability to refinance such indebtedness when desd or to raise additional capital
to fund our operations and limit our ability to react to changes in the economy or our industry.

Our debt level and degree of leverage could hay®itant consequences, including the following:

» they may limit our ability to obtain additional dedr equity financing for working capital, capietpenditures, debt service
requirements, acquisitions and general corporatghar purpose:

e asubstantial portion of our cash flows from operat could be required for the payment of princigmadl interest on our
indebtedness and may not be available for othénésis purpose:

» certain of our borrowings are at variable ratemtdrest exposing us to the risk of increased astierates



Table of Contents

-8-
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)

» if due to liquidity needs we must replace any baings upon maturity, we would be exposed to thie thsit we will be unable to ¢
so as the result of market, operational or othetiofs;

» they may limit our ability to adjust to changing mket conditions and place us at a competitive diaathge compared to our
competitors that have less debt; :

* we may be vulnerable in a downturn in general endo@onditions or in our business, or we may beblm#o carry out important
capital spending

In addition, the credit agreement governing ouiaerredit facility and the indentures governing senior notes contain various covenants
that impose operating and financial restrictionsusrand/or our subsidiaries.

Our ongoing efforts to increase productivity and r@luce costs may not result in anticipated savings ioperating costs.

Our cost reduction and productivity efforts, indhgithose related to our existing operations, patida capacity expansions and new
manufacturing platforms, may not produce anticipatesults. Our ability to achieve cost savings aiier benefits within expected time
frames is subject to many estimates and assumpfitiese estimates and assumptions are subjegrificant economic, competitive and
other uncertainties, some of which are beyond outrol. If these estimates and assumptions ararec if we experience delays, or if other
unforeseen events occur, our business, financraliton and results of operations could be advgrsepacted.

We may be exposed to increases in costs of enemggterials and transportation or reductions in avaibbility of materials and
transportation, which could reduce our margins andharm our results of operations.

Our business relies heavily on certain commodadigs raw materials used in our manufacturing preeessdditionally, we spend a
significant amount on inputs and services thaifreteenced by energy prices, such as natural gashat, a large number of chemicals and
resins and transportation costs. Price increasahldse inputs could raise costs and reduce ouyinsaif we are not able to offset them by
increasing the prices of our products, improvingductivity or hedging where appropriate. Availayilof certain of the raw materials we use
has, from time to time, been limited, and our smgof some of these raw materials from a limitednier of suppliers, and in some cases a
sole supplier, increases the risk of unavailabillgspite our contractual supply agreements withymd our suppliers, it is possible that we
could experience a lack of certain raw materialgctvicould limit our ability to produce our produgctereby adversely impacting our
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our hedging activities to address energy price flucations may not be successful in offsetting increas in those costs or may reduce or
eliminate the benefits of any decreases in thosests.

In order to mitigate short-term variation in oureogting results due to commodity price fluctuatiome hedge a portion of our near-term
exposure to the cost of energy, primarily natues.drhe results of our hedging practices coulddsitige, neutral or negative in any period
depending on price changes of the hedged exposures.

Our hedging activities are not designed to mitigaitg-term commaodity price fluctuations and, theref will not protect us from long-term
commodity price increases. In addition, in the fataur hedging positions may not correlate to @twma energy costs, which would cause
acceleration in the recognition of unrealized gaind losses on our hedging positions in our opegatsults
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)

The Company’s income tax net operating loss carryfovards may be limited and our results of operationsnay be adversely impacted.

The Company has substantial deferred tax assetedeio net operating losses (NOLs) for Unitedestéederal and state income tax purpc
which are available to offset future taxable incofewever, the Company ability to utilize or realize the current carrgimalue of the NOL
may be impacted as a result of certain events, asichanges in tax legislation or insufficient fettaxable income prior to expiration of the
NOLs or annual limits imposed under Section 38thefinternal Revenue Code, or by state law, aswdtref a change in control. A change
control is generally defined as a cumulative chasfge0% or more in the ownership positions of darstockholders during a rolling three
year period. Changes in the ownership positionseahin stockholders could occur as the resultarfkstransactions by such stockhold
and/or by the issuance of stock by the Companyh 8mitations may cause the Company to pay incaamed earlier and in greater amounts
than would be the case if the NOLs were not suligestich limitations.

Should the Company determine that it is likely it@tecorded NOL benefits are not realizable,Gloenpany would be required to reduce the
NOL tax benefit reflected on its financial statertseto the net realizable amount either by a diagpistment to the NOL tax benefit or
establishing a valuation reserve and recordinggesponding charge to current earnings. The cooretipg charge to current earnings would
have an adverse effect on the Company’s finanoiadlition and results of operations in the periodfhich it is recorded. Conversely, if the
Company is required to increase its NOL tax bergdfiter by a direct adjustment or reversing anyiporof the accounting valuation against
its deferred tax assets related to its NOLs, suetlitto current earnings could have a positive@fbn the Compang’financial condition an
results of operations in the period in which itésorded.

Our operations require substantial capital, leadingto high levels of fixed costs that will be incurrd regardless of our level of business
activity.

Our businesses are capital intensive, and reguleglyire capital expenditures to expand operatior@sntain equipment, increase operating
efficiency and comply with environmental laws, lewsgto high fixed costs, including depreciation erpe. Also, increased regulatory focus
could lead to higher costs in the future. We argtéd in our ability to reduce fixed costs quickiyresponse to reduced demand for our
products and these fixed costs may not be fullpdded, resulting in higher average unit costs ameéf gross margins if we are not able to
offset this higher unit cost with price increaséternatively, we may be limited in our ability tpuickly respond to unanticipated increased
demand for our products, which could result inrsability to satisfy demand for our products andsloEmarket share.

We may be subject to liability under and may make gbstantial future expenditures to comply with envionmental laws and
regulations.

Our manufacturing facilities are subject to numerfareign, federal, state and local laws and remura relating to the presence of hazardous
materials, pollution and the protection of the esmment, including those governing emissions tpdifcharges to water, use, storage and
transport of hazardous materials, storage, tredtarehdisposal of waste, remediation of contamihattes and protection of worker health
and safety.

Liability under these laws involves inherent unagtties. Violations of environmental, health antesalaws are subject to civil, and, in some
cases, criminal sanctions. As a result of thesemainties, we may incur unexpected interruptiansgerations, fines, penalties or other
reductions in income which could adversely impasthusiness, financial condition and results ofrapens. Continued and increased
government and public emphasis on environmentaksss expected to result in increased future invests for environmental controls at
ongoing operations, which will be charged againsbime from future operations. Present and ft
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)

environmental laws and regulations applicable tooperations, and changes in their interpretatiogly require substantial capital
expenditures or may require or cause us to modifyudail our operations, which may have a matextblerse impact on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to risks associated with our internttonal operations.

We sell products and operate plants throughouvibréd. Our international sales and operations abgest to risks and uncertainties,
including:

e possible government legislatic

» difficulties and costs associated with complyinghna wide variety of complex laws, treaties andutations;
» unexpected changes in regulatory environme

e economic and political condition

» taxrate change:

» tax inefficiencies and currency exchange contiwds may adversely impact our ability to repatrizdash from non-United States
subsidiaries

» the imposition of tariffs or other import or expoestrictions

e costs and availability of shipping and transpootat

* nationalization of properties by foreign governnseiatnd

e currency exchange rate fluctuations between théedr8tates dollar and foreign currenc

As we continue to expand our business globallymag have difficulty anticipating and effectively neging these and other risks that our
international operations may face, which may adlgrsnpact our business outside the United Statdsoar financial condition and results
operations.

If our efforts in acquiring and integrating other businesses, establishing joint ventures or expandiraur production capacity are not
successful, our business may not grow.

We may face difficulties associated with growing business through acquisitions, joint venturetherexpansion of our production capacity.
Our ability to grow our business through these gtweents depends upon our ability to identify, negetand finance suitable arrangement
we cannot successfully execute on our investmeantstamely basis, we may be unable to generatécgirif revenue to offset acquisition,
integration or expansion costs, we may incur ciosgxcess of what we anticipate, and our expectatad future results of operations,
including cost savings and synergies, may not béeeged. Acquisitions, joint ventures and productiapacity expansions involve substantial
risks, including:

» unforeseen difficulties in operations, technolog@®educts, services, accounting and persol

» diversion of financial and management resources &gisting operation:
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* unforeseen difficulties related to entering geobiapegions or markets where we do not have pripedence
» risks relating to obtaining sufficient equity orddinancing;

e potential loss of key employees; ¢

» potential loss of customet

Our failure to address these risks or other problentountered in connection with our past or futwguisitions and investments could cause
us to fail to realize the anticipated benefits wéls acquisitions or investments, incur unanticigdibilities, and harm our business generally.
Future acquisitions and investments could alsdtr@sdilutive issuances of our equity securitig incurrence of debt, contingent liabilities,
or amortization expenses, or write-offs of goodvahy of which could harm our financial conditigdso, the anticipated benefits of our
investments may not materialize.

Our intellectual property rights may not provide meaningful commercial protection for our products or brands, which could adversely
impact our business.

Owens Corning relies on its proprietary intelletfur@perty, including numerous registered tradersaals well as its licensed intellectual
property. We monitor and protect against activitiest might infringe, dilute, or otherwise harm @atents, trademarks and other intellectual
property and rely on the patent, trademark andrdéves of the United States and other countriesvéi@r, we may be unable to prevent third
parties from using our intellectual property withour authorization. To the extent we cannot priodec intellectual property, unauthorized
use and misuse of our intellectual property coaldrhour competitive position and have a materiskagk impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. In additidve kws of some non-United States jurisdictioniol®less protection for our proprietary
rights than the laws of the United States. If wewamable to maintain certain exclusive licensespoand recognition could be adversely
impacted.

We could face potential product liability claims, we may not accurately estimate costs related to suchaims, and we may not have
sufficient insurance coverage available to cover pduct liability claims.

Our products are used and have been used in avaitty of residential and commercial applicationg face an inherent business risk of
exposure to product liability or other claims ir thvent our products are alleged to be defectithairthe use of our products is alleged to
have resulted in harm to others or to property.ridég in the future incur liability if product liality lawsuits against us are successful.
Moreover, any such lawsuits, whether or not sudagsould result in adverse publicity to us, whiobuld cause our sales to decline.

In addition, consistent with industry practice, previde warranties on many of our products and &g experience costs of warranty or
breach of contract claims if our products have cksfen manufacture or design or they do not meetractual specifications. We estimate our
future warranty costs based on historical trendsmoduct sales, but we may fail to accuratelynesste those costs and thereby fail to
establish adequate warranty reserves for them. @ietain insurance coverage to protect us againstyat liability claims, but that coverage
may not be adequate to cover all claims that mig @r we may not be able to maintain adequateanse coverage in the future at an
acceptable cost. Any liability not covered by iremure or that exceeds our established reserves gwmiktially and adversely impact our
financial condition and results of operatio
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We are subject to litigation in the ordinary courseof business and uninsured judgments or a rise imgurance premiums may adversel
impact our results of operations.

In the ordinary course of business, we are sulijeearious claims and litigation. Any such claimdether with or without merit, could be
time consuming and expensive to defend and cowktidnanagement’s attention and resources. In daoge with customary practice, we
maintain insurance against some, but not all, e$¢hpotential claims. We may elect not to obtasaiance if we believe that the cost of
available insurance is excessive relative to thlesrpresented. The levels of insurance we maintai not be adequate to fully cover any and
all losses or liabilities. Further, we may not ldeao maintain insurance at commercially acceptppémium levels or at all. If any significi
accident, judgment, claim or other event is ndyfirlsured or indemnified against, it could haveaterial adverse impact on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Vdarot assure that the outcome of all current arréulitigation will not have a material
adverse impact on the Company and its results efadions.

We depend on our senior management team and othekitled and experienced personnel to operate our biursess effectively, and the
loss of any of these individuals could adversely ipact our business and our future financial conditio or results of operations.

We are highly dependent on the skills and expeei@iour senior management team and other skilddeaiperienced personnel. These
individuals possess sales, marketing, manufactulagistical, financial, business strategy and adstiative skills that are important to the
operation of our business. The loss of any of tliedi@iduals or an inability to attract, retain amdintain additional personnel could prevent
us from implementing our business strategy anddcadirersely impact our business and our futurenfied condition or results of operations.
We cannot assure that we will be able to retaiofatiur existing senior management personnel atttact additional qualified personnel
when needed.

Increases in the cost of labor, union organizing diwity, labor disputes and work stoppages at our failities could delay or impede our
production, reduce sales of our products and increse our costs.

The costs of labor are generally increasing, indlgdhe costs of employee benefit plans. We argestibo the risk that strikes or other types
of conflicts with personnel may arise or that weyrhacome the subject of union organizing activitgdditional facilities. In particular,
renewal of collective bargaining agreements tyfbydalvolves negotiation, with the potential for vkastoppages or increased costs at affected
facilities.

Downgrades of our credit ratings could adversely irpact us.

Our credit ratings are important to our cost ofidpThe major debt rating agencies routinely aaté our debt based on a number of factors,
which include financial strength as well as tramepay with rating agencies and timeliness of finalhneporting. A downgrade in our debt
rating could result in increased interest and o#fx@enses on our existing variable interest ral¢, @md could result in increased interest and
other financing expenses on future borrowings. Dgrades in our debt rating could also restrict maesas to capital markets and affect the
value and marketability of our outstanding notes.

We will not be insured against all potential losseand could be seriously harmed by natural disastersatastrophes or sabotage.

Many of our business activities involve substartiabestments in manufacturing facilities and mangduoicts are produced at a limited nun
of locations. These facilities could be materiglmaged by natural disasters such as floods, tospadrricanes and earthquakes or by
sabotage. We could incur uninsured losses andifiab
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arising from such events, including damage to eputation, and/or suffer material losses in openati capacity, which could have a material
adverse impact on our business, financial condgiod results of operations.

RISKS RELATED TO OWNERSHIP OF OUR COMMON STOCK
The market price of our common stock is subject toolatility.

The market price of our common stock could be siltewide fluctuations in response to numerousofa; many of which are beyond our
control. These factors include actual or anticigataeriations in our operational results and cagw flour earnings relative to our competition,
changes in financial estimates by securities atalymding volume, sales by holders of large artahour common stock, short selling,
market conditions within the industries in which agerate, seasonality of our business operatibegyeneral state of the securities markets
and the market for stocks of companies in our itrgugovernmental legislation or regulation andreacy and exchange rate fluctuations, as
well as general economic and market conditions) siscrecessions.

We are a holding company with no operations of ouown and depend on our subsidiaries for cash.

We are a holding company and most of our assetseddeby our direct and indirect subsidiaries amdwill primarily rely on dividends and
other payments or distributions from our subsi@iatio meet our debt service and other obligatiods@ enable us to pay dividends. The
ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or reakther payments or distributions to us will dependheir respective operating results and
may be restricted by, among other things, the lafitheir jurisdiction of organization (which mayriit the amount of funds available for the
payment of dividends or other payments), agreenwdritsose subsidiaries, agreements with any cositove in non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries, the terms of our credit facility amhior notes and the covenants of any future owtsig indebtedness we or our subsidiaries
may incur.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificatef incorporation and bylaws or Delaware law might dscourage, delay or prevent a
change in control of our company or changes in oumanagement and therefore depress the trading pricef our common stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamadind bylaws contain provisions that could deptiesdrading price of our common stock
through provisions that may discourage, delay ev@nt a change in control of our company or chaingesr management that our
stockholders may deem advantageous.

Additionally, we are subject to Section 203 of Belaware General Corporation Law, which generalbhfbits a Delaware corporation from
engaging in any of a broad range of business caatibims with any “interested” stockholder for a pérbf three years following the date on
which the stockholder became an “interested” stolddr and which may discourage, delay or prevanitamge in control of our company.

We may pay no cash dividends on our common stock.

The payment of any future cash dividends to ourldtolders will depend on decisions that will be még our Board of Directors and will
depend on then existing conditions, including querating results, financial conditions, contractesirictions, corporate law restrictions,
capital agreements, applicable laws of the Staf@etdware and business prospects. We may pay hoddadends for the foreseeable future.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Owens Corning has nothing to report under this I
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Composites

Our Composites segment operates out of 33 manuiiagtiacilities. Principal manufacturing facilitiésr our Composites segment, all of
which are owned by us except the Ibaraki, Japaiitfaevhich is leased, include the following:

Amarillo, Texas
Anderson, South Carolir
Besana, Ital

Chambery, Franc

Gous, Russii

Hangzhou, Zhejiang, Chir
Ibaraki, Japal

Building Materials

Jackson, Tenness
Kimchon, Koree
L’ Ardoise, Franci
Rio Claro, Brazil
Tlaxcala, Mexicc
Yuhang, Ching
Taloja, India

Our Building Materials segment operates out of Bhuafacturing facilities, primarily in North Americahese facilities are summarized be

by each of the businesses within our Building Matsrsegment.

Our Insulation business operates out of 29 manurfiaagt facilities. Principal manufacturing facilisdor our Insulation business, all of which

are owned, include the following:

Delmar, New York
Edmonton, Alberta, Canac
Fairburn, Georgi
Guangzhou, Guandong, Chi
Kansas City, Kanse

Mexico City, Mexico

Newark, Ohic

Rockford, lllinois

Santa Clara, Californi
Tallmadge, Ohic
Toronto, Ontario, Canac
Waxahachie, Texe

Our Roofing business operates out of 28 manufamUecilities. Principal manufacturing facilitiesrfour Roofing business, all of which are

owned by us, include the following:

Atlanta, Georgit
Compton, Californie
Denver, Colorad:
Irving, Texas
Jacksonville, Floridi

Kearny, New Jerse
Medina, Ohic
Portland, Orego
Savannah, Georg
Summit, Illinois

We believe that these properties are in good caamd#ind well maintained, and are suitable and aalegio carry on our business. The
capacity of each plant varies depending upon pritoahirc

Our principal executive offices are located in @eens Corning World Headquarters, Toledo, Ohi@aséd facility of approximately
400,000 square feet.

Our research and development activities are prignasinducted at our Science and Technology Celtteated on approximately 500 acres of
land owned by us outside of Granville, Ohio. It sists of approximately 20 structures totaling mtian 650,000 square feet. In addition, we
have application development and other productraaket focused research and development centeesiwus locations
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ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company has nothing to report under this item.

ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable

-15-
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF OWENS CORNING

The name, age and business experience during shéyemyears of Owens Corning’s executive officessof February 15, 2012 are set forth
below. Each executive officer holds office unti$ lir her successor is elected and qualified ot kistior her earlier resignation, retirement or
removal. All those listed have been employees oé@nCorning during the past five years except disated.

Name and Agt
John W. Christy (53)

Charles E. Dana (56)

Arnaud Genis (47)

David L. Johns (53)

Mark W. Mayer (54)

Duncan J. Palmer (46)

Daniel T. Smith (46)

Michael H. Thaman (47)

Position*
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segrsitace December 2011; formerly Vice
President, Interim General Counsel and Secret@¥y1(2 Vice President Deputy General
Counsel (2010); and Vice President and Assistane€éx Counsel, Transactions and
Business

Group President, Building Materials since Decenft&0; formerly Group President,
Composite Solutions (2008) and Vice President aedifent, Composite Solutions
Business

Group President, Composite Solutions since Dece@®H0; formerly Vice President and
Managing Director, European Composite Solutionsifiass (2007), President of Saint-
Gobain Reinforcement and Composites Business axiidd 8olutions Business, Par

Senior Vice President and Chief Information TecbgglOfficer since December 2009;
formerly Senior Vice President and Chief Supply i@tend Information Technology
Officer.

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer sinoecBmber 2007; formerly Vice President
Corporate Accounting and External Reporti

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offidace September 2007; formerly Vice-
President, Upstream Commercial Finance for Shedrivational Exploration and Production
BV (2007) and Vice-President Finance Global Lubmtsgor the Royal Dutch Shell Group
of Companies

Senior Vice President, Human Resources since Septe2d09; formerly Executive Vice
President/Chief Administrative Officer, Borders @pp Inc. (2009), Executive Vice
President, Human Resources, Borders Group

President and Chief Executive Officer since Decean2B€7 and also Chairman of the Board
since April 2002; formerly also Chief Financial @#r until September 2007. Director since
January 200z

* Information in parentheses indicates year duthgpast five years in which service in positiogdre The last item listed for each
individual represents the position held by suchviddial at the beginning of the five year peri
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ITEMS5. MARKET FOR OWENS CORNING’S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Owens Corning’s common stock trades on the New Y&tdck Exchange under the symbol “OC.” The follogvtable sets forth the high and
low sales prices per share of Owens Corning comstaek for each quarter from January 1, 2010 thrddgbember 31, 2011:

Period High Low

First Quarter 2010 $26.8¢ $22.5¢
Second Quarter 201 $37.3¢ $25.5¢
Third Quarter 201 $32.8¢ $23.0¢8
Fourth Quarter 201 $31.5¢ $25.5¢
First Quarter 201 $37.7(C $30.3¢
Second Quarter 201 $38.81 $33.2¢
Third Quarter 201 $38.9¢ $21.57
Fourth Quarter 201 $31.2¢ $18.67

Holders of Common Stock
The number of stockholders of record of Owens Gmyisicommon stock on January 31, 2012 was 447.
Cash Dividends

Owens Corning did not pay cash dividends on itsrmomstock during the two most recent years. Thengay of any future cash dividends
our stockholders will depend on decisions that b&llmade by our Board of Directors and will dependhen existing conditions, including
our operating results, financial condition, contuat restrictions, corporate law restrictions, talpiequirements, the applicable laws of the
State of Delaware and business prospects. AlthougBoard of Directors is expected to consider ftone to time the payment of quarterly
cash dividends, there can be no assurance weayilapy cash dividend, or if declared, the amourstuch cash dividend.

As a consequence of certain provisions of the Caryigasenior notes and senior credit facilities, @@mpany and its subsidiaries are subject
to certain restrictions on their ability to pay idiends and to transfer cash and other assets hootfaer and to their affiliates.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Reeds from Registered Securities

Owens Corning has nothing to report under this I
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ITEMS5. MARKET FOR OWENS CORNING 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES (continued)

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information about Owe®orning’s purchases of its common stock durimgthinee months ended December 31,
2011

Maximum Number
(or Approximate
Dollar Value) of

Total Number of Shares (or Units) tha

Total Number of Shares (or Units)

Average Price Purchased as Part ¢ May Yet Be
Shares (or Units Paid per Share Purchased Under the
Publicly Announced

Period Purchased (or Unit) Plans or Programs** Plans or Programs**
October 1-31, 2011 3,563¢ $ 22.1( — 3,661,29
November -30, 201: 92 23.6( — 3,661,29
December -31, 2011 2,68¢ 29.0¢ — 3,661,29

Total 6,315 $ 25.0¢ —

*  The Company retained 6,315 shares surrendersadtigfy tax withholding obligations in connectioitiwthe vesting of restricted shares
granted to our employee

** On August 4, 2010, the Company announced a shayeback program under which the Company is aighdro repurchase up to
10 million shares of Owens Corning’s outstandinomn stock. Under the buyack program, shares may be repurchased througt
market, privately negotiated, or other transactidiee timing and actual number of shares repurchadlédepend on market conditions
and other factors and will be at the Com(’s discretion



Table of Contents

-19-
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Statement of Earnings (Loss) Data

Net sales

Gross margir

Marketing and administrative expen:

Earnings from continuing operations before inteeest taxe:

Interest expense, n

Income tax expense (benel

Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic

Earnings from discontinued operations

Net earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Cori

Amounts attributable to Owens Corning common stockblders:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, netaad
Discontinued operations, net of t

Net earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Cort

Basic earnings (loss) per common share attributable Owens
Corning common stockholders
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati

Basic earnings (loss) per common st

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share attributale to Owens
Corning common stockholders
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati

Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh

Weighted-average common shares
Basic
Diluted
Balance Sheet Dat:
Total asset
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Total equity

No dividends were declared or paid for any of theqals presented abo\

Twelve Twelve Twelve Twelve Twelve
Months Months Months Months Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31
2011 2010 (a 2009 (b 2008 (c 2007 (d
(in millions, except per share amounts

$ 5,33¢ $ 4,99 $ 4,80: $ 5,847 $ 4,97¢
$ 1,02¢ $ 95€ $ 84¢ $ 927 $ 77¢€
$ 52t $ 51€ $ 52z $ 617 $ 49¢
$ 461 $ 20€ $ 19z $ 234 $ 144
$ 10¢€ $ 11C $ 111 $ 11¢ $ 122
$ 74 $ (840 $ 14 $ 0931 $ 8)
$ 281 $ 94C $ 67 $ (81)) $ 29
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ 69
$ 27¢ $ 93: $ 64 $ (819 $ 95
$ 27¢ $ 93: $ 64 $ (819 $ 26

— — — — 69
$ 27¢ $ 93: $ 64 $ (813 $ 95
$ 2.2t $ 7.4: $ 0.51 $ (6.39) $ 0.2

— — — — 0.5¢
$ 2.2t $ 7.4: $ 0.51 $ (6.39) $ 0.7
$ 2.2¢ $ 7.37 $ 0.5¢C $ (6.39) $ 0.2

— — — — 0.5¢
$ 2.2¢ $ 7.37 $ 0.5C $ (6.39) $ 0.7

1225 125.¢ 124.¢ 127.¢ 128.¢

123.5 126.€ 127.1 127.¢ 129.(
$ 7,521 $ 7,15¢ $ 7,161 $ 7,22 $ 7,851
$ 1,93( $ 1,62¢ $ 2,17 $ 2,17: $ 1,99:¢
$ 3,741 $ 3,68¢ $ 2,85: $ 2,78( $ 4,00/
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (continued)

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(€)

During 2010, the Company recorded impairmeat@bs of $117 million, $40 million of charges retito cost reduction actions and
related items (comprised of $29 million of severnosts and $11 million of other costs), and clag§e&13 million of integration cos
related to the acquisition of Se-Gobair's reinforcement and composite fabrics busines®07 32007 Acquisitior”).

During 2009, the Company recorded $53 millidiclrarges related to cost reduction actions aratedlitems (comprised of $34 million
of severance costs, and $19 million of other castdysive of $13 million of accelerated depreaa), charges of $33 million of
integration costs related to the 2007 Acquisitamd $29 million for charges related to our emploge®rgence equity progra

During 2008, the Company recorded $85 milliéimeegration costs related to the 2007 Acquisitfireluding charges of $10 million to
impair assets related to the divestiture in 2008vaf composite manufacturing plants (“2008 Divesst)), $26 million of expenses
related to our employee emergence equity progr@miflion in expenses related to leases of cepadtious metals used in production
tooling, $7 million for charges related to costuetion actions and a gain of $48 million relatedhe sale of certain precious metals
used in production tooling

During 2007, the Company recorded $54 million foarges related to cost reduction actions and keitgens (comprised of $28 millic
of charges related to severance and $26 milliastioér costs, which is inclusive of $21 million afcelerated depreciation), charges of
$101 million of integration and transaction cogtlated to the 2007 Acquisition (including $60 naifiiof charges to impair assets rele
to the 2008 Divestiture and charges of $12 millielated to the impact of inventory write-up) and $8illion of expenses related to our
employee emergence equity progr:

Discontinued operations consist of the Compafjding Solutions business and Fabwel unit, whiehe both sold during the third
quarter of 2007
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&#Ag)intended to help the reader understand Oweni@gr our operations and our
present business environment. MD&A is provided as@plement t— and should be read in conjunction with — our Giigated Financial
Statements and the accompanying Notes theretoinenta this report. Unless the context requirdsestvise, the terms “Owens Corning,”
“Company,” “we” and “our” in this report refer to Ovens Corning.

GENERAL

Owens Corning is a leading global producer of gfdmss reinforcements and other materials for cosilgs and of residential and commercial
building materials. The Company’s business opematfall within two reportable segments, Composied Building Materials. Composites
includes our Reinforcements and Downstream busase8iilding Materials includes our Insulation d@abfing businesses. Through these
lines of business, we manufacture and sell product&lwide. We maintain leading market positionsriany of our major product categori

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

In 2011, we generated $461 million in earnings befoterest and taxes (“EBIT”), which were 21 patdeigher than adjusted EBIT in 2010
of $381 million. All of our businesses contributedthe increase in EBIT. The improvement was dribgincreased sales volumes, favorable
manufacturing productivity and pricing strategiegplemented to offset, or minimize, the impact dfation. Net earnings attributable to
Owens Corning in 2011 were $276 million compare®383 million in 2010. In 2010, net earnings atitdble to Owens Corning were driv
by the reversal of a valuation allowance againghaeof the Company’s United States deferred &psets. See below for further information
regarding adjusted EBIT, including the reconcitiatto net earnings attributable to Owens Corning.

In our Composites segment, EBIT improved by 15 @erérom $175 million in 2010 to $201 million in 20. Despite a challenging global
market, our Composites segment continued to perforimproved price and lower costs achieved thranghufacturing productivity.

In our Building Materials segment, EBIT improved b¥ percent from $281 million in 2010 to $332 naifliin 2011. Our Roofing business
delivered 2011 EBIT of $429 million on favorable muéacturing productivity. Strong growth in shinglemand supported by higher than
normal storm activity was offset by the impactmffation on unit margins. Roofing delivered EBIT mgims of 20 percent. Our Insulation
business reduced EBIT losses primarily as a re$uticreased sales volumes, particularly in thesddalf, despite continuing low deman
the United States housing market.

We maintain a strong balance sheet with amplediguiWe have access to an $800 million senior Ikémg credit facility and a $250 million
receivables securitization facility. We amendedgésior revolving credit facility on July 27, 20fd.extend maturity to July 2016. The
receivables securitization facility was amendedecember 16, 2011 to extend the commitments dfitlaacial institutions to December
2014. We have no other significant debt maturitiefore 2016.

We repurchased 4 million shares of the Compsiegimmon stock for $128 million in 2011 under avasly announced repurchase progr
As of December 31, 2011, 3.7 million shares renaa@ilable for repurchase under the authorized jarogc
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(continued)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Results (in millions)

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net sales $5,33¢ $4,991 $4,80:
Gross margir $1,02¢ $ 95€ $ 84¢

% of net sale: 19% 19% 18%

Charges related to cost reduction acti $ — $ 29 $ 3H
Employee emergence equity program expt $ — $ — $ 29
Earnings before interest and ta: $ 461 $ 20¢€ $ 192
Interest expense, n $ 10¢ $ 11C $ 111
Income tax expense (benet $ 74 $ (840) $ 14
Net earnings attributable to Owens Corn $ 27¢€ $ 93¢ $ 64

The Consolidated Results discussion below provédesmmary of our results and the trends affecturgoasiness, and should be read in
conjunction with the more detailed Segment Reglittsussion that follows.

NET SALES

2011 Compared to 201(Net sales increased seven percent in 2011 asazenho 2010 driven by increased sales volumebehigales
prices, and the favorable impact of translatingsalenominated in foreign currencies into UniteteSt dollars. These increases were par
offset by the impact of the December 2010 divestitef our United States Masonry Products businedgtze May 2011 divestiture of our
glass reinforcements facility in Capivari, Bra#ll of our businesses delivered increased salesmeb with our Roofing business delivering
significant increased volumes based on strong ddreapported by storm activity.

2010 Compared to 2009Net sales increased in 2010 as compared to 20@8ndby higher net sales in our Composites segnTéms increas
was partially offset by lower net sales acrossBuifding Materials segment as a result of overabkness within these markets.

GROSS MARGIN

2011 Compared to 2010Gross margin as a percentage of sales remaiakeith 2011 as compared to 2010. Improved unit margi our
Composites business and the favorable impact ofliwestiture of the United States Masonry Prodbatsiness in December 2010 were of
by unit margin declines in our Roofing businessr Raofing business delivered EBIT margins of 2C0cpet in 2011.

2010 Compared to 2009Gross margin as a percentage of sales improv2@lf as compared to 2009. This improvement wasgpiiy the
result of gross margin improvements in our Compasiitusiness. The increase in gross margin pereentag tempered by margin declines in
our Roofing business. Despite this decline, ourfRgdusiness still delivered EBIT margins in exxe$ 20 percent for the year.
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CHARGES RELATED TO COST REDUCTION ACTIONS

2011 Compared to 2010There were no charges related to cost reductitares in 2011. During 2010, as part of our revigvour
Composites manufacturing network we took actiorfsitther balance global capacity and respond tdketaronditions.

2010 Compared to 2009Charges related to cost reduction actions wexeiddn 2010 compared to 2009. During 2010, as @leotur
continuing review of our manufacturing network, twek actions to further balance global capacity mspond to market conditions.

EMPLOYEE EMERGENCE EQUITY PROGRAM EXPENSE

2010 Compared to 2009n 2006, we established a one-time employee eemesyequity program. The cost of this program wasrtized
over a vesting period of three years beginning awénber 2006. The cost related to this programfulsamortized by the end of 2009.

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES

2011 Compared to 2010n addition to the items noted above, we recogphia $17 million charge during 2011 as a resuévafuating
ongoing market conditions in our Insulation busgeés 2010, we recognized an $11 million chargateel to actions we took to balance our
global Composites capacity. These impacts wererdedoas cost of sales.

In addition, we recorded a $16 million gain in M2@11 related to the divestiture of our glass ratéments facility in Capivari, Brazil. In
December of 2010 we recognized charges of $124omitelated to the divestiture of our United Sta#ssonry Products business and other
indefinite-lived asset impairment charges. Theggaitis were recorded as other expenses (incomie¢ i@dnsolidated Statements of
Earnings.

2010 Compared to 2009n addition to the items noted above, the yearegrear improvement in EBIT was impacted by the sdlMasonry
Products, which resulted in total charges of $11#lam, and other indefinite lived asset impairmehgarges of $10 million in 2010 which w
recorded as other expenses (income) in the ComgetidStatements of Earnings.

INTEREST EXPENSE, NET

2011 Compared to 20I0nterest expense was lower in 2011 than in 2Q#9td higher interest income and the favorable ohphthe
interest rate swap, of which two-thirds was offsghigher average borrowing rates and increaseaWwaorg levels.

2010 Compared to 20Q9nterest expense was generally flat between 2002009.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense for 2011 was $74 million compémea tax benefit of $840 million in 2010. The RG&x benefit was the result of
reversing $937 million of valuation allowance priiharelated to the Company’s United States fedaral state deferred tax assets.

The company’s effective tax rate for 2011 was 2t@at. The difference between the 21 percent é¥fetax rate and the statutory rate of 35
percent is primarily attributable to the favoralsigoact of various tax planning strategies, loweeign tax rates and the benefit of a favorable
settlement of a long-standing claim with the Uni&dtes Internal Revenue Service.
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Income tax benefit for 2010 was $840 million. Thedme tax benefit was the result of reversing $88lion of the valuation allowance
primarily related to the Company’s United Statedefal and state deferred tax assets. The valualimwance was originally established in
2008 based primarily on negative evidence of thm@any’s losses before income taxes in the UnitateStduring 2007 and 2008. Other
negative evidence considered at the time was timep@oy’s then estimates for ndarm results in the United States. Financial pentorce ir
the United States during that time period was asbigrimpacted by the decline in United States haystarts. Since that time, earnings
performance in our United States operations hasgthened and has resulted in positive cumulativeiregs in recent years as of June 30,
2010, which was the primary evidence used in deéteng to reverse the valuation allowance in theoselcquarter. Other positive evidence
considered was the Company’s forecast, which inegcthe Company’s positive earnings trend will ¢org in the long-term.

After removing the effect of valuation allowancesidg 2010, the effective tax rate was 69%. Thédiince between the 69% effective tax
rate and the statutory tax rate of 35% is primaattyibutable to increases in global tax reservebthe impact of the goodwill impairment.

our cash taxes and tax provision related to og@rinational operations.

Income tax expense for 2009 was $14 million. THeedince between the effective tax rate in 2009#86 and the statutory tax rate of 35% is
primarily attributable to the increased level ofreags in the United States, in which there istreddy little income tax expense due to the
valuation allowance against the United States dedetax assets. Also contributing to the loweraffe tax rate are the various tax planning
initiatives implemented in 2007 and 2008, whichénaignificantly reduced our cash taxes and taxipiamv related to our international
operations. Offsetting the reductions were increagé¢he valuation allowance related to our inteomal operations and increases in other tax
reserves.

Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Taxes“(Adjusted EBIT ")

Adjusted EBIT excludes certain items that managerdees not allocate to our segment results bedabséieves they are not a result of the
Company’s current operations. Additionally, managetiviews net precious metal lease expense asuaciimg item included in net interest
expense rather than as a product cost includedsinat sales. Adjusted EBIT is used internally by €Company for various purposes,
including reporting results of operations to theaBbof Directors of the Company, analysis of perfance and related employee
compensation measures. Although management belieaethese adjustments result in a measure tbaidas it a useful representation of
our operational performance, the adjusted measun@ld not be considered in isolation or as a stulistfor net earnings attributable to Ow
Corning as prepared in accordance with accountiimgiples generally accepted in the United States.

Adjusting items are shown in the table below (itlions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
Net precious metal lease expe! $ — $ 2 $ —
Charges related to cost reduction actions andeckligéms — (40 (53
Acquisition integration and transaction cc — (13 (33
Gains (losses) on sales of assets and relatedest — (120 1)
Employee emergence equity program expt — — (29

Total adjusting item $ — $ (175 $ (11€)
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The reconciliation from net earnings attributallédwens Corning to Adjusted EBIT is shown in theléebelow (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2011 2010 2009

NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNINC $ 27¢ $ 93¢ $ 64
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrollintgiests 5 7 3

NET EARNINGS 281 94( 67

Equity in net earnings of affiliate 2 4 —
Income tax expense (benel 74 (840) 14
EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES 35z 96 81
Interest expense, n 10€ 11C 111
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXE: 461 20€ 192
Less: adjusting items from abo — (17%) (116
ADJUSTED EBIT $ 461 $ 381 $ 30¢

Segment Results

EBIT by segment consists of net sales less reladsts and expenses and is presented on a basis tisad internally for evaluating segment
performance. Certain items, such as general cagergenses or income and certain other experiseane items, are excluded from the
internal evaluation of segment performance. Acamlyi, these items are not reflected in EBIT for oeportable segments and are included in
the Corporate, Other and Eliminations categorycWiis presented following the discussion of ouorégble segments.

Composites
The table below provides a summary of net sale$T BRd depreciation and amortization expense forGamposites segment (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
Net sales $1,97¢ $1,90¢ $1,63¢
% change from prior yez 4% 17% -31%
EBIT $ 201 $ 17F $ (33
EBIT as a % of net salt 10% 9% -2%
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 12¢ $ 117 $ 117

NET SALES

2011 Compared to 201(Net sales in our Composites business were $7amHigher in 2011 than in 2010. Higher sellingcps and the
favorable impact of translating sales denominatefbiieign currencies into United States dollarstébated equally to the increase in net
sales. Partially offsetting these increases irsats was approximately $30 million in lower saes result of the May 2011 divestiture of
glass reinforcements facility in Capivari, Brafin a year-over-year basis sales volumes increasgtbbal glass reinforcements market
growth of four percent, which was partially offést unfavorable mix
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2010 Compared to 200 ubstantially all of the increase in net sales die to higher sales volumes as global demandiredrin 2010.
Increases in selling prices also improved net dalethe year. The upward trend in selling pridesttbegan in the fourth quarter 2008
continued during the fourth quarter 2010. As altesalling prices for all markets within our Reanfements business at the end of 2010 were
approaching levels seen prior to the 2008 globahemic downturn.

EBIT

2011 Compared to 20LCEBIT in our Composites segment was $26 millioghteir in 2011 than in 2010 primarily driven by loveaists
achieved through manufacturing productivity. Highelling prices more than offset inflation in mékand energy costs and together this
contributed about one-third to the increase in EBIlIly offsetting this benefit was the unfavorabiteact of our divestiture of our glass
reinforcements facility in Capivari, Brazil.

2010 Compared to 20Q%EBIT in our Composites segment was $208 milligghler in 2010 than in 2009. More than three-foudhthe
improvement was driven by higher sales volumeduding the impact of improved utilization of ourggluction capacity. As a result of
improvements in demand and actions we took durd@p2our capacity utilization at the end of 201G waline with the high levels seen in
the first three quarters of 2008. Higher sellinggs accounted for the remainder of the increases& improvements resulted in Composites
achieving 12 percent EBIT margin for the fourth geaof 2010.

OUTLOOK

Global glass reinforcements market demand has gomwawverage with global industrial production arellvelieve this relationship will
continue. In 2011, global glass reinforcements miagdlemand grew approximately four percent whidlightly below our longerm expecte
growth rate of five to seven percent driven by wesses in Europe, which we expect to continuedfi®. We believe market conditions in
2011 contributed to higher manufacturer inventemnels heading into 2012. In light of these neamteconomic factors, we initiated actions
in 2012 to improve the competitive position of @lwbal Composites manufacturing network and to cedwur inventory during 2012. These
actions include closing or optimizing certain faiEk in Europe and other actions that align witin objectives in the region to be more
competitive. In conjunction with these actions, andicipate incurring approximately $130 milliongharges in 2012 and early 2013, with
approximately one-half in cash charges to be pa@t 2012 and 2013.

Our previously announced capacity expansions irslRasand Mexico will be completed and operationatite end of 2012, these low-cost
facilities will contribute to our global network ase enter 2013.
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Building Materials

The table below provides a summary of net sale$T BRd depreciation and amortization expense (itiang) for the Building Materials
segment and our businesses within this segmef010, changes were made to reflect the sale of Mgderoducts. Prior period amounts
have been recast to reflect the inclusion of thes@taction Services and Building Materials Europsibesses within Insulation. Other
primarily consists of Masonry Products.

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009

Net sales

Insulation $1,36¢ $1,30¢ $1,32¢

Roofing 2,16¢ 1,847 1,89¢

Other — 87 92
Total Building Materials $3,53i $3,24: $3,31¢

% change from prior yez 9% -2% -9%

EBIT

Insulation $ (97 $ (102) $ (96)

Roofing 42¢ 40¢ 53C

Other — (22) (33
Total Building Materials $ 332 $ 281 $ 401

EBIT as a % of net sale 9% 9% 12%

Depreciation and amortization expenst

Insulation $ 11¢€ $ 117 $ 122

Roofing 41 42 42

Other — 9 10
Total Building Materials $ 157 $ 16€ $ 174
NET SALES

2011 Compared to 201(Net sales in our Building Materials segment w284 million higher in 2011 than in 2010, primarilye to higher
sales volumes in both our Roofing and Insulatiositesses. Offsetting this increase was the loggto$ales from the December 2010
divestiture of our United States Masonry Producisiiess.

In our Roofing business, 2011 net sales were uR $3fion from 2010. More than twthirds of the increase in net sales was drivenigldr
sales volumes. Increases in selling prices and&e product mix contributed equally to the rendainof the increase in net sales. Sales
volumes increased as a result of greater overatedistates shingle demand supported by above hatoran activity. Selling prices were
slightly higher on a year-over-year basis.

In our Insulation business, 2011 net sales wer@S@million from 2010. Substantially all of the iease in net sales was driven by higher
sales volumes. Our experience shows that our netsidénsulation demand lags United States houstags by approximately three months.
Lagged United States housing starts were down &vogmt for 2011. Strength in our United Stateslratal contractor channels and growth
in some of our international markets in 2011 aspamrd to 2010 offset the impact of the declineggked United States housing starts. In
addition, the increase in net sales from our JOl12acquisitions of two FiberTEK facilities was s#f by unfavorable customer m
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2010 Compared to 200Net sales in our Building Materials segment wereger in 2010, primarily due to lower net sale®irmr Roofing
business.

In our Roofing business, 2010 net sales were ddightly from 2009. Nearly all of the decrease irt sales for 2010 as compared to the same
period 2009 was due to lower sales volumes. Weakinenarket demand that began in the second qu201dr persisted throughout the
remainder of the year. Selling prices for our rongfshingle products were down slightly in 2010 @spared to 2009. However, this was
offset by increases in selling prices to our exdkasphalt customers. Selling prices of our roofingducts have been relatively stable since
the fourth quarter 2008, with some fluctuation ¢esato quarter.

In our Insulation business, net sales were relgtiseable year-over-year. Higher selling pricesd #me impact of foreign currency translation,
were offset by lower sales volumes. Our Insulabagsiness includes a diverse portfolio with a geplgi@mix of United States, Canada, Asia-
Pacific and Latin America, a market mix of residalpitommercial, industrial and other markets, ardhannel mix of retail, contractor and
distribution. The lower sales volumes in 2010 wanigen by the absence of demand from the 2009 Aligtr stimulus and broad weakness in
our end markets, predominantly in our retail chdsne

EBIT

2011 Compared to 202CEBIT in our Building Materials segment was $51liom higher in 2011 as compared to 2010 primadiifiven by
higher sales volumes within the Roofing businessraanufacturing productivity in our Insulation bhusss. Also, contributing to this increase
was the favorable impact of our divestiture of thgted States Masonry Products business in Dece&i.

In our Roofing business, EBIT was $24 million highe2011 than in 2010. Favorable manufacturingdpmivity drove all of the
improvement in EBIT. For the full year, increaseselling prices were more than offset by inflafipimarily asphalt. This net margin imp
offset nearly all of the benefit of higher saleséuwoes.

In our Insulation business, we reduced EBIT logse$5 million in 2011 as compared to 2010. Highades volumes drove substantially all of
the improvement in EBIT. Favorable manufacturingdarctivity offset raw material and delivery inflati. In addition, the launch of
EcoTouch™ was completed during 2011.

2010 Compared to 200 ubstantially all of the decrease in EBIT durihg year is the result of lower profitability withthe Roofing
business.

In our Roofing business, unit margins were lowes thuhigher raw material costs, particularly asplaaid slightly lower selling prices. This
accounted for more than three-fourths of the yeargear decrease in EBIT. During 2010, the busineproved EBIT due to manufacturing
productivity improvements, primarily in materialstdake out. However, these gains were more thigetdby lower volumes that resulted
from market weakness that began in the secondequ201.0.

In our Insulation business, EBIT was relativelyt flm2010 compared to 2009. Higher selling priced favorable product mix increased EBIT
by more than $40 million from 2009. This impact vedfset by lower sales volumes, including undeizdiion of our production capacity, a
material inflation.
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OUTLOOK

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Seasonaftiyusted Annual Rate (“SAAR”) of United States hagsstarts rose to approximately
655,000 starts versus an annual average in 20afpprbximately 600,000 starts. While the recentrimfation on United States housing starts
has been positive, the timing and pace of recogktlie United States housing market remains unicerta

In our Roofing business, we expect that the fadtuas have sustained margins in recent years wiltinue to drive profitability. Uncertaintie
that may impact our Roofing margins include contpetipricing pressure and the cost and availabiftyaw materials, particularly asphalt.

In our Insulation business, we believe the geogcapinoduct, and channel mix of our portfolio mayntinue to moderate the impact of
sustained demand-driven weakness associated withdJ8tates new construction. Should the recovenew construction be sooner and
faster than anticipated, we are prepared to resfmimtreased demand by bringing additional pradactapacity back on-line.

Corporate, Other and Eliminations

The table below provides a summary of EBIT and éeption and amortization expense for the Corpofateer and Eliminations category
(in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net precious metal lease expe! $ — $ 2 $ —
Charges related to cost reduction actions andeckigédms a7 (40 (53
Acquisition integration and transaction cc — (13 (33
Gains (losses) on sales of assets and relatedad 16 (120 (@)}
Employee emergence equity program expt — — (29)
General corporate exper (77) (75) (60)
EBIT $ (72 $ (250 $ (176
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 33 $ 35 $ 34
EBIT

2011 Compared to 2010n Corporate, Other and Eliminations, 2011 EBi$des were $178 million lower than in 2010. We réed a $16
million gain on the May 2011 divestiture of our ggareinforcements facility in Capivari, Brazil. ecember 2010 we recorded $124 million
in charges related to the divestiture of our Uniséates Masonry Products business and the impatrof@ther indefinite-lived intangible
assets. The 2011 charges related to cost redwti@mns and related items were the result of etialganarket conditions in our Insulation
business. In 2010, we took charges associatedawitbns to balance our global Composites capagityuisition integration and transaction
costs were lower in 2011 than in 2010 as integnatiork associated with the 2007 Acquisition was ptated in 2010.

General corporate expense was favorably impactegppyoximately $10 million reduction in incentiverapensation expense and a similarly
sized improvement related to foreign currency gaims losses in 201
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compared to 2010. A portion of incentive compermsais dependent upon our stock price relative ¢égpirformance of the components of the
S&P 500 Index, which can drive significant changes year-over-year basis. Offsetting these imprmrdgs was approximately $10 million
increase in non-service pension costs and netaaeeein other corporate expenses.

In 2012, we expect general corporate expense tw gr@approximately $110 to $120 million. The primalrivers of this increase are incent
compensation expense of and an increase in norcegrension costs.

2010 Compared to 200During 2010 we recorded $124 million in chargelated to the sale of Masonry Products and the inmgat of

other indefinite lived intangible assets. See Niogand 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statememtiteims included in gains (losses) on sal
assets and related items. Acquisition integratimhtaansaction costs were lower in 2010 than 2@0@tagration work associated with the
2007 Acquisition was completed. Our employee emergequity was fully amortized in 2009. See Notéadlthe Consolidated Financial
Statements for charges related to cost reductitorescand related items. General corporate expms2)10 was driven by increased foreign
currency transaction losses and other general catgpexpenses.

SAFETY

As of December 31, 2011, we celebrated our tentisecutive year of safety improvements. Our contirfeeus to be a world-class leader in
safety, has resulted in a 90 percent reductioreicoRlable Incidence Rate (“RIRS)nce 2001. Working safely is a condition of empi@ant a
Owens Corning. We believe this organization-widpextation provides for a safer work environmentdimployees, improves our
manufacturing processes, reduces our costs andiedhaur reputation. Furthermore, striving to lveodd-class leader in safety provides a
platform for all employees to understand and apipdyresolve necessary to be a high-performing,ajlotganization. We measure our
progress on safety based on RIR as defined by tiitedJStates Department of Labor, Bureau of LahkatiSics. Our full year performance
improved 27% in 2011 over our performance in 2010.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND OTHER RELATED MATT ERS

Liquidity

We have an $800 million senior revolving creditifiscand a $250 million receivables securitizati@eility, which serve as our primary
sources of liquidity. We amended the credit fagitih July 27, 2011 to extend maturity to July 200 amended the securitization facility
December 16, 2011 to extend maturity to Decembgd 20/e have no other significant debt maturitiefle2016. As of December 31, 20

the receivables securitization facility was fuliylimed and we had $622 million available on thaiserevolving credit facility. As of
December 31, 2011, we had $2.0 billion of totaltdeidl cash-on-hand of $52 million.

We expect our cash on hand, coupled with futurl 8asvs from operations and other available sounfdijuidity, including our senior
revolving credit facility, will provide ample liqdity to allow us to meet our cash requirements. @icipated uses of cash include capital
expenditures, working capital needs, pension doutions, meeting financial obligations and reduangstanding amounts under the senior
credit facility and the securitization facility. Weave an outstanding share repurchase authorizatidnvill evaluate and consider
repurchasing shares of our common stock as welirategic acquisitions, divestitures, joint ventuaad other transactions to create
stockholder value and enhance financial performaBuaeh transactions may require cash expenditugsna current sources of liquidity or
generate proceec
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We are closely monitoring the economic environnienthe potential impact of changes in the opetptionditions of our customers on our
operating results. To date, changes in the opgratinditions of our customers have not had a natadverse impact on our operating
results; however, it is possible that we could elguee material losses in the future if currentrexnic conditions continue or worsen.

The credit agreement applicable to our senior kerglcredit facility and the receivables securiti@aa facility contain various covenants that
we believe are usual and customary for agreeméilssatype. The senior revolving credit facilitpéthe securitization facility each includ
maximum allowed leverage ratio and a minimum regfliinterest expense coverage ratio. We were wilimeompliance with these
covenants as of December 31, 2011.

Cash flows

The following table presents a summary of our dadhnce, cash flows, and unused committed crewis|{in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
Cash balance $ 52 $ 52 $ 564
Cash provided by operating activiti $ 28¢ $ 48¢ $ 541
Cash used for investing activiti $ (445 $ (249 $ (204
Cash provided by (used for) financing activit $ 174 $ (750 $ @19
Unused committed credit line $ 627 $ 73¢ $ 94¢

Operating activitiesin 2011, we generated $289 million of cash fromrapeg activities compared to $488 million in 20Tbe decrease in
cash from operations was due primarily to increas@gorking capital and higher pension contribusioihe increase in working capital is
primarily related to higher inventory in both ouod&ing and Composites businesses. Partially offgethese decreases in cash generated
from operating activities was $36 million of prodsedue to terminating our interest rate swaps dutie fourth quarter of 2011.

Investing activitiesThe increase in cash used for investing activitied)11 compared to 2010 was primarily the resitdulitional capital
expenditures of $442 million in 2011 compared t@4&illion in 2010. In 2011, we spent $128 milliovore in additions to plant and
equipment than in 2010 primarily to support capgtgbansions in our Composites business. We spdninfiBon for the acquisitions of two
FiberTEK facilities. Partially offsetting these ss&f cash were $55 million of proceeds from theesgfiture of our Composites glass
reinforcements facility in Capivari, Brazil.

Financing activities Cash provided by financing activities in 2011 wag4 million compared to cash used for financingvitets of $750
million in 2010. In 2011, cash provided by finangiactivities was primarily a result of borrowingssupport our increased working capital
requirements and our investing activities. Offsegftihese increases in cash provided by financitigitkes were share repurchases. In 2010,
cash used for financing was primarily due to thEagenent of our $600 million senior term loan of ehha significant portion was funded by
cash on hand.

2012 Investments

Capital ExpendituresThe Company will continue a balanced approachéaie of its cash flow. Operational cash flow Wwélused to fund
the Compan’s growth and innovation. Capital expenditures ih28re expecte



Table of Contents

-32-
ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(continued)

to be higher than depreciation and amortizatiore Tohmpany will also continue to evaluate projecid acquisitions that provide
opportunities for growth in our businesses, an@#n them when they meet our strategic and fiishoateria.

Tax Net Operating Losses

Upon emergence and subsequent distribution of mgatit stock and cash in January 2007, we genesaigphificant United States federal -
net operating loss of approximately $3.0 billiors éf December 31, 2011, our federal tax net opggdtisses remaining were $2.3 billion.
Our net operating losses are subject to the limitatimposed under section 382 of the Internal RegeCode. These limits are triggered w

a change in control occurs, and are computed bgsen several variable factors including the shaieepf the Company’s common stock on
the date of the change in control. A change inrobit generally defined as a cumulative chang®0d86 or more in the ownership positions
certain stockholders during a rolling three yeaiquk Our initial three year period for measuringavnership change started at October 31,
2006.

In addition to the United States net operatingdestescribed above, we have net operating lossesious state and foreign jurisdictions,
which totaled $3.3 billion and $633 million as oé@mber 31, 2011, respectively. Our ability toizgithese net operating losses may be
limited as a result of certain events, such asfiicgent future taxable income prior to expiratiohthe net operating losses or changes in tax
legislation. Should we determine that it is likéyat our recorded net operating loss benefits ategalizable, we would be required to reduce
the net operating loss tax benefits reflected anGansolidated Financial Statements to the neizaale amount by establishing an accour
valuation allowance and recording a correspondirayg@e to current earnings. To date, we have redordkiation allowances against certain
of these deferred tax asse
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Pension contributions

The Company has several defined benefit pensiarsplehe Company made cash contributions of $11lfomi&nd $32 million to the plans
during the twelve months ended December 31, 20112840, respectively. The increased pension cartabs in 2011 were driven by rect
trends in interest rates, which increase pensiotribwutions required to maintain our funded stafitsee Company expects to contribute $74
million in cash to its pension plans during 2012tual contributions to the plans may change asualtref a variety of factors, including
changes in laws that impact funding requiremente dltimate cash flow impact to the Company, if,afythe pension plan liability and the
timing of any such impact will depend on numeroasgables, including future changes in actuarialagsions, legislative changes to pens
funding laws, and market conditions.

Derivatives

To mitigate some of the near-term volatility in @arnings and cash flows, we use financial andrdivie instruments to hedge certain
exposures, principally currency- and energy-rela@ua current hedging practice is to hedge a végipbrcentage of certain energy and
energy-related exposures. Our policy is to hedg® uib percent of our total forecasted naturaleggmsures for the next two months, up to
50 percent for the following four months, and lessmounts for the remaining periods. We currendlyehhedged a portion of our exposures
for the next 15 months. Going forward, the resofteur hedging practice could be positive, neutrahegative in any period depending on
price changes in the hedged exposures, and willttiemitigate near-term volatility in the exposuhegiged. The practice is neither intended
nor expected to mitigate longer term exposures.

Our current practice is to manage our interesteaposure by balancing the mixture of our fixed sadable rate instruments. We utilize,
among other strategies, interest rate swaps t@eeliis balance in interest rate exposures. Tamereurrently no derivatives outstanding
which are related to balancing our fixed and vdeahte instruments.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has entered into limited off balan@eshrrangements, as defined under Securities xefthBge Commission rules, in the
ordinary course of business. These arrangemeritgma limited amount of unrecorded contingent payynhobligations under acquisition
purchase agreements and divestiture agreementh ateémot material. The Company does not beliegsetlarrangements will have a mat
effect on the Company'’s financial condition, chamgefinancial condition, revenues or expensesyltesf operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resourc
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Compangreiiito contractual obligations to make cash pays® third parties. The Company’s
known contractual obligations as of December 31,128re as follows (in millions):

Payments due by period

2017 anc

201z 201 2014 201t 2016 Beyond Total

Long-term debt obligations $ 1 1 $15¢ $ 4 $ 787 $ 905 $1,85f
Interest on fixed rate de 11€ 11€ 11€ 11€ 112 867 1,44:
Interest on variable rate debt | 6 4 5 4 3 1 23
Capital lease obligatior 3 3 3 3 4 39 55
Operating lease obligatiol 49 38 30 18 12 52 19¢
Purchase obligations (: 14¢ 46 29 27 21 71 34z
Pension contributions (: 74 76 83 81 75 73 462
Total (4) $397 $284 $42t $25¢ $1,014 $ 2,006 $4,37¢

(1) Interest on variable rate debt is calculatddgithe weighted-average interest rate in effeafd3ecember 31, 2011 for all future

periods.

(2) Purchase obligations are commitments to suggpl@purchase goods or services, and includedalpay arrangements, capital
expenditures, and contractual commitments to pseleguipment. We did not include ordinary courseusiness purchase orders in

this amount as the majority of such purchase ongheng be canceled and are reflected in historicatang cash flow trends. We do not

believe such purchase orders will adversely affectiquidity position.

(3) The 2012 pension contributions are based omatds the Company currently projects contributimnsur pension plans will be. For
other years presented, contributions representthenum amount that the company is required to réloute to the plan

(4) The Company has not included its accountingufarertainty in income taxes liability in the catdtual obligation table as the timing of

payment, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated.bBtance of this liability at December 31, 2015%84 million.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caaditind results of operations is based upon ous@afated Financial Statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted in the United Statbe freparation of these financial

statements requires management to make estimatessanmptions that affect the reported amountss#ta and liabilities and the disclosure

of contingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements and the reported amafresvenues and expenses during the
reporting period. On an ongoing basis, managemaitates its estimates and judgments related sethssets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. We believe these estimates to be redsamaler the circumstances. Management basediitsagss and judgments on historical
experience, expected future outcomes, and on \adther factors that are believed to be reasonatzler the circumstances, the results of

which form the basis for making judgments aboutdheying values of assets and liabilities thatreoereadily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estima
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We believe that the following accounting estimatesscritical to our financial results:

Tax Estimates The determination of our tax provision is comptiese to operations in several tax jurisdictionsmlé the United States. We
apply a more-likely-than-not recognition threshfidall tax uncertainties. Such uncertainties idel@any claims by the Internal Revenue
Service for income taxes, interest, and penaltie#atable to audits of open tax years.

In addition, we record a valuation allowance touaalour deferred tax assets to the amount thaelievi is more likely than not to be
realized. We estimate future taxable income ancktfeet of tax planning strategies in our consitlereof whether deferred tax assets will
more likely than not be realized. In the event vexemto determine that we would not be able tozealil or part of our net deferred tax assets
in the future, an adjustment to reduce the netroeddax assets would be charged to earnings ipdhied such determination was made.
Conversely, if we were to determine that we wowddhble to realize our net deferred tax assetseirfiufure in excess of their currently
recorded amount, an adjustment to increase theefietred tax assets would be credited to earnmgsei period such determination was
made.

Impairment of Asse. The Company exercises judgment in evaluatingta$éseimpairment. Goodwill and other indefinitedid intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually, or vdirenmstances arise which indicate there may benpairment. Long-lived assets are tested
for impairment when economic conditions or managgrdecisions indicate an impairment may exist. €hests require comparing recorded
values to estimated fair values for the assetsumrdéew.

The Company has recorded its goodwill and condutetstihg for potential goodwill impairment at a ogfing unit level. Our reporting units
represent a business for which discrete finanofakination is available and segment managementadgueviews the operating results.
There are nine reporting units within the Compamigty over 90% of the goodwill recorded in two refiiog units within the Building
Materials operating segment.

We elected to early adopt the Financial AccounSitandards Board’s Accounting Standards Update Bibl1-D8 which allows a company to
perform qualitative testing prior to the two-stegpairment testing. See Note 1 to the Consolidatedr€ial Statement for further discussion.
Gooduwill tests require assessing qualitative factordetermine that a reporting unit’s carryinguealvould be more-likely-than-not to exceed
its fair value. In the event we were to determimag &a reporting unit’s carrying value would be mbkely-than not to exceed its fair value,
guantitative testing would be performed comparegprded values to estimated fair values.

As part of our goodwill qualitative testing proces® evaluate various factors to determine whettisreasonably likely that management'’s
assessment would indicate a material impact ofeih@alue of a reporting unit. Factors assessdtiémualitative approach are cash flow
forecasts of our reporting units, the strengthuwflmalance sheet, changes in strategic outlookgamizational structure, industry and market
changes and macroeconomic indicators. The cashfflmeasts of the reporting units are based upamagement’s long-term view of our
markets and are the forecasts that are used byrseanagement and the Board of Directors to evalopérating performance. The strength
of our balance sheet is sufficient in our view teanour obligations. Management changes in stataglook or organizational structure are
our view on internally driven strategic or orgariaaal changes that would have a material impacutoresults of operations or product
offerings. Industry and market changes are our \iewhanges outside of our company that would havaterial impact to our results of
operations or product offerings. Macroeconomicdatbrs are our view of economic conditions that Mdwave a material impact on future
cash flow forecasts. For the testing performeddhl? we concluded that there were no reasonaldyylithanges that would materially imp
the fair value of a reporting unit. However, chamgestrategic outlook by management on the besbiithe company’s asset portfolio or
decreases in the Company’s long-term view for dmyuo reporting units could increase the likelihafdecognizing an impairment charge in
the future.
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Our annual test of goodwill for impairment was coaigd as of October 1, 2011, which concluded thaeporting units were more-likely-
than-not to having a carrying value in excessofdtr value, and thus, no impairment charges besngired.

Generally, when performing goodwill quantitativetiag, fair values are estimated using a discoucdsth flow approach unless
circumstances indicate that a better estimateiofédue is available. Significant estimates in tliecounted cash flow approach are cash flow
forecasts of our reporting units, the discount,rtite terminal business value and the projectedhigctax rate. The cash flow forecasts of the
reporting units are based upon management’s lamg-teew of our markets and are the forecasts tteatiaed by senior management and the
Board of Directors to evaluate operating perfornegafithe discount rate utilized is management’s egérof what the market’'s weighted
average cost of capital is for a company with alaindebt rating and stock volatility, as measuogdeta. The projected income tax rates
utilized are the cash tax rates that a prospebtiyer would most likely factor into a fair valud@aation for each reporting unit. Key factors
considered are the statutory rate for the countviesre each reporting unit operates and the impiéatien of a reasonable level of income
planning strategies. The terminal business valgetsrmined by applying a business growth factahéolatest year for which a forecast
exists. As part of our goodwill quantitative tegtiprocess, we would evaluate whether there aremehty likely changes to management'’s
estimates that would have a material impact onehelts of the goodwill impairment testing.

For the testing performed in 2011, we assessedtafirgd factors and we concluded that there areeasonably likely changes that would
materially impact the fair value of a reporting tusmd thus, no quantitative testing being requikmlivever, changes in strategic outlook by
management on the best use of the company’s amg&ilip or decreases in the Company’s long-terewfor any of our reporting units
could increase the likelihood of recognizing an &nment charge in the future.

Other indefinite-lived intangible assets are thenpany’s trademarks. Fair values used in testingédential impairment of our trademarks
are calculated by applying an estimated marketevedyalty rate to the forecasted revenues of tisénesgses that utilize those assets. The
assumed cash flows from this calculation are digtaliusing the Company’s weighted average costjuital.

Fair values for long-lived asset testing are calmd by estimating the undiscounted cash flows fitoenuse and ultimate disposition of the
asset or by estimating the amount that a willingdtparty would pay. For impairment testing, lotggd assets are grouped at the lowest level
for which identifiable cash flows are largely in@eplent of the cash flows of other groups of asmedsliabilities. We group long-lived assets
based on manufacturing facilities that produce Isingroducts either globally or within a geograpiggion. Management tests asset groups
for potential impairment whenever events or chanmgesrcumstances indicate that the carrying vahasy not be recoverable. Current market
conditions have caused the Company to have idlecigp We consider such idled capacity to be uninggiabecause there has not been a
significant change in the forecasted long-term dhshs at the asset group level to indicate thatdhrrying values may not be recoverable.
While management’s current strategy is to utilizie tapacity to meet expected future demand, amjfsiant decrease in this expectation or
change in management’s strategy could result uréumpairment charges related to this excess dgp¥i¢e evaluated and concluded that
there are not any reasonably likely changes to gemant’s estimates that would indicate that theyoay value of our long-lived assets is
unrecoverable.

In addition, changes in management intentions, atartinditions, operating performance and otherlamsircumstances could affect the
assumptions used in these impairment tests. Chamdgles assumptions could result in impairment gearthat could be material to our
Consolidated Financial Statements in any giverogleri

Pensions and Other Postretirement Bent. Accounting for pensions and other postretirenfi@mefits involves estimating the cost of ben
to be provided well into the future and attributth@t cost over the time peri
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each employee works. To accomplish this, extensseeis made of assumptions about investment retdistount rates, inflation, mortality,
turnover, and medical costs. Changes in assumptieed could result in a material impact to our @tidated Financial Statements in any
given period.

Two key assumptions that could have a significargact on the measurement of pension liability aglsppn expense are the discount rate
and the expected return on plan assets. For aggdaiplan, the United States plan, the discouatuséd for the December 31, 2011
measurement date was derived by matching projdetedfit payments to bond yields obtained from thevd@rs Watson’s proprietary United
States RATE:Link 40-90 pension discount curve dagyetl as of the measurement date. The Towers Whlisited States RATE:Link 40-90
pension discount curve is based on certain corpdrands rated Aa whose weighted average yieldgitien the 40h to 90 percentiles of th
bonds considered. Corporate bonds are treatedras Aa or better generally if at least half of theilable ratings are Aa or better as
determined by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, Fitch &aiminion Bond Rating Services. The result supgbaeliscount rate of 4.60% at
December 31, 2011 compared to 5.30% at Decemb&03D, The discount rate used for the Decembe?@lQ measurement date was
derived by matching projected benefit paymentsotadbyields obtained from the Citigroup Above MedRension Discount Curve as of that
date. The Citigroup Above Median Pension Discoumve€ is a yield curve developed by Citigroup andased on corporate bonds rated
AA+, AA or AA- by Standard & Poor’s or Aal, Aa2 é&a3 by Moody’s. A 25 basis point increase (decrpasthe discount rate would
decrease (increase) the December 31, 2011 projbetefit obligation for the United States pensitanp by approximately $35 million. A -
basis point increase (decrease) in the discouatwvatild decrease (increase) 2012 net periodic pemsist by approximately $3 million.

The expected return on plan assets in the UnitatdStvas derived by taking into consideration énget plan asset allocation, historical rates
of return on those assets, projected future atast ceturns and net outperformance of the markattive investment managers. We use the
target plan asset allocation because we rebalarrgeootfolio to target on a quarterly basis. Anedggturn model was used to develop an
expected range of returns on plan investments @2 year period, with the expected rate of resafacted from a best estimate range within
the total range of projected results. This procesaslted in the selection of an expected return26% at the December 31, 2011
measurement date, which is used to determine mediepension cost for the year 2012. This assionps 0.50% and 0.75% lower than the
7.75% return selected at the December 31, 2018 @036 return selected at the December 31, 2009uraasnt dates, respectively. A 25
basis point increase (decrease) in return on Eaeata assumption would result in a respective dser@ncrease) of 2012 net periodic pension
cost by approximately $2 million.

The discount rate for our United States postretinginplan was selected using the same method astobtor the pension plan. The result
supported a discount rate of 4.35% at Decembe2(@®1l] compared to 5.05% at December 31, 2010. Aa8 Ipoint increase (decrease) ir
discount rate would decrease (increase) the USitates postretirement benefit obligation by apprately $5 million and decrease (incree
2012 net periodic postretirement benefit cost Isg kaan $1 million.

The methods corresponding to those described anevesed to determine the discount rate and expeetiegrn on assets for nahS. pensio
and postretirement plans, to the extent applicable.

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@dssued authoritative guidance on the presentati comprehensive income requiring
companies to present the total of comprehensivenie; the components of net income, and the comp®éther comprehensive income

either in a single continuous statement of comprsive income or in two separate but consecutivierstants. This guidance eliminates the

option to present components of other comprehensomme as part of the Consolidated Statementsomk&older’
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Equity. There are no changes to the componentsathatcognized in net income or other compreherissome under current accounting
guidance. The amendments in this update are tppeed retrospectively and are effective for fisgahrs, and interim periods within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The Cagnpalieves there will be no material impact ondtmnsolidated Financial Statemer

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stashsi&oard issued updated guidance on the periostingeof goodwill for impairment. Tk
updated guidance gives companies the option t@pera qualitative assessment to determine whetligemore likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carryamgount and, thus, whether further impairmentigsit necessary. The updated accounting
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginningabecember 15, 2011, with early adoption permitighe Company elected to early adopt
this guidance for impairment testing effective floe fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. The amlopfithis authoritative guidance had no
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

We have been deemed by the United States Envirdiair@rotection Agency to be a Potentially Respdeditarty (“PRP”) with respect to
certain sites under the Comprehensive Environmé&tdgaponse Compensation and Liability Act. We hdse been deemed a PRP under
similar state or local laws and in other instarmutber PRPs have brought suits against us as a@&RBrftribution under such federal, state, or
local laws. At December 31, 2011, we had envirortaleemediation liabilities as a PRP at 20 sitegmghwe have a continuing legal
obligation to either complete remedial actionsantabute to the completion of remedial actionpag of a group of PRPs. For these sites we
estimate a reserve to reflect environmental linedithat have been asserted or are probable eftass in which liabilities are probable and
reasonably estimable. At December 31, 2011, oervesfor such liabilities was $8 million.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STA TEMENTS

Our disclosures and analysis in this report, inclgdvlanagemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &®esults of Operatior
contain forward-looking statements within the megndf Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 &wtttion 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statemenés@nt our current forecasts and estimates of feugats. These statements do not
strictly relate to historical or current resultslazan be identified by words such as “anticipateglieve,” “estimate,” “expect,” “i

intend,”
“likely,” “may,” “plan,” “project,” “strategy,” “will” and other terms of similar meaning or importdonnection with any discussion of future

operating, financial or other performance. Thesw#&od-looking statements are subject to risks, ttaggies and other factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from #hpsojected in the statements. These risks, uniegetmand other factors include, without
limitation:

» economic and political conditions, including newgitdation or other governmental actio

» levels of residential and commercial constructiotivity;

e competitive factors

» pricing factors

« weather conditions

» our level of indebtednes

* industry and economic conditions that affect thekagand operating conditions of our customerspBers or lenders
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e availability and cost of raw materia

» availability and cost of credi

* interest rate movement

» issues related to expansion of our production dgp:

» issues related to acquisitions, divestitures amd jentures
» our ability to utilize our net operating loss cdaryvards;

» achievement of expected synergies, cost reductind&r productivity improvement
* issues involving implementation of new businesdesys;

» foreign exchange fluctuation

» research and development activiti

» difficulties in managing production capacity; €

» labor disputes

All forward-looking statements in this report shibble considered in the context of the risk andrdidetors described above and as detailed
from time to time in the Company’s Securities angliange Commission filings. Any forward-lookingtstaents speak only as of the date
the statement is made and we undertake no obligtdiapdate or revise any forward-looking statemenhether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. It is possible to identify all of the risks, uncertaist@nd other factors that may affect future
results. In light of these risks and uncertaintiee,forward-looking events and circumstances dised in this report may not occur and actual
results could differ materially from those antidigd or implied in the forward-looking statementgcArdingly, users of this report are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on the fatvi@oking statements.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company is exposed to the impact of chang&séign currency exchange rates, interest rateghangrices of various commodities ut

in the normal course of business. To mitigate sofitee near-term volatility in our earnings anditllews, the Company manages certain of
our exposures through the use of certain finarmdatracts, contracts for physical delivery of atipatar commodity, and derivative financial
instruments. The Company’s objective with thes#rimsents is to reduce exposure to fluctuationsaimiags and cash flows. The Company’s
policy enables the use of foreign currency, intera® and commodity derivative financial instrungeanly to the extent necessary to manage
exposures as described above. The Company doesiteotinto such transactions for trading purposes.

A discussion of the Company’s accounting policiesderivative financial instruments, as well as @@mpany’s exposure to market risk, is
included in the Notes to the Consolidated Finanstatements.

For purposes of disclosing the market risk inheneiits derivative financial instruments the Compaises sensitivity analysis disclosures that
express the potential loss in fair values of mar&gg sensitive instruments resulting from charigésterest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, and commaodity prices that asst
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instantaneous, parallel shifts in exchange ratgstast rate yield curves, and commodity price® fbtlowing analysis provides such
guantitative information regarding market risk. fehare certain shortcomings inherent in the sefityitanalyses presented, primarily due to
the assumption that exchange rates change inseantsly and that interest rates change in a pafalibion. In addition, the analyses are
unable to reflect the complex market reactions tioamally would arise from the market shifts modele

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

The Company has foreign currency exposures retatbdying, selling, and financing in currenciesestthan the local currencies in which it
operates. The Company enters into various forwantdracts, which change in value as foreign curren@hange rates change, to preserv
carrying amount of foreign currency-denominatectsdiabilities, commitments, and certain antitgobforeign currency transactions.
Exposures are primarily related to the Europear Earsus the US Dollar and Japanese Yen versusutupean Euro exchange rates. The
net fair value of financial instruments used toifiexposure to foreign currency risk was approxegha$l million and $3 million as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively. The patatitange in fair value at both December 31, 2a1d 2010 for such financial
instruments from an increase (decrease) of 10%idteql foreign currency exchange rates would beenease (decrease) of approximatel
million and $22 million, respectively.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is subject to market risk from exposamhanges in interest rates due to its finandimgesting, and cash management
activities. The Company has a revolving creditlfagireceivables securitization facility, other floatirge debt and cash and cash equival
which are exposed to floating interest rates and imaact cash flow. As of December 31, 2011, thenGany had $136 million and $158
million outstanding on the senior revolving creditility and account securitization facility, resgigely, with the balance of other floating r
debt was $3 million. As of December 31, 2010, thkbce of the senior term loan facility, and otthaaiting rate debt was $12 million, and
$11 million, respectively. Cash and cash equivalergre $52 million and $52 million at December 2011 and 2010, respectively. A one
percentage point increase (decrease) in interest & both December 31, 2011 and 2010 would iserédecrease) our annual net interest
expense for each period by $3 million. At Decenfer2010, it is estimated that a one percentage puirease (decrease) in interest rates
would decrease (increase) annual interest expgn$a million.

The fair market value of the Compasysenior notes are subject to interest rate rigk.dstimated that at December 31, 2011, a oreeptQ!
point increase (decrease) in interest rates walddréase) increase the fair market value of thesndie in 2016 by 4%, the notes due in 2019
by 6% and the notes due in 2036 by 13%. At DecerBbeP010, it is estimated that a one percentage pmrease (decrease) in interest rates
would decrease (increase) the fair market valubehotes due in 2016 by 5%, the notes due in B§1@% and the notes due in 2036 by
13%.

Commodity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to changes in prices of amitias used in its operations, primarily assodatéth energy, such as natural gas, and
raw materials, such as asphalt and polystyrene Ciimpany enters into caslettled natural gas and crude oil swap contragisdiect again:
changes in natural gas prices that mature withimabths; however, no financial instruments areentty used to protect against changes in
raw material costs. At December 31, 2011 and 20H)net fair value of such swap contracts washilitia of approximately $4 million and

$2 million, respectively. The potential changeair f/alue at December 31, 2011 and 2010 resultimy fan increase (decrease) of 10%
change in the underlying commodity prices wouldahéncrease (decrease) of approximately $2 mitind $3 million, respectively. This
amount excludes the offsetting impact of the prisk inherent in the physical purchase of the ulyileg commodities
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Pages 47 through 90 of this filing are incorpordiete by reference.

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

The Company has nothing to report under this Item.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains (a) disclosure controls andgulures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a}#5(d 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, (the “Exchange Act”)), anflifternal control over financial reporting (as kuerm is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act).

The Company’s management, with the participatiothefCompany’s Chief Executive Officer and Chigfdticial Officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of the Compasytlisclosure controls and procedures as of theetite period covered by this report. Based on syauation
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer have concluded that, as of the eénglich period, the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

A report of the Company’s management on the Conipanternal control over financial reporting is ¢aimed on page 45 hereof and is
incorporated here by reference. Pricewaterhouse&edf P’s report on the effectiveness of interraiteol over financial reporting is
included in the Report of Independent Registerdali®édccounting Firm beginning on page 46 hereof.

There have not been any changes in the Compamtgrnal control over financial reporting duriting fiscal quarter to which this report rele
that have materially affected, or are reasonakbflyito materially affect, the Company’s internahtrol over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

The Company has nothing to report under this I
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

Information with respect to directors and corpogdgernance will be presented in the 2012 ProxieStant in the sections entitled
“Information Concerning Directors,” “Governance dnfnation” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial OwnershigpRrting Compliance,” and such
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Information with respect to executive officersnsluded herein under Part I, “Executive Officer&afens Corning.”
Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

Owens Corning has adopted an Ethics Policy for Executive and Senior Financial Officers that &pto our Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Offic& he Company has filed this policy as an exHibithis Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding executive officer and direatompensation will be presented in the 2012 P®tatement under the section entitled
“Executive Compensation,” exclusive of the subsecgntitled “Compensation Committee Report,” arelgbction entitled “2011 Non-
Employee Director Compensation,” and such infororats incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information regarding security ownership of certb@neficial owners and management and relatedisbdadér matters, as well as equity
compensation plan information, will be presentethan2012 Proxy Statement under the sections emtiBecurity Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Securitiath@rized for Issuance Under Equity Compensati@am&l' and such information is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIR ECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information regarding certain relationships anated transactions and director independence witirbsented in the 2012 Proxy Statement
under the sections entitled “Certain Transactioitk Related Persons,” “Review of Transactions viRilated Persons,” “Director
Qualifications Standards” and “Director Independshand such information is incorporated hereinddfgrence.

ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The aggregate accounting fees billed and serviasded by the Company’s principal accountantsiieryears ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Audit Fees (1) $ 4,617 $ 5,162
Audit-Related Fees (: 37 32
Tax Fees 427 30¢€
All Other Fees (3 21F 35C
Total Fees $ 5,29¢ $ 5,85(

(1) Amounts shown reflect fees for the years ended Dbee 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivi
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(2) The fees included relate primarily to review of empan’s required franchise disclosure documents in 2012810.
(3) Amounts shown include fees related primarily to diligence work in 2011 and 201

It is the Company’s practice that all services fed the Company by its independent registeredipaltounting firm be prapproved eithe
by the Audit Committee or by the Chairman of thed&ommittee pursuant to authority delegated leyAldit Committee. No part of the
independent registered public accounting firm smwirelated to the Audit-Related Fees, Tax Feesll @ther Fees listed in the table above
was approved by the Audit Committee pursuant taetteamption from pre-approval provided by paragrag(v)(i)(C) of Rule 2-01 of
Regulation -X.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(&) DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THIS REPOF

1. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statementsage g4 hereo

2. See Index to Financial Statement Schedules on $@ahereof

3.  See Exhibit Index beginning on page 101 her

Management contracts and compensatory plans aagaments required to be filed as an exhibit puntsteaForm 10-K are denoted in the
Exhibit Index by an asteris|“*").
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 15t)1of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thgiReant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

OWENS CORNING

By /s/ Michael H. Thaman Date February 15, 20:
Michael H. Thamar
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeu@ficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

/s/ Michael H. Thaman Date February 15, 20:
Michael H. Thaman

Chairman of the Board, President,

Chief Executive Officer and Directt

/s/ Duncan J. Palmer Date February 15, 20:
Duncan J. Palme
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

/s/ Mark W. Mayer Date February 15, 20:
Mark W. Mayer,
Vice President and Chief Accounting Offic

Date

Norman P. Blake, Jr
Director

/s| Gaston Caperton Date February 15, 20:
Gaston Capertot
Director

/sl J. Brian Ferguson Date February 15, 20:
J. Brian Fergusor
Director

/s/ Ralph F. Hake Date February 15, 20:
Ralph F. Hake
Director

/sl F. Philip Handy Date February 15, 20:
F. Philip Handy
Director

/s/ Landon Hilliard Date February 15, 20:
Landon Hilliard,
Director

/s! Ann Iverson Date February 15, 20:
Ann Iverson,
Director
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/sl James J. McMonagle Date February 15, 20:
James J. McMonagl

Director

/s/ W. Howard Morris Date February 15, 20:
W. Howard Morris,
Director

/sl Joseph F. Neely Date February 15, 20:
Joseph F. Neely
Director

/s/ John D. Williams Date February 15, 20:
John D. Williams
Director
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OWENS
CORNING

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for dstdbfy and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underSeeurities Exchange Act of 1934.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of thpadg’s internal control over financial reporting @ December 31, 2011 based on the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsorimg&hizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOhtarhal Control-Integrated
Framework.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has audited the effawdiss of the internal controls over financial répgras of December 31, 2011 as stated
in their Report of Independent Registered PublicdAmting Firm on page 46 hereof.

Based on our assessment, management determingdgtudtDecember 31, 2011, the Company’s intermatrol over financial reporting was
effective.

/s/ Michael H. Thaman Date February 15, 20:
Michael H. Thaman
President and Chief Executive Offic

/s/ Duncan J. Palmer Date February 15, 20:
Duncan J. Palme
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfinm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Ow€onming:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated ba#asheets and the related consolidated statemfes#srongs, stockholders’ equity and
cash flows present fairly, in all material respetite financial position of Owens Corning and itbsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
and the results of their operations and their élasts for each of the three years in the periodeghbDecember 31, 2011 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates of America. In addition, in our opinitire financial statement schedule listed in
the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) preseiry fan all material respects, the information fm@th therein when read in conjunction with
the related consolidated financial statements. Ksmur opinion, the Company maintained, in all en&tl respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20Hkddl on criteria establishedliiernal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s managemeesonsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedule, fartenaing effective internal control over financi@porting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, included in Management’'s Report on Inté@antrol Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on theserfoia statements, on the financial statement sdbednd on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our integrateditauWe conducted our audits in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdaadards require that we plan and perform the addibbtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement and whether effective internal mdmiver financial reporting was

maintained in all material respects. Our audittheffinancial statements included examining, oasalbasis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, aggptise accounting principles used and signifiesstimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@rmaOur audit of internal control over financraporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financiglaging, assessing the risk that a material weakegists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internalrcbivased on the assessed risk. Our audits altadieat performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. Weyde¢hat our audits provide a reasonable basisdo opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(iiiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iizé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadé&gbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers L
Toledo, Ohio
February 15, 201
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(in millions, except per share amounts)

NET SALES
COST OF SALE¢
Gross margir
OPERATING EXPENSE!
Marketing and administrative expen
Science and technology expen
Charges related to cost reduction acti
Employee emergence equity program expt
Other expenses (income), |
Total operating expens
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES
Interest expense, n
EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES
Less: Income tax expense (bene
Equity in net earnings of affiliate
NET EARNINGS
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrollintgiests
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNG COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS
Basic
Diluted
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
Basic
Diluted

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
$5,33¢ $4,991 $4,80¢
4,307 4,041 3,95¢
1,02¢ 95¢ 84¢
52E 51€ 522
77 76 61
— 29 34
— — 29
(35) 12¢ 11
567 75( 657
461 20¢€ 192
10¢€ 11C 111
3532 96 81
74 (840 14
2 4 —
281 94( 67
5 7 3
$ 27¢ $ 93: $ 64
$ 2.2t $ 7.45 $ 0.51
$ 2.2¢ $ 7.3 $ 0.5C
122.F 125.¢ 124.¢
123k 126.¢ 127.1

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinhBtédements are an integral part of this Staten
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions)

Receivables, less allowances of $15 at Dec. 311 208 $19 at Dec. 31, 20

Inventories

Assets held for sa- current

Other current asse

Total current asse

Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Intangible asset
Deferred income taxe
Assets held for sa nor-current
Other nol-current assel

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Shor-term debr
Long-term deb~ current portior
Liabilities held for sale current
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Pension plan liability
Other employee benefits liabili
Deferred income taxe
Other liabilities
Commitments and contingenci

OWENS CORNING STOCKHOLDEFR EQUITY
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per shar
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share

Additional paid in capita

Accumulated earning

Accumulated other comprehensive det
Cost of common stock in treasury

Total Owens Corning stockhold’ equity

Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

(&) 10 shares authorized; none issued or outstandiBg@t31, 2011 and Dec. 31, 2C
(b) 400 shares authorized; 134.4 issued and 120.%odisg at Dec. 31, 2011; 133.2 issued and 123&anding at Dec. 31, 20:
(c) 13.5shares at Dec. 31, 2011 and 9.3 shares a3De201(

Dec. 31

2011

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinhBtédements are an integral part of this Staten

Dec. 31

2010

$ 52
54¢€
62C

174
1,40¢
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in millions)
Common Stock Treasury Accumulated
Qutstanding Stock
Earnings
Shares Par Value  Shares Cost APIC (a) (Deficit) AOCI (b) NCI (c) Total
Balance at December 31, 2008 127.( $ 1 47 $(101) $ 3,82« $ 803)) $ (183 $ 42  $2,78(
Comprehensive earning
Net earning: — — — — — 64 — 3 67
Currency translation adjustme — — — — — — 44 1 45
Pension and other postretirement adjustment (nieb — — — — — — (64) — (64)
Deferred gain on hedging transactions (net of — — — — — — 18 — 18
Total comprehensive earnin 66
Changes in subsidiary shares from noncontrollingrasts — — — — — — — 4) (4)
Transfer of subsidiary shares to MRNCI — — — — (21) — — 9) (30)
Purchases of treasury stc (0.7) — 0.1 ?3) — — — — 3
Stock-based compensatic 0. — — — 44 — — — 44
Balance at December 31, 2009 127.¢ $ 1 4.€ $1049 $ 384 $ (7399 $ (185 $ 33  $2,85:
Comprehensive earning
Net earning: — — — — — 932 — 7 94C
Currency translation adjustme — — — — — — 25 1 26
Pension and other postretirement adjustment (niebx) — — — — — — (36) — (36)
Deferred gain on hedging transactions (net of — — — — — — 2 — 2
Total comprehensive earnin 932
Changes in subsidiary shares from noncontrollingrests — — — — 3 — — ?3) —
Stock issuanc 0.1 — — — 3 — — — 3
Purchases of treasury stc 4.9 — 4.5 (125) — — — — (125)
Stoclk-based compensatic 0.5 — — — 23 — — — 23
Balance at December 31, 2010 124.] $ 1 9.2  $(22¢) $ 3,87¢ $ 194 $ (199 $ 38 $3,68¢
Comprehensive earning
Net earning: — — — — — 27€ — 5 281
Currency translation adjustme — — — — — — (39) — (39
Pension and other postretirement adjustment (nx) — — — — — — (80) — (80)
Deferred loss on hedging transactions (net of — — — — — — (@) — (2)
Total comprehensive earnin 16C
Changes in subsidiary shares from noncontrollingrasts — — — — — — — ) )
Stock issuanc 0.1 — — — 10 — — — 10
Purchases of treasury stc (4.2) — 4.2 (133) — — — — (139)
Stocl-based compensatic 0. — — — 21 — — — 21
Balance at December 31, 2011 120.¢ $ 1 135 $(362 $ 3,90i $ 47C $ (315 $ 40 $3,741

(@) Additional Paid in Capital*APIC")

(b) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Earnings (Def{*AOCI")
(c) Noncontrolling Interest*NCI")

(d) Mandatorily Redeemable Noncontrolling Intere‘MRNCI")

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinaBtéements are an integral part of this Staten
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)

NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earning:
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash pexby operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
(Gain) loss on sale of businesses and fixed a
Asset impairment
Deferred income taxe
Provision for pension and other employee benéféitslities
Stocl-based compensation expel
Other noi-cash
Restricted cas
Change in working capit:
Pension fund contributio
Payments for other employee benefits liabili
Other
Net cash flow provided by operating activit

NET CASH FLOW USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIE!
Additions to plant and equipme
Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates, netastcacquire
Proceeds from the sale of assets or affili
Net cash flow used for investing activiti
NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) FINANCING ACVITIES
Proceeds from senior revolving credit facil
Payments on senior revolving credit facil
Proceeds from lor-term debr
Payments on lor-term debt
Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates, netastcacquire
Net increase (decrease) in siterm debr
Purchases of treasury stc
Other
Net cash flow provided by (used for) financing weitigés
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for income ta
Cash paid during the year for inter

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2011 2010 2009
$ 281 $ 94C $ 67
31¢€ 32C 32E
(30) 2 9)
— 117 3
55 (867) 17

36 26 40

21 23 52
(22 (19 (19
— — 7
(262) 15 134
(117) (32 43
(24) (26) (25
33 (172) (12
28¢ 48€ 541
(442) (3149 (243)
(84) — —
81 65 39
(445 (249) (209
1,547 631 26C
(1,429 (619) (58¢€)
164 5 35C
(10 (609) (15)
— (30) —
26 (10 (20)
(13¢) (120 (©)
8 2 (3)

174 (750 (17)
(18 (1) 8
— (512 32¢
52 564 23€

$ 52 $ 52 $ 564
$ 24 $ 16 $ 18
$ 111 $ 10¢€ $ 11z

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinhBtédements are an integral part of this Staten
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES

Description of Business

Owens Corning, a Delaware corporation, is a leadiobal producer of glass fiber reinforcements atieer materials for composite systems
and of residential and commercial building matsridhe Company operates within two segments: Coitgsosvhich includes the Compasy’
Reinforcements and Downstream businesses; andiBgiMaterials, which includes the Company’s Insiglat Roofing, and Other
businesses. Through these lines of business, OGaming manufactures and sells products worldwlithe Company maintains leading
market positions in all of its major product categs.

Basis of Presentation

Unless the context requires otherwise, the termgéi® Corning,” “Company,” “we” and “our” in this pert refer to Owens Corning and its
subsidiaries.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statemtemts been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted in the
United States.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Compaiiude the accounts of majority-owned subsidisirintercompany accounts and
transactions are eliminated.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to th€ 208l 2009 Consolidated Financial Statements anesMo the Consolidated Financial
Statements to conform to the classifications usetDil 1.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affecefh@ted amounts of assets and liabilities and alsce of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the regamounts of revenues and expenses during theirepperiod. Actual results could differ
materially from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when title and risk of Iassfo the customer. Provisions for discounts aehdtes to customers, returns, warranties
and other adjustments are provided in the samedgénat the related sales are recorded and ard badaistorical experience, current
conditions and contractual obligations, as appl&ab

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes material, labor, energyraadufacturing overhead costs, including depreaiatiod amortization expense associated
with the manufacture and distribution of the Compaiproducts. Distribution costs include inbouneifht costs; purchasing and receiving
costs; inspection costs; warehousing costs; shipgnd handling costs, which include costs incuretgating to preparing, packaging, and
shipping products to customers; and other costiseoCompany’s distribution network. All shippingdahandling costs billed to the customer
are included as net sales in the ConsolidatedrSéatts of Earnings
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (continued)

Marketing and Administrative Expenses

Marketing and administrative expenses includersglind administrative costs, including depreciatind amortization expense, not directly
associated with the manufacture and distributiothefCompany’s products.

Included in marketing and administrative expenseearketing and advertising costs, which are expeéithe first time the advertisement
takes place. Marketing and advertising costs ireldvertising, substantiated customer incentivgnaras, and marketing communications.
Marketing and advertising expenses for the yeade@mecember 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $106mi$111 million and $106
million, respectively.

Science and Technology Expenses

The Company incurs certain expenses related taseiand technology. These expenses include salbtidding and equipment costs,
utilities, administrative expenses, materials amgpies associated with the improvement and dewvedop of the Company’s products and
manufacturing processes. These costs are expengeclared.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed using thghteei-average number of common shares outstandiiggdthe period. Diluted earnings
per share reflect the dilutive effect of commonieglent shares and increased shares that woultt fesu the conversion of equity securiti
The effects of anti-dilution are not presented.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company defines cash and cash equivalentshsaoa time deposits with original maturities aehmonths or less when purchased.

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedagda@mount and do not bear interest. The allowforagoubtful accounts is an estimate of
the amount of probable credit losses in our exgstiocounts receivable. Account balances are charfj@djainst the allowance when the
Company believes it is probable the receivable mali be recovered.

Inventory Valuation

Inventory costs include material, labor, and maciuufiang overhead costs, including depreciation amertization expense associated with
manufacture and distribution of the Company’s prtsluinventories are stated at lower of cost orketaralue. Cost is determined by the
first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.

Investments in Affiliates

The Company accounts for investments in affili@mE20% to 50% ownership when the Company does a¢ la controlling financial intere
using the equity method under which the Compsausfiare of earnings of the affiliate is reflecte@arnings and dividends are credited agi
the investment in affiliate when declar:



Table of Contents

-56-
OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill assets are not amortized but are testethfpairment on at least an annual basis. In tmeeotiyear, the Company used a qualitative
approach to determine whether it was more likeanthot that the fair value of a reporting unit Wess than its carrying amount. See Note 25
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for furthecussion of this new accounting pronouncement.

As part of our goodwill qualitative testing proces® evaluate various factors to determine whettisreasonably likely that management'’s
assessment would indicate a material impact ofeih@alue of a reporting unit. Factors assessdtiérgualitative approach are cash flow
forecasts of our reporting units, the strengthwflmalance sheet, changes in strategic outlookgamzational structure, industry and market
changes and macroeconomic indicators. If this assest indicates the possibility of impairment, ith@ome approach to test for goodwill
impairment would be used unless circumstancesaiglithat a better estimate of fair value was abklalhis review is performed annually,
or when circumstances would arise which indicageghmay be impairment. When applying the incomeaaih, the Company would
perform a discounted cash flow analysis basedsoexipectations of future net earnings from eacbrteg unit. Significant assumptions used
would include projected cash flows, discount rptejected income tax rate and terminal businessevalhese inputs are considered Level 3
inputs under the fair value hierarchy as they heeGompany’s own data, and are unobservable imtrketplace. See Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further dis@n.

Other indefinitelived intangible assets are not amortized butestet for impairment on at least an annual basighen determined to have
finite useful life. Substantially all of the indefie-lived intangible assets are in trademarksteae names. The Company uses the royalty
relief approach to determine whether it is moreljikhan not that the fair value of these assdtssisthan its carrying amount. This review is
performed annually, or when circumstances arisehvimdicate there may be impairment. When applytregroyalty relief approach, the
Company performs a discounted cash flow analyssdan the value derived from owning these tradksnand trade names and being
relieved from paying royalty to third parties. Siggant assumptions used include projected cashd]aliscount rate, projected income tax
rate and terminal business value. These inputsarsidered Level 3 inputs under the fair valuedrighy as they are the Compasigwn date
and are unobservable in the marketplace.

Identifiable intangible assets with a determinaldeful life are amortized over that determinalfie INmortization expense for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $2pmi#i21 million and $21 million, respectively. Sdete 5 to the Consolidated Finan
Statements for further discussion.

Properties and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at castiapreciated over their estimated useful liveegiie straight-line method. Property, plant
and equipment accounts are relieved of the costelattd accumulated depreciation when assetsgyesid of or otherwise retired. Preci
metals used in our production tooling are inclugtegroperty, plant and equipment and are depletetiey are consumed during the
production process. Depletion is recorded in cbstates on the Consolidated Statements of EarnPigsious metals used in our production
tooling are depleted as they are consumed durm@nbduction process, which typically representammual expense of less than 3 percent of
the outstanding value. For the years ended Decegihe2011, 2010 and 2009 depreciation expense 286 ®illion, $299 million and $304
million, respectively
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (continued)

The range of useful lives for the major componeiithe Company’s plant and equipment is as follows:

Buildings and leasehold improveme 15-40 year
Machinery and equipme
Furnace: 4-15 year
Information system 5-10 year
Equipment 5-20 year

Expenditures for normal maintenance and repairgxgpensed as incurred.

Asset Impairments

The Company exercises judgment in evaluating tdagibd intangible long-lived assets for impairm@itis requires significant assumptions
including projected cash flows, projected incomerttte and terminal business value. These inpets@mnsidered Level 3 inputs under the
value hierarchy as they are the Company’s own daizh,are unobservable in the marketplace. Changesmnagement intentions, market
conditions or operating performance could indi¢atg impairment charges might be necessary thatddmimaterial to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements in any givernogeri

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes current tax liabilities assets for the estimated taxes payable or refuadabthe tax returns for the current year.
Deferred tax balances reflect the impact of temyodéferences between the carrying amount of assedl liabilities and their tax basis.
Amounts are stated at enacted tax rates expectaslitoeffect when taxes are actually paid or reced. In addition, realization of certain
deferred tax assets is dependent upon our ahliligeherate future taxable income. The Company deawaluation allowance to reduce its
deferred tax assets to the amount that it believe®re likely than not to be realized. In addititle Company estimates tax reserves to covel
potential taxing authority claims for income taxesl interest attributable to audits of open taxgea

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Govement Authorities and Taxes Paid to Vendors

Taxes are assessed by various governmental aigbaitdifferent rates on many different typesrafsactions. The Company charges sales
tax or Value Added Tax (“VAT") on sales to custom&rere applicable, as well as capture and clatk bl available VAT that has been
paid on purchases. VAT is recorded in separatelpaya receivable accounts and does not affectuever cost of sales line items in the
income statement. VAT receivable is recorded asregmtage of qualifying purchases at the time #redar invoice is processed. VAT
payable is recorded as a percentage of qualifyafessat the time an Owens Corning sale to a custeuigect to VAT occurs. Amounts are
paid to the taxing authority according to the mdthad collection prescribed by local regulationfiefé applicable, VAT payable is netted
against VAT receivable. The Company also pays saleto vendors who include a tax, required by gorent regulations, to the purchase
price charged to the Company.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Accounting for pensions and other postretiremenelits involves estimating the cost of benefitbéoprovided well into the future and
attributing that cost over the time period each leyge works. To accomplish this, extensive useasl@of assumptions about investment
returns, discount rates, inflation, mortality, tover and medical cost
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (continued)

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes all derivative instrumeatsither assets or liabilities at fair value onlthéance sheet. To the extent that a
derivative is effective as a cash flow hedge, ti@nge in fair value of the derivative is deferne@ccumulated other comprehensive deficit
(“OCI"). Any portion considered to be ineffective ieported in earnings immediately. To the extieat & derivative is effective as a fair value
hedge, the change in the fair value of the derreat offset by the change in the fair value ofitben being hedged in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings. See Note 4 to the Consetidéinancial Statements for further discussion.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company’s subsiéisiis generally the applicable local currency. #saed liabilities of foreign subsidiaries
are translated into United States dollars at thimgeend rate of exchange, and their StatemenEaafings and Statements of Cash Flows are
converted on an ongoing basis at the monthly aeeraig. The resulting translation adjustment itushed in accumulated OCI in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Stateraf Stockholders’ Equity. Transaction gains ksdes that arise from exchange rate
fluctuations on transactions denominated in a cugrether than the functional currency are incluifethe Consolidated Statements of
Earnings as incurred. The Company recorded a formigrency transaction gain of $5 million, a lo§$® million and a gain of $8 million
during the years ended December 31, 2011, 20102@D@, respectively.

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments: Compasite8uilding Materials. Accounting policies foeteegments are the same as thos
the Company. The Company’s two reportable segnaetsefined as follows:

Composites eomprised of our Reinforcements and Downstreanmiegsies. Within the Reinforcements business, thep@oynmanufactures,
fabricates and sells glass reinforcements in tha faf fiber. Within the Downstream business, ther(any manufactures and sells glass f
products in the form of fabrics, mat, veil and otbpecialized products.

Building Materials— comprised of our Insulation and Roofing businesgéshin the Insulation business, the Company mactufas and sells
fiberglass insulation into residential, commerciatlustrial and other markets for both thermal acdustical applications. It also manufact
and sells glass fiber pipe insulation, energy edffitflexible duct media and foam insulation usedlove- and below-grade construction
applications. Within the Roofing business, the Campmanufactures and sells residential roofingghmand oxidized asphalt materials t
in residential and commercial construction and Eigcapplications
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NET SALES

The following table summarizes our net sales byrssg and geographic region (in millions). Exterciadtomer sales are attributed to
geographic region based upon the location from kttie product is shipped to the external customer.

Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009

Reportable Segmen

Composite $1,97¢ $1,90¢ $1,63:
Building Materials 3,531 3,24: 3,31«
Total reportable segmer 5,51 5,14¢ 4,94
Corporate elimination (17¢) (152) (144
NET SALES $5,33¢ $4,997 $4,80:
External Customer Sales by Geographic Re
United State: $3,55% $3,231 $3,261
Europe 61¢ 572 52:
Asia Pacific 674 67¢€ 604
Canada and othu 49C 51F 41F
NET SALES $5,33¢ $4,997 $4,80:

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES

Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT”) by seghtonsists of net sales less related costs grehegs and are presented on a basis that i
used internally for evaluating segment performa@aertain items, such as general corporate expemsesome and certain other expense or
income items, are excluded from the internal et@naof segment performance. Accordingly, thesmgere not reflected in EBIT for our
reportable segments and are included in the Camgadtaher and Eliminations catego
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following table summarizes EBIT by segmentnifions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 200¢

Reportable Segmen
Composite $201 $ 17t $(33)
Building Materials 332 281 _401

Total reportable segmer $53¢ $ 45¢€ $36€
Corporate, Other and Eliminatio
Net precious metal lease expe $— $ (2 $—
Charges related to cost reduction actions andeckligédms @n(a) (40)(c) (53)(e)
Acquisition integration and transaction cc — (13 (33
Gains (losses) on sales of assets and relatedest 16(b) (220)(d) (D)
Employee emergence equity program expt — — (29
General corporate exper (71) (75 (60)
EBIT $461 $ 20€ $192

(@) Includes no charges related to cost reduction met@md $17 million of other related iter

(b) Includes $16 million gain on sale of Capivari, Btéacility.

(¢) Includes $29 million of charges related to costcdin actions and $11 million of other relatearite

(d) Includes $114 million of charges related to the sdlMasonry Products and $10 million of asset iimmpants.
() Includes $34 million of charges related to costadin actions and $19 million of other relatearite
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

TOTAL ASSETS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT BY G EOGRAPHIC REGION

The following table summarizes total assets by ssgrand property, plant and equipment by geograggion (in millions):

Dec. 31,

TOTAL ASSETS 2011 2010
Reportable Segmen
Composites $2,471 $2,33:
Building Materials 3,87¢ 3,68¢

Total reportable segmer $6,34¢ $6,027
Reconciliation to consolidated total ass
Cash and cash equivalel $ 52 $ 52
Deferred income taxe 61€ 624
Investments in affiliate 55 54
Corporate property, plant and equipment and otbeste 452 40€
CONSOLIDATED TOTAL ASSETS $7,52i $7,15¢
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION
United State: $1,48i $1,427
Europe 613 544
Canade 21€ 231
Asia Pacific 26& 263
Other 328 28¢
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT $2,904 $2,75¢4
PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
The following table summarizes the provision fopaiation and amortization by segment (in milljpns

Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009

Reportable Segmen
Composite $ 12¢ $ 117 $ 117
Building Materials 157 16€ 174

Total reportable segmer $ 28t $ 28E $ 291
General corporate depreciation and amortize 33 35 34
CONSOLIDATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZ ATION $ 31¢ $ 32C $ 32t
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

ADDITIONS TO PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following table summarizes additions to propgptant and equipment by segment (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
Reportable Segmen
Composites $ 25€ $ 152 $ 10C
Building Materials 151 13¢ 10¢
Total reportable segmer $ 407 $ 29C $ 20¢
General corporate additiol 35 24 34
CONSOLIDATED ADDITIONS TO PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIP MENT $ 442 $ 314 $ 245
3. INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of the following (in millions):
Dec. 31,
2011 201(C
Finished goods $597 $452
Materials and supplie 19¢ 16¢
Total inventories $79E $62C

4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to, among other thingsnpact of changes in commodity prices, foreign ency exchange rates, and interest
rates in the normal course of business. The Compaisk management program is designed to managexposure and volatility arising
from these risks, and utilizes derivative finandamstruments to offset a portion of these riskse Tompany uses derivative financial
instruments only to the extent necessary to hedigtified business risks, and does not enter uth sransactions for trading purposes.

The Company generally does not require collatarativer security with counterparties to these foiahinstruments and is therefore subject
to credit risk in the event of nonperformance; hegrethe Company monitors credit risk and curredtgs not anticipate nonperformance by
other parties. Contracts with counterparties gdlyerantain right of offset provisions. These praioins effectively reduce the Company’s
exposure to credit risk in situations where the @any has gain and loss positions outstanding witingle counterparty. It is the Company’s
policy to offset on the Consolidated Balance Sh#etsamounts recognized for derivative instrumaerits any cash collateral arising from
derivative instruments executed with the same @rpatty under a master netting agreement. As oééer 31, 2011 and 2010, the
Company did not have any amounts on deposit wighodiits counterparties, nor did any of its coup#eties have any amounts on deposit
with the Company
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets and liabilities designated as hedged itamassessed for impairment or for the need to reze@n increased obligation. Such
assessments are made after hedge accounting hmaggied to the asset or liability and excludesideration of (1) any anticipated effects
of hedge accounting and (2) the fair value of algted hedging instrument that is recognized &parste asset or liability. The assessment
for an impairment of an asset, however, includesicteration of the losses that have been defenr€ll as a result of a cash flow hedge of
that asset.

The following table presents the fair value of datives and hedging instruments and the respelctozion on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets (in millions):

Fair Value at
Dec. 31 Dec. 31

Location 2011 2010
Derivative assets designated as hedging instrumen
Cash flow hedge:
Natural gas Other current asse $ 1 $ 2
Amount of gain recognized in OCI (effective porijc OCl $ 1 $ 2
Fair value hedge:!
Interest rate swaps Other non-current
assets $ — $ 12
Derivative liabilities designated as hedging instrments:
Cash flow hedge:
Natural gas Accounts payable
and accrued liabilitie $ 4 $ 3
Amount of loss recognized in OCI (effective porit (e]e! $ 4 $ 3
Derivative assets not designated as hedging instrumts:
Foreign exchange contrac Other current asse $ 2 $ 3
Derivative liabilities not designated as hedging istruments:
Natural gas Accounts payable
and accrued liabilitie $ 1 $ 2
Energy supply contract Accounts payable
and accrued liabilitie $ — $ 1
Foreign exchange contracts Accounts payable

and accrued liabilitie $ 1 $ —
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4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table presents the impact and respeddcation of derivative activities on the Coridated Statements of Earnings (in
millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
Location 2011 2010 2009
Derivative activity designated as hedging instrumets:
Natural gas
Amount of loss reclassified from OCI into earnir{gfective portion’ Cost of sale: $ 4 $ 8 $ 38
Interest rate swap
Amount of (gain) loss recognized in earnings (ieefive portion) Interest
expense, ne $ 2 $ 4 $
Derivative activity not designated as hedging instrments:
Natural gas
Amount of (gain) loss recognized in earnings Other expens:
(income) $ (D) $ 1 $ —
Energy supply contrac
Amount of (gain) loss recognized in earnings Other expens:
(income) $ 1) $ — $ 1
Foreign currency exchange contré
Amount of (gain) recognized in earnings Other expens:
(income) $ 1) $ (3 $ —

Cash Flow Hedges

The Company uses forward and swap contracts, whielify as cash flow hedges, to manage forecastgdseire to natural gas price and
foreign exchange risk. The effective portion of ti&nge in the fair value of cash flow hedges ferded in accumulated OCI on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and is subsequentdgmized in other expenses (income) on the Congelidatatements of Earnings for
foreign exchange hedges, and in cost of salese@dmsolidated Statements of Earnings for commdditiges, when the hedged item
impacts earnings. Cash flow hedges related togarekchange risk were immaterial for all periodssgnted. Changes in the fair value of
derivative assets and liabilities designated agiingdnstruments are shown in other within opegaautivities on the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows. Any portion of the change in failueaof the derivative designated as hedging instntsithat is determined to be ineffective
is recorded in other expenses (income) on the Cidiased Statements of Earnings.

The Company currently has natural gas derivatiessgthated as hedging instruments that mature withimonths. The Company’s policy is
to hedge up to 75% of its total forecasted natgaal exposures for the next two months, up to 50%s abtal forecasted natural gas exposures
for the following four months, and lesser amoutstifie remaining periods. The Company performsreaatyais for effectiveness of its
derivatives designated as hedging instrumentseagiiidl of each quarter based on the terms of theacvand the underlying item being
hedged
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4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As of December 31, 2011, $4 million of losses ideld in OCI on the Consolidated Balance Sheetser&datontracts that will impact earnir

during the next 12 months. Transactions and evbatsare expected to occur over the next 12 mahtitswill necessitate recognizing these
deferred losses include the recognition of the kddtem through earnings.

Fair Value Hedges

The Company manages its interest rate exposuralapding the mixture of its fixed and variable rastruments. In the fourth quarter of
2009, the Company entered into several interests@aps to manage its interest rate exposure hyedimg $500 million of fixed rate debt to
variable rate debt. As such, the swaps are caatifair value and recorded as other assets otitiabj with the offset to long-term debt on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the faie o these swaps and that of the related debeamded in interest expense, net on the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company ternedatll existing interest rate swaps and receivédeitiement proceeds totaling $36 milli
These proceeds are classified as cash providegdnating activities in the Consolidated StatemehntSash Flows. There was no immediate
material impact to the Consolidated StatementsapfhiBgs; however, the fair value adjustment to adaltbe amortized over the life of the
underlying debt as a reduction to interest exp@msenjunction with the occurrence of the origigatrecasted transactions.

Other Derivatives

The Company uses forward currency exchange costrachanage existing exposures to foreign exchesieelated to assets and liabilities
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. @ath{sses resulting from the changes in fair vafubese instruments are recorded in
other expenses (income) on the Consolidated StatsméEarnings.

As a result of first quarter 2009 capacity curt&ihts taken at certain facilities, the normal pusehscope exception was no longer met for
of the Company’s energy supply contracts. The emhis now required to be marked to market eachtgutnrough its termination date of
January 31, 201.
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5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets and goodwill consist of the feitg (in millions):

Weighted
Gross Net
Average Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Useful
Dec. 31, 201 Life Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizable intangible assel
Customer relationshif 19 $ 17¢ $ (48) $ 12z
Technology 20 204 (54) 15C
Franchise and other agreeme 15 36 12 24
Indefinite-lived intangible asset
Trademarks 771 — 7717
Total intangible asse $ 1,18i $ 119 $ 1,07
Goodwill $ 1,14/
Weighted
Gross Net
Average Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Useful
Dec. 31, 201 Life Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizable intangible assel
Customer relationshif 19 $ 16¢ $ (38) $ 131
Technology 20 202 (45) 157
Franchise and other agreeme 15 34 9) 25
Indefinite-lived intangible asset
Trademarks 7717 — 7717
Total intangible asse $ 1,18: $ 92) $ 1,09(
Goodwill $ 1,08¢

The changes in the net carrying amount of goodwilkegment are as follows (in millions):

Building
Composite: Materials Total
Balance as of December 31, 2010 $ 60 $ 1,02¢ $1,08¢
Acquisitions (see Note ¢ — 59 59
Foreign currency adjustmer 3 — 3
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 57 $ 1,087 $1,14¢

Other Intangible Assets

The Company expects the ongoing amortization ex@forsamortizable intangible assets to be $22 onilln each of the next five fiscal yee
The Company'’s future cash flows are not materiafipacted by its ability to extend or renew agreetmeslated to our amortizable intangible
assets
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5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continu ed)

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

The Company tests goodwill and indefinite-livecaimgible assets for impairment as of October 1 gaah, or more frequently should
circumstances change or events occur that woule tit@ly than not reduce the fair value of a rejpgrunit below its carrying amount. The
annual test performed in 2011 resulted in no immpairt of goodwill. See Note 25 to the Consolidatawhcial Statements for further
discussion of new accounting pronouncements.

In December 2010, management’s strategic outloatherest use of the Company’s asset portfolio gbdnThis triggered a requirement to
test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assat the Company’s Masonry Products and Buildingevials Europe reporting units. The
testing resulted in a pre-tax impairment charg®3® million to goodwill and $60 million to indefit@-lived intangible assets in December
2010. These charges are recorded in other expemseng) on the Consolidated Statements of Earnifigs fair value for the Masonry
Products reporting unit was based upon the Compaagreement to sell that business. The fair vau8dilding Materials Europe reporting
unit was based upon the Company’s estimates utjitie discounted cash flow approach. Both the MigsBroducts and Building Materials
Europe reporting units are part of the Building &té&tls segment.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foilga(in millions):

Dec. 31 Dec. 31

2011 2010
Land $ 221 $ 21¢
Buildings and leasehold improveme 727 687
Machinery and equipme 2,932 2,69¢
Construction in progres 26¢ 167
4,14¢ 3,771
Accumulated depreciatic (1,249 (1,019
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 2,904 $ 2,754

Machinery and equipment includes certain precioataia used in the Company’s production tooling,clidomprise approximately 20% and

21% of total machinery and equipment as of DecerBlbeR011 and December 31, 2010, respectivelyidusaenetals used in the Company’s

production tooling are depleted as they are conduneing the production process, which typicallgressents an annual expense of less than
3% of the outstanding carrying value.

7. CHANGES IN NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

In the second quarter of 2009, the Company exearneamended shareholder agreement with the nowdardrinterest of Owens-Corning
(India) Limited (“OCIL"), one of the Company’s caslgdated subsidiaries. This agreement providedfput/call provision that became
redeemable/exercisable beginning May 31, 2010.eSime exercise of the put option was outside timerobof the Company, the carrying
value of the noncontrolling interest was recordednandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interesth@naccompanying consolidated bala
sheets
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7. CHANGES IN NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

In 2010, the minority shareholder put their intéie<OCIL to the Company for $30 million. The traction was settled in the fourth quarte
2010.

The following table discloses the changes in notreding interests on Owens Corning stockholdergligy and effects on net earnings
attributable to Owens Corning (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2010 2009
Net earnings attributable to Owens Corn $ 93¢ $ 64
Increase (decrease) in Owens Corning additional ipagapital for OCIL shareholder
amendmen 3 (21)
Change from net earnings attributable to Owens i@grand change in noncontrolli
interests $ 93¢ $ 43

8. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company’s oviiepercentage in affiliates, which generally angaged in the manufacture of fibrous
glass and related products for the insulation, taogon, reinforcements, and textile markets, udeld:

Dec. 31,
2011 201¢
Arabian Fiberglass Insulation Company, Ltd. (Sa\mibia) 49% 49%
Fiberteq LLC (United State: 50% 50%
Neptco LLC (United State: 50% 50%

The following tables provide summarized financigbrmation on a combined 100% basis for the Comisaalfjiliates accounted for under
the equity method (in millions):

Dec. 31,
2011 201
Current assets $ 57 $ 54
Non-current assel $71 $ 58
Current liabilities $ 17 $ 13
Non-current liabilities $ 19 $ 10
Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
Net sales $ 14z $ 131 $ 12¢
Gross margir $ 14 $ 14 $ 13

Net earnings $ 5 $ 7 $ 2
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8. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES (continued)

Dividends received from entities accounted for uride equity method were less than $1 million far years ended 2011, 2010 and 2009.
Undistributed earnings of affiliates were $1 mitlitor the year ended December 31, 2011.

9. ACQUISITIONS

On July 31, 2011, the Company completed the addprisi of FiberTEK Insulation West, LLC, an insutatimanufacturing operation located
in Nephi, Utah and FiberTEK Insulation, LLC, anufetion manufacturing operation located in Lakelafdrida (the “Acquisitions”) from
third parties unrelated to the Company (“the SstletAs part of the Company'’s global growth stratetihese acquisitions strengthen its
position as a market leader in the loosefill insatamarket. Operating results of these manufactufacilities are included in the Company’s
Building Materials segment within the Consolidakédancial Statements beginning August 1, 2011.

The Company provided total consideration that héadravalue of $105 million at the acquisition daf®tal consideration that the Company
provided for the Acquisitions consisted of cashrpagts of $84 million to the Sellers on July 31, 204nd $25 million in deferred payments
starting in 2013 through 2018. The deferred paymare recorded at their net present value of $2lbmin other liabilities on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Values of assets acquired and liabilities assurhéttbadate of the acquisitions include: $37 milliorproperty, plant and equipment and other
assets; $3 million in intangible assets; $6 milliorvorking capital and $59 million in goodwill. &pro-forma effect of these acquisitions on
revenues and earnings was not material to the eaalinths ended December 31, 2011.

10. DIVESTITURES

On May 18, 2011, the Company sold its Compositasggteinforcements facility in Capivari, Brazil@nongging Polycomp International
Company (“CPIC"), an unrelated third party. At ¢legs the Company received $55 million in cash am@dditional $6 million was placed
into escrow to satisfy any potential adjustmentslaims. The sale resulted in a $16 million gaiat ils recorded in other (income) expense
the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

On December 31, 2010, the Company sold its UnitateS Masonry Products business (“Masonry ProdptisBoral Industries Ltd, an
unrelated third party. At closing, the Company reee $45 million and will receive an additional $48llion in 2014. The $45 million to be
received in 2014 was recorded at its net presdaeva $40 million in noncurrent assets on the @tidated Balance Sheets. Additionally,
Company could receive contingent proceeds in 2@k&d on 2013 financial performance of the formesdtay Products business. The
Company will maintain an interest in the former Miay Products business until the second paymesteived. Masonry Products was a
component of the Company’s Building Materials segime

In May 2009, the Company completed the sale ob#®ets and liabilities at certain European distidioucenters within the Composites
segment for cash proceeds of $9 million. Thesditiasi were sold as a result of the integratiothef Saint-Gobain’s reinforcement and
composite fabrics business in 202007 Acquisitior”).
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11. LEASES

The Company leases certain equipment and faciliteter operating leases expiring on various datesigh 2026. Some of these leases
include cost-escalation clauses. Such cost-eszalekiuses are recognized on a straight-line loagisthe lease term. Total rental expense
was $74 million, $70 million and $71 million in tlyears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 200®atdggy. At December 31, 2011, the
minimum future rental commitments under non-caraelaperating leases with initial maturities gredl@n one year payable over the
remaining lives of the leases are (in millions):

Minimum
Future Rental

Period Commitments
2012 $ 49
2013 $ 38
2014 $ 30
2015 $ 18
2016 $ 12
2017 and beyon $ 52
12. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing (in millions):
Dec. 31,
2011 201C
Accounts payable $48¢ $474
Payroll and vacation pe 13C 14z
Payroll, property, and other tax 104 121
Other employee benefits liabilitit 43 74
Warranties (current portiol 17 15
Legal and audit fee 10 15
Accrued interes 8 7
Charges related to cost reduction acti 2 17
Other _ 74 76
Total $87¢ $942

13. WARRANTIES

The Company records a liability for warranty obtigas at the date the related products are solfushaients are made as new information
becomes available. A reconciliation of the warrdrility is as follows (in millions):

Dec. 31,
2011 201
Beginning balance $ 38 $ 3¢
Amounts accrued for current ye 19 16
Settlements of warranty clair (19 (17

Ending balanc 38 38
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14. COST REDUCTION ACTIONS
2010 Cost Reduction Actions

As part of the Company’s continuing review of itamafacturing network, actions were taken during@@ifurther balance global capacity
and respond to market conditions. No charges ielatthese actions were incurred during the tweleaiths ended December 31, 2011.
During the twelve months ended December 31, 200Company recorded $40 million in charges rel&etiese cost reduction actions and
related items; of which $29 million related to seree and are presented in charges related toezhsttion actions on the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings and $11 million relatedctteberated depreciation expense and are includeasinof sales on the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings. Payments related to thaisdtias will continue through 2012.

The following table summarizes the status of theaith liabilities from the Company’s 2010 cost retitut actions (in millions):

Ending
Beginning Balance
Cumulative
Balance Dec. 31
Dec. 31, Costs Charges
2010 Incurred Payments 2011 Incurred
Severance $ 17 $ — $ 15 $ 2 $ 29
Total $ 17 $ — $ 15 $ 2 $ 29

2009 Cost Reduction Actions

As a result of evaluating market conditions, thenpany took actions in 2009 to curtail production aaduce operating costs. During the
twelve months ended December 31, 2009, the Comamayded $53 million in charges related to thes# reduction actions and related
items. Of the charges noted above, $34 milliorreleted to severance and are presented in chaigésd to cost reduction actions on the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. No chargeageckto these actions were incurred in 2010 anddhgany made the remaining $7
million of cash payments related to these actioriZ0i10.

15. DEBT

Details of the Company’s outstanding long-term debtas follows (in millions):

Dec. 31 Dec. 31

2011 2010
6.50% senior notes, net of discount, due 2016 $ 64¢ $ 64¢
7.00% senior notes, net of discount, due 2 54C 54C
9.00% senior notes, net of discount, due 2 34¢€ 34k

Accounts receivable securitization facility, matgyin 2014 15¢ —
Senior revolving credit facility, maturing in 20. 13€ 12
Various capital leases, due through and beyond 55 52
Various floating rate debt, maturing through 2( 3 11
Other fixed rate debt, with maturities up to 2022rates up to 11.0¢ 8 10
Fair value adjustment to de 39 15
Total lon¢-term debt 1,93¢ 1,63¢
Less- current portior 4 5

Long-term debt, net of current portic $ 1,93( $ 1,62¢
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15. DEBT (continued)

Senior Notes

The Company issued $350 million of senior notedume 3, 2009 and $1.2 billion of senior notes otoler 31, 2006, which are collectively
referred to as the “Senior Notes.” The Senior Natesgeneral unsecured obligations of the Compadyankpari passuwith all existing ans
future senior unsecured indebtedness of the Company

The Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally gurieed by each of the Company’s current and fudaneestic subsidiaries that are a
borrower or guarantor under the Company’s Credite&gent (as defined below). The guarantees areuregkand rank equally in right of
payment with all other existing and future seniosecured indebtedness of the guarantors. The geasare effectively subordinated to
existing and future secured debt of the guararttotise extent of the assets securing that indebt=dn

The Company has the option to redeem all or pati@Senior Notes at any time at a “make whoéglemption price. The Company is sub
to certain covenants in connection with the issaarf¢he Senior Notes that it believes are usudlcastomary. The Company was in
compliance with these covenants as of Decembe2(Bil],.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company entémémlseveral interest rate swaps to manage itsasteate exposure by swapping $500
million of fixed rate to variable rate exposureigeated against its 6.50% senior notes. In thetfioguarter of 2011, the Company terminated
all existing interest rate swaps. The swaps wemgechat fair value and recorded as other assdtahilities, with a fair value adjustment to
long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sh&atsfair value adjustment to debt will be amortizleugh 2016 as a reduction to interest
expense in conjunction with the maturity date &f tiotes.

Senior Credit Facilities

On May 26, 2010, the Company entered into a ceggfitement (the “Credit Agreement”) that establishegw $800 million multi-currency
senior revolving credit facility (the “Senior Revolg Credit Facility”). Also on May 26, 2010, theef@pany terminated the credit agreement
dated as of October 31, 2006, which contained @ Billion multi-currency senior revolving creditdiity (the “Prior Revolving Credit
Facility”) and a $600 million senior term loan figi.

The available principal amount of $800 million ¢ tSenior Revolving Credit Facility includes botirlowings and letters of credit. The
Company amended the Senior Revolving Credit Fgdilitiuly 2011 to extend the maturity date to 20y¢6 and reduce the pricing.
Borrowings under the Senior Revolving Credit Fagithay be used for general corporate purposes anking capital. The Company has the
discretion to borrow under multiple options, whimovide for varying terms and interest rates intigdhe United States prime rate or
LIBOR plus a spread.

The Senior Revolving Credit Facility contains vaisaccovenants, including a maximum allowed leveragie and a minimum required
interest expense coverage ratio that the Compaligvbe are usual and customary for a senior unedatnedit agreement. The Company was
well within compliance with these covenants as e€@mber 31, 2011.

The Company had $42 million and $49 million oféett of credit outstanding under the Senior Revgl@nedit Facility at December 31, 2(
and 2010, respectivel
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15. DEBT (continued)

Receivables Securitization Facility

Included in long-term debt on the Consolidated BedaSheets are amounts outstanding under a ReleeRalthase Agreement (the “RPA”).
Owens Corning Sales, LLC and Owens Corning Rectagdll C, each a subsidiary of the Company, have5® $nillion RPA with certain
financial institutions. At December 31, 2011, thenfpany utilized the full amount permitted under tivens of the receivables securitization
facility. The securitization facility was amendead Becember 16, 2011 to extend maturity to Decer@bad.

The receivables securitization facility containsi@as covenants, including a maximum allowed legergatio and a minimum required
interest expense coverage ratio that the Compaligvbe are usual and customary for a securitizateility. The Company was well within
compliance with these covenants as of Decembe2(Bil],.

Owens Corning Receivables LLC's sole business stsf the purchase or acceptance through capitdibutions of trade receivables and
related rights from Owens Corning Sales, LLC aralshbsequent retransfer of or granting of a sgcumtiérest in such trade receivables and
related rights to certain purchasers party to tR& ROwens Corning Receivables LLC is a separata@ letity with its own separate creditors
who will be entitled, upon its liquidation, to batisfied out of Owens Corning Receivables LLC'seés$rior to any assets or value in Owens
Corning Receivables LLC becoming available to Ow@oming Receivables LL& equity holders. The assets of Owens Corning Raloks
LLC are not available to pay creditors of the Compar any other affiliates of the Company or Ow&usning Sales, LLC.

Debt Maturities

The aggregate maturities for all long-term dehiéssfor each of the five years following Decemhbkr2)11 and thereafter are presented in
the table below (in millions). The maturities atated at total cash the Company is contractualligated to pay third parties and are not
stated net of discount. The effects of the interatst swap are not included in the table below.

Period Maturities
2012 $ 4
2013 4
2014 162
2015 7
2016 791
2017 and beyon 942
Total $ 1,91C

Short-Term Debt

At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, shortborrowings were $28 million and $1 million, pestively. The short-term
borrowings for both periods consisted of variousrating lines of credit and working capital fadd&. Certain of these borrowings are
collateralized by receivables, inventories or propelhe borrowing facilities are typically for oryear renewable terms. The weighted
average interest rate on all si-term borrowings was approximately 7.4% for Decengigr2011 and 2.5% for December 31, 2(
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16. PENSION PLANS

The Company is committed to providing a competitvemefit package to employees. On August 31, 208€ompany elected to reorganize
its postemployment benefit package, by which themm@any enhanced its 401(k) Plan and froze a podidhe United States Pension Plan for
all salaried employees and a significant portiohatirly employees, effective January 1, 2010.

The following tables provides a reconciliation & tchange in the projected benefit obligation,diienge in plan assets and the net amount
recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheeth#ye¢ars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 (irons)li

Dec. 31, 201: Dec. 31, 201(

U.S. Non-U.S Total U.S. Non-U.S, Total
Change in Projected Benefit Obligatior
Benefit obligation at beginning of peric $1,05( $ 48¢ $1,53¢ $ 98: $  46€ $1,451
Service cos 9 5 14 9 5 14
Interest cos 53 25 78 55 23 78
Actuarial loss 81 18 99 85 14 99
Currency (gain) los — @) (7) — 2 2
Benefits paic (87) (22) (10¢) (82) (29 (200
Settlements / Curtailmen (@D} 3 4) — — —
Other — (@) (@) @ Q) (6)
Benefit obligation at end of peric $1,10¢ $ 503 $1,60¢ $1,05( $  48¢ $1,53¢
Change in Plan Asset:
Fair value of assets at beginning of pel $ 767 $ 364 $1,131 $ 744 $ 334 $1,07¢
Actual return on plan asse 38 1 39 87 33 12C
Currency gain (loss — (5) (5) — 3 3
Company contribution 94 23 117 17 15 32
Benefits paic (87 (22) (10¢) (872) (19 (200
Settlement: — 2 (2 — — —
Other — — — — (2) (2
Fair value of assets at end of per $ 812 $ 36C $1,172 $ 767 $ 364 $1,131
Funded statu $(299) $ (149 $(436)0 $(28Y) $ (129 $(409)

Dec. 31, 201! Dec. 31, 201(

U.S. Non-U.S Total U.S. Non-U.S. Total
Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Shis:
Prepaid pension co $ — $ 4 $ 4 $ — $ 3 $ 3
Accrued pension co~ current — (5) (5) (29) (13 (32
Accrued pension co~ nor-current (299 (142 (435) (264) (114) (37§
Net amount recognize $(299) $ (149 $(436) $(28) $ (129 % (409

Amounts Recorded in Accumulated OCI
Net actuarial los $@B47) $ 82 $(429 $(252) % (49 $ (299
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16. PENSION PLANS (continued)

The following table presents information about pihejected benefit obligation, accumulated benddligation (“ABO”) and plan assets of the
Company’s pension plans (in millions):

Dec. 31, 201! Dec. 31, 201(

U.S. Non-U.S Total U.S. Non-U.S Total
Plans with ABO in excess of fair value of plan aste
Projected benefit obligatic $1,10¢ $ 50C $1,60¢ $1,05( $  44¢ $1,49¢
Accumulated benefit obligatic $1,10¢ $ 44z $1,54 $1,05( $ 42t $1,47¢
Fair value of plan asse $ 81z $ 354 $116¢ $ 767 $ 33¢  $1,10¢f
Plans with fair value of assets irexcess of ABO
Projected benefit obligatic $ — $ 3 $ 3 3% — $ 40 $ 40
Accumulated benefit obligatic $ — $ 3 $ 3 $ — $ 18 $ 18
Fair value of plan asse $ — $ 6 $ 6 $ — $ 26 $ 26
Total projected benefit obligatic $1,10¢ $ 50z $1,60¢ $1,05( $  48¢ $1,53¢
Total accumulated benefit obligati $1,10¢ $  44F $1,55( $1,05( $  44c $1,49:
Total plan assel $ 81z $ 36C $1,172 $ 767 $ 364 $1,131

Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Benefit Oblégion

The following table presents weighted average apsions used to determine benefit obligations atntleasurement dates noted:

Dec. 31,
2013 201C

United States Plar

Discount rate 4.6(% 5.3(%

Expected return on plan ass 7.25% 7.7%%
Non-United States Plar

Discount rate 4.65% 5.21%

Expected return on plan ass 7.25% 7.25%

Rate of compensation incree 3.75% 3.8€%
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16. PENSION PLANS (continued)

Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost

The following table presents the components ofpeeibdic pension cost for the periods noted (iHiomk):

Twelve Months
Ended Dec. 31,
2011 201C 200¢

Service cost $ 14 $ 14 $ 21
Interest cos 78 78 82
Expected return on plan ass (92) (87) (88)
Amortization of actuarial los 15 3 —

Curtailment/settlement (gain) lo — (D) 1
Net periodic benefit cos $ 16 $ 7 $ 16

Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Net PeriodiRension Cost

The following table presents weighted-average apsioms used to determine net periodic pension dostthe periods noted:

Twelve Months
Ended Dec. 31,

2011 2010 200¢

United States Plar

Discount rate 5.3(% 5.8(% 6.85%

Expected return on plan ass 7.7%% 8.0(% 8.0(%

Rate of compensation incree N/A (a) N/A (a) 5.2%
Non-United States Plar

Discount rate 5.21% 5.41% 6.3€%

Expected return on plan ass 7.25% 7.25% 7.14%

Rate of compensation incree 3.86% 3.92% 3.84%

(&) Not applicable due to changes in plan made on Aubua009 that were effective beginning JanuargQ1,0.

The expected return on plan assets assumptiomiieedeby taking into consideration the target pdaset allocation, historical rates of return
on those assets, projected future asset classiseand net outperformance of the market by activestment managers. An asset return m

is used to develop an expected range of returq@dagminvestments over a 20 year period, with theeeted rate of return selected from a best
estimate range within the total range of projectslilts. The result is then rounded down to theast&5 basis points.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Earnings (Deficit)

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compaayded a debit of $99 million, net of tax, to OOf.the $(429) million balance in OCI,
$29 million is expected to be recognized as nebgar pension cost during 2012. For the year eridecember 31, 2010, the Company
recorded a debit of $21 million, net of tax, to O
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16. PENSION PLANS (continued)

Items Measured at Fair Value

The Company classifies and discloses pension @setsiin one of the following three categories:
Level 1: Quoted market prices in active marketsdentical assets.

Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobdésinputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroteat®y market data.

Plan Assets

The following table summarizes the fair values, Ewetls within the fair value hierarchy in whictetfair value measurements fall under
United States pension plan assets at Decembef21,dhd 2010 (in millions):

2011 2010

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
Equity

Domestic actively manage $ 11c $ — $ — $ 11z $ 124 $ — $ 124

Domestic passive inde — 49 — 49 — 79 79

International actively manage 101 — — 101 11¢ — 11¢

International passive inde — 16 — 16 — 18 18
Fixed income and cash equivale

Cash and cash equivalel 15 — — 15 12 — 12

Shor-term debr — 3 — 3 — 4 4

Corporate bond — 292 — 292 — 251 251

Government det — 101 — 101 — 81 81
Real estate investment tru 23 — — 23 32 — 32
Absolute return strategit — 21 47 68 — — —
Real asset — 31 — 31 — 47 47
Total United States plan ass $ 252 $ b5i1Z $ 47 $ 812 $ 287 $ 48C $ 767

The above asset allocations are in compliance téhJnited States pension plan’s current investrpelity. Level 3 assets include global
long/short, event driven, diversified arbitragestaissed securities, and other multi-strategy héduk vehicles. Some securities in these
assets are not readily marketable. The fair vafubese level 3 assets are determined by a mariatéet valuation based on price
information, volatility statistics, credit datagliidity statistics, various risk assessments ahdrdactors.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakaon€the plan assets measured at fair value ugingfisant unobservable inputs (Level 3
as follows:

Plan Assets
Using Significant
Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)
December 31, 2010 $ —
Purchases, issuances, and settlements 50
Unrealized losse 3

Interest and dividend incon —
December 31, 201 $ 47
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The following table summarizes the fair values, Ewetls within the fair value hierarchy in whictetfair value measurements fall under non-
United States pension plan assets at Decembef21, 2010 (in millions):

2011 2010

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
Equity

Domestic actively manage $ 32 $ — $ 32 $ 41 $ — $ 4

Domestic passive inde — 98 98 — 23 23

International actively manage 46 — 46 70 — 70

International passive inde — 18 18 — 77 77
Fixed income and cash equivale

Corporate bond — 16€ 16€ — 152 152
Total nor-United States plan asst $ 78 $ 282 $ 36C $ 111 $ 25Z $ 364

The above asset allocations are in compliance thémon-United States pension pkourrent investment policy. There were no assatsee
using Level 3 inputs.

Investment Strategy

The current investment policy for the United Statemsion plan is to have 38% of assets investeduities, 3% in real estate, 3% in real
assets, and 50% in intermediate and long-term fireome securities, and 6% in absolute returnesjias. Assets are rebalanced periodically

to conform to policy tolerances. The Company atyievaluates the reasonableness of its asset meagihanges in the projected benefit
obligation and market dynamics.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following table shows estimated future bergdigments from the Company’s pension plans (in om8):

Estimated
Benefit

Year Payments
2012 $95
2013 $97
2014 $97
2015 $98
2016 $100
2017-2021 $497

Contributions

Owens Corning expects to contribute $53 milliorash to the United States pension plan during 20another $21 million to non-United

States plans. Actual contributions to the plans of@nge as a result of a variety of factors, indlgahanges in laws that impact funding
requirements
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Defined Contribution Plans

The Company sponsors two defined contribution plaimgh are available to substantially all Unitedt®s employees. The Company matc
a percentage of employee contributions up to amawi level and, beginning January 1, 2010, conteb@®6 of an employee’s wages
regardless of employee contributions. The Companggnized expense of $27 million, $30 million a2® $nillion during the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivelgteslto these plans.

17. POSTEMPLOYMENT AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS O THER THAN PENSIONS

The Company maintains health care and life inswedenefit plans for certain retired employees &ed dependents. The health care pla
the United States are non-funded and pay eithestt@d percentages of covered medically necesspanses, after subtracting payments by
Medicare or other providers and after stated déolesthave been met, or (2) fixed amounts of médigpense reimbursement.

Employees become eligible to participate in thetéthiStates health care plans upon retirementyftla@e accumulated 10 years of service
after age 45, 48 or 50, depending on the categoeynployee. For employees hired after Decembe@5, the Company does not provide
subsidized retiree health care. Some of the plemsantributory, with some retiree contributiongusted annually. The Company has
reserved the right to change or eliminate thesefitgrians subject to the terms of collective bantey agreements.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company ratifiedtain plan amendments which reduced the prajdmeefit obligation at year end by
approximately $30 million. The Company will implent@an Employee Group Waiver Plan (EGWP) effectaeudry 1, 2013 to manage its
prescription drug benefits for certain retiree gr@urhe Company also negotiated with certain uaemhiemployees to increase the eligibility
age for retiree medical benefits and to eliminhtefost-65 retiree reimbursement account benefirftployees retiring on or after January 1,
2014.

The following table provides a reconciliation oétbhange in the projected benefit obligation ardniét amount recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets for the years endeenlesr 31, 2011 and 2010 (in millions):

Dec. 31, 201: Dec. 31, 201(
u.S. Non-U.S Total U.S. Non-U.S, Total

Change in Projected Benefit Obligatior

Benefit obligation at beginning of peric $ 27¢ $ 21 $ 30C $ 272 $ 25 $ 297
Service cos 3 — 3 3 — 3
Interest cos 13 1 14 14 1 15
Actuarial loss (gain 4 2 2 10 (6) 4
Currency loss (gair — Q) (1) — 1 1
Plan amendmen (30) — (30 — — —

Benefits paic a7 Q) (18) (22) (@D} (22
Curtailment gair — 2 2 — — —

Other — — — 1 1 2
Benefit obligation at end of peric $244 % 20 $264 $27¢ $ 21  $30C

Funded statu $249 $ (20 $(2649 $79 $  (21)  $(300)
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Dec. 31, 201: Dec. 31, 201(
u.S. Non-U.S Total U.S. Non-U.S, Total

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidate
Balance Sheets

Accrued benefit obligatio— current $(24) $ 2 $@5 $29 3 1) $ (25
Accrued benefit obligatio— nor-current (220 (19 (239 (255) (20 (275)
Net amount recognize $244) $ (20) $(264) $(279 $ (21)  $(300)
Amounts Recorded in Accumulated OCI
Net actuarial gail $24 % 5 $29 $ 21 $ 8 $ 29
Net prior service cred 30 — 30 — — —
Net amount recognize $ 54 $ 5 $ 59 $ 21 $ 8 $ 29
Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Benefit Oblédions
The following table presents the discount ratesl tisaletermine the benefit obligations:
Dec. 31,

2011 201(C
United States plans 4.35% 5.05%
Non-United States plar 4.1(% 4.8(%

Components of Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit st

The following table presents the components ofpeeibdic postretirement benefit cost (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
Service cost $ 3 $ 3 $ 3
Interest cos 14 15 198
Amortization of actuarial gai (@D} — 2
Curtailment gair 2 — —
Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢ $ 14 $ 18 $ 20
Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Net PeriodiRostretirement Benefit Cost
The following table presents the discount ratesl iseletermine net periodic postretirement beroefit:
Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31,

2011 201C 200¢

United States plans 5.05% 5.6(% 7.05%

Non-United States plar 4.8(% 5.15% 7.2(%
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(continued)

The following table presents health care cost trabels used to determine net periodic postretir¢imemefit cost, as well as information
regarding the ultimate rate and the year in whighrtultimate rate is reached:

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009

United States plar

Initial rate at end of yee 7.0(% 7.0(% 7.0(%

Ultimate rate 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(%

Year in which ultimate rate is reach 2021 202( 201¢
Non-United States plar

Initial rate at end of yes 6.8(% 7.0(% 9.0(%

Ultimate rate 4.8(% 4.8(% 5.0(%

Year in which ultimate rate is reach 201¢ 201¢ 201¢

The health care cost trend rate assumption canadaignificant effect on the amounts reported.|llDstrate, a ongercentage point change
the December 31, 2011 assumed health care codtrmwould have the following effects (in mill®n

1-Percentage Point

Increase Decreas:

Increase (decrease) in total service cost andeisttenst components of net periodic
postretirement benefit co $ 1 $ Q)
Increase (decrease) of accumulated postretirenasfib obligatior $ 10 $ 9)

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Earnings (Deficit)

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compaayded a credit of $19 million, net of tax, to O&pproximately $6 million of the $59
million balance in accumulated OCI is expecteddadrognized as net periodic postretirement becedit during 2012. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, the Company recorded a deBit®million, net of tax, to OCI.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following table shows estimated future bergdigments from the Company’s postretirement bepéfits (in millions):

Estimated Estimated
Benefit Benefit
Payments Payments
Estimated
Before Net of
Medicare Medicare Medicare
Year Subsidy Subsidy Subsidy
2012 $ 25 $ 2 $ 23
2013 $ 22 $ — $ 22
2014 $ 22 $ — $ 22
2015 $ 22 $ — $ 22
2016 $ 21 $ — $ 21
2017-2021 $ 98 $ — $ 98
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Postemployment Benefits

The Company may also provide benefits to formenactive employees after employment but beforeegetent under certain conditions.
These benefits include continuation of benefithsas health care and life insurance coverage. ttrmi@d postemployment benefits liability
at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $28 million &¥drillion, respectively. The net periodic posteayphent benefit expense was $1
million, $1 million and $4 million for the years @&d December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER MATTERS

The Company is involved in various legal proceedirgating to employment, product liability and etimatters. The Company regularly
reviews the status of these proceedings alongledtal counsel. Liabilities for such items are releat when it is probable that the liability has
been incurred and when the amount of the liabdéig be reasonably estimated. Liabilities are adgusthen additional information becomes
available. Management believes that the ultimagpatiition of these matters will not have a matexiblerse effect on the Company’s
operations or financial condition taken as a whole.

Litigation
The Company has nothing to report under this item.
Environmental Matters

We have been deemed by the United States Envirdiair@rotection Agency to be a Potentially Respdeditarty (“PRP”) with respect to
certain sites under the Comprehensive Environm&w#aponse Compensation and Liability Act. We hdse been deemed a PRP under
similar state or local laws and in other instartber PRPs have brought suits against us as a@&RBrftribution under such federal, state, or
local laws. At December 31, 2011, we had envirortaleemediation liabilities as a PRP at 20 sitegmghwve have a continuing legal
obligation to either complete remedial actionsamtdbute to the completion of remedial actionpart of a group of PRPs. For these sites we
estimate a reserve to reflect environmental liibdithat have been asserted or are probable eftiass in which liabilities are probable and
reasonably estimable. At December 31, 2011, oervesfor such liabilities was $8 million.

Other Iltems

On December 17, 2010, the French tax authoritiedenaaclaim in the amount of approximately 123 milleuros against a subsidiary the
Company acquired as part of the 2007 Acquisitidre Tlaim relates to transactions that occurred poithe closing of the 2007 Acquisition.
Pursuant to the purchase agreement governing e 2€quisition, Saint-Gobain is required to indefpi@wens Corning and its subsidiaries
for pre-closing tax claims and related damagesyradly fees and expenses. On assessment of thmatfon available to the Company,
including discussions with Saint-Gobain, the Comyplaalieves that it is likely that the claim will hbe sustained during the appeal process;
therefore, the Company has not recorded an acfutie claim or a corresponding receivable witbpext to the Company’s contractual
indemnification rights. The Company does not expleisttax claim to have a material impact to itsulés.
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19. STOCK COMPENSATION
2010 Stock Plan

On April 22, 2010, the Company'’s stockholders appdbthe Owens Corning 2010 Stock Plan (the “20b@kSPlan”) which replaced the
Owens Corning 2006 Stock Plan (the “2006 Stock'Blas amended and restated. The 2010 Stock Ptaonrézes grants of stock options,
stock appreciation rights, stock awards, restristedk awards, restricted stock units, bonus stogkrds and performance stock awards. Such
shares of common stock include shares that werli&hbleabut not granted, or which were granted beteannot issued or delivered due to
expiration, termination, cancellation or forfeitwksuch awards. At December 31, 2011, the numbghares remaining available under the
2010 Stock Plan for all stock awards was 3.7 nillio

Stock Options

The Company has granted stock options under itdcgme@ emergence equity program, its officer appoént program and its long-term
incentive plans (“LTIP”). The Company calculateweighted-average grant-date fair value using alB®aholes valuation model for options
granted. Compensation expense for options is med$iased on the fair market value of the optiotherdate of grant, and is recognized
straight-line basis over a four year vesting perlacdgeneral, the exercise price of each optionrdadwas equal to the market price of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant anapéion’s maximum term is 10 years. The volatiligsamption was based on a
benchmark study of our peers.

During 2011, 412,200 stock options were granteti witveighted-average grant date fair value of 8.588sumptions used in the Company’
Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate the gdaité fair value were expected volatility of 44.38%pected dividends of 0%, expected
term of 6.26 years and a risk-free interest rat2.@%o.

During 2010, 515,200 stock options were granteti witveighted-average grant date fair value of $¥L1A8sumptions used in the Company’
Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate the gdaité fair value were expected volatility of 52.08%pected dividends of 0%, expected
term of 6.25 years and a risk-free interest rat2.8o.

During 2009, 922,500 stock options were granteti witveighted-average grant date fair value of $5888umptions used in the Company’s
Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate the gdate fair value were expected volatility of 37.48%pected dividends of 0%, expected
term of 6.25 years, and a risk-free interest ra 2.

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 201@@08, the Company recognized expense of $4 mil8million and $7 million
respectively, related to the Company’s stock opgtiai which $6 million in 2009 was recorded under taption of employee emergence
equity program expense on the Consolidated Statsneézarnings. As of December 31, 2011 there véasiflion of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to stock options. Thsttisexpected to be recognized over a weightedageeperiod of 2.58 years. The total
aggregate intrinsic value of options outstandingfd3ecember 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 was $12am;jl$19 million and $11 million,
respectively. Cash received from option exercisas $40 million and $2 million for the years endeztBmber 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. No cash was received from option @ges in 2009. Tax benefits realized from tax dédus associated with option exercises
totaled $1 million and less than $1 million for §®ars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 respgctNeltax benefit was realized in 20(
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19. STOCK COMPENSATION (continued)

The following table summarizes the Company’s stogtion activity:

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010 Dec. 31, 2009
Weightec- Weightec- Weighted-
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Beginning Balanc: 3,397,85! $ 25.0¢ 3,002,47! $ 25.0z 2,098,37! $ 29.9(
Granted 412,20( 33.9¢ 515,20( 25.6: 922,50( 13.81
Exercisec (374,739 25.7¢ (84,050) 28.7¢ — —
Forfeited (141,779 21.1¢ (35,762 21.0¢ (18,400 19.4¢
Ending Balanct 3,293,54! $ 26.2¢ 3,397,85! $ 25.0¢ 3,002,47 $ 25.02
The following table summarizes information abowt €@ompany’s options outstanding and exercisable:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Remaining Number Remaining
Range o Contractual Exercisable a Contractual
Exercise Options
Prices QOutstanding Life Exercise Price Dec. 31, 201; Life Exercise Price
$7.57 - $34.94 3,293,54! 6.2¢€ $ 26.2¢ 2,198,76: 5.3¢ $ 27.07

Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

The Company has granted restricted stock awardsestidcted stock units (collectively referred "gestricted stock”™) under its employee
emergence equity program, non-employee directayrpros, LTIP and officer appointment program. Conspéinn expense for restricted
stock is measured based on the market price dcfttiod at date of grant and is recognized on agsitdine basis over the four year vesting
period. Stock restrictions are subject to alterwvatging plans for death, disability, approvedyeegtirement and involuntary termination, o
various periods ending in 2014.

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 201@@08, the Company recognized expense of $13 mil§aé million and $32 million
respectively, related to the Company’s restrictedls of which $19 million in 2009 was recordedeimployee emergence equity program
expense on the Consolidated Statements of Earnisgst December 31, 2011, there was $21 milliototdl unrecognized compensation ¢
related to restricted stock. That cost is expetrdit recognized over a weighted-average peri@ds¥ years. The total grant date fair value
of shares vested during the years ended Decemb@031, 2010 and 2009, was $9 million, $17 millaxd $88 million, respectivel
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A summary of the status of the Company’s planslbatrestricted stock issued as of December 311,210 and 2009 and changes during
the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, 2012@d@ are presented below:

Twelve Months Ended

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010 Dec. 31, 2009
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Grant Date Number of Grant Date Grant Date
Number of Number of

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Beginning Balance 1,987,70! $ 19.7¢ 2,177,95: $ 17.3¢ 4,025,93 $ 27.6¢
Granted 565,98: 33.47 740,37! 26.2¢ 1,171,88: 13.9¢
Vested (476,65() 18.8: (873,49() 19.3¢ (2,909,46) 30.1:
Forfeited (135,295 21.67 (57,137 18.9¢ (110,407 21.8¢
Ending Balanct 1,941,74; $ 23.8¢ 1,987,70! $ 19.7¢ 2,177,95: $ 17.3¢

Performance Stock Awards and Performance StocksUnit

The Company has granted performance stock awadipexformance stock units (collectively referrech$o*PSUs”) as a part of its LTIP, of
which 50 percent will be settled in stock and 5@cpet will be settled in cash. The amount of PSlimately distributed is contingent on
meeting various stockholder return goals.

Compensation expense for PSUs settled in stocle@sared based on the grant date fair value amtt@gnized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. Compensation expense for P8tiled in cash is measured based on the fair \altlee end of each quarter and is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the vggigriod. Vesting will be pro-rated based on thmber of full months employed during the
performance period in the case of death, disabiityange in control or involuntary termination, gmd+ated awards earned will be paid at
end of the three-year period.

For all PSUs, respectively, during the period endedember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Compangnéed expense of $7 million, $13
million and $13 million. As of December 31, 201liete was $8 million of total unrecognized compensatost related to PSUs. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 1.68 years.

2011 Grant

During 2011, the Company granted PSUs. The 2011t gests after a three-year period based on thep@oy's total stockholder return
relative to the performance of the components ®3&P 500 Index for the respective three-year pefithe amount of PSUs earned will vary
from 0% to 200% of PSUs awarded depending on tladive stockholder return performance.

For the 2011 grant, the portion of the PSUs settlathsh will be revalued every reporting periodilithe award is fully vested. As a result,
compensation expense recognized will be adjustddgesvious surplus compensation expense recogmiielde reversed or additional
expense will be recognized. For the period endezkBéer 31, 2011, the Company estimated the faireval the cash PSUs granted using a
Monte Carlo simulation that used various assumpttbat include expected volatility of 40.6%, a rigde rate of 0.3% and an expected term
of 2.26 years. Expected volatility was based oerechmark study of our peers. The risk-free intera@st was based on zero coupon United
States Treasury bills at the time of revaluatiome Expected term represents the period beginnigmleer 31, 2011 to the end of the three-
year performance perio
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For the 2011 grant, the fair value of the portiéf®8Us settled in stock was estimated at the gtatet using a Monte Carlo simulation that
used various assumptions that include expectediltglaf 57.2%, a risk free interest rate of 1.2d an expected term of 2.9 years. Expe
volatility was based on a benchmark study of o@rpeThe risk-free interest rate was based onamrpon United States Treasury bills at the
grant date. The expected term represents the peadodthe grant date to the end of the three-yesiopmance period.

2010 Grant

During 2010, the Company granted PSUs. This grasitsvafter a three-year period based on the Cortgpntgl stockholder return relative to
the performance of the components of the S&P 5@6xror the same three-year period. The amounstfsPearned will vary from 0% to
200% of PSUs awarded depending on the relativéistdder return performance.

For the 2010 grant, the portion of the PSUs settlathsh is revalued every reporting period uh# award is fully vested. As a result,
compensation expense recognized will be adjustddgegvious surplus compensation expense recogmiitelde reversed or additional
expense will be recognized. For the period endetkBéer 31, 2011, the Company estimated the faieval the PSUs settled in cash using a
Monte Carlo simulation that used various assumpttbat include expected volatility of 39.5%, a +fede interest rate of 0.2% and an
expected term of 1.0 years, which is the remaififagf the grant. Expected volatility was basedaobenchmark study of our peers. The risk-
free interest rate was based on zero coupon USitates Treasury bills at the time of revaluatidme Expected term represents the period
beginning December 31, 2011 to the end of the theae performance period.

For the 2010 grant, the fair value of the portiéf®8Us settled in stock was estimated at the gtatet using a Monte Carlo simulation that
used various assumptions that include expectediltylaf 58.8%, a risk-free interest rate of 1.4%d an expected term of 2.9 years, which
was the remaining life of the grant. Expected \lifatvas based on a benchmark study of our péiie.risk-free interest rate was based on
zero coupon United States Treasury bills at thatgtate. The expected term represents the pewod the grant date to the end of the three-
year performance perio

2009 Grant

During 2009, the Company granted PSUs. This grasitsvafter a three-year period based on the Cortgptartgl stockholder return relative to
the performance of the components of the S&P 5@6xror the same three-year period. The amounstfsPearned will vary from 0% to
200% of PSUs awarded depending on the relativéistdder return performance.

For the 2009 grant, the portion of the PSUs settlathsh is revalued every reporting period uh#l award is fully vested. As a result,
compensation expense recognized will be adjustddegvious surplus compensation expense recogmiitelde reversed or additional
expense will be recognized. For the period endetkBéer 31, 2011, the Company estimated the faieval the PSUs settled in cash using
an average of the Company’s closing stock pricepayed against the average stock price of our peensthe vesting period of the grant.

For the 2009 grant, the fair value of the portiéf®8Us settled in stock was estimated at the gtatet using a Monte Carlo simulation that
used various assumptions that include expectedilitglaf 51.6%, a risk-free interest rate of 1.2%d an expected term of 2.9 years, which
was the remaining life of the grant. Expected \lifatvas based on a benchmark study of our péirs.risk free interest rate was based on
zero coupon United States Treasury bills at thatgtate. The expected term represents the pewod the grant date to the end of the three-
year performance perio
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A summary of the status of the Company’s planshbatPSUs, of which 50 percent will be settledtatis and 50 percent will be settled in

cash, as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 ardjeb during the twelve months ended December(31l,, 2010 and 2009 are presented
below:

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010 Dec. 31, 2009
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Number of Number of Number of

PSUs Fair Value PSUs Fair Value PSUs Fair Value
Beginning Balance 754,60 $ 23.7¢ 1,064,29: $ 18.6: 1,020,91! $ 18.9¢
Granted 354,56¢ 38.17 470,58 30.2¢ 503,50( 27.51
Vested (526,609 21.9¢ (739,119 19.91 (234,24 29.8¢
Forfeited/cancelle: (73,947 25.9¢ (41,159 34.0¢ (225,885 28.3i
Ending Balanct 508,61¢ $ 35.3¢ 754,60: $ 23.7¢ 1,064,29: $ 18.6:

20. COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

The following table presents the comprehensiveiegsnattributable to Owens Corning (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
Net earning: $ 281 $ 94C $ 67
Currency translation adjustme (39 26 45
Pension and other postretirement adjustment (netxadf $(22), $(35), and $12 for the periods en
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respect (80) (36) (64)
Deferred income (loss) on hedging (net of tax df)$$0, and $(1) for the periods ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respecti (2 2 18
Comprehensive earnin 16C 932 66
Less: Comprehensive earnings attributable to ndnaiing interests 5 8 4
Comprehensive earnings attributable to Owens Cagi $ 15¢ $ 924 $ 62

A summary of the balances within each classificatibaccumulated OCI (deficit) as of December 311, 2and 2010 follows (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010
Currency translation adjustment $ 24 $ 63
Pension and other postretirement adjustment, niatx (337) (257)

Deferred loss on hedging transactions, net o 2 —
Accumulated OCI (deficit $ (319 $ (199
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21. WARRANTS

The Company issued 17.5 million Series A warrargprésenting the right to purchases one shareed€tdmpany’s common stock for
$43.00) and 7.8 million Series B warrants (repréagrthe right to purchase one share of the Comgasgmmon stock for $45.25) on
October 31, 2006, all of which remain outstanding exercisable as of December 31, 2011. Such warexpire on October 31, 2013. The
Company has accounted for these warrants as agsftyments since there is no option for cash ticash settlement when the warrants are
exercised. Future exercises and forfeitures willoe the amount of warrants. Exercises will inceeage amount of common stock
outstanding and additional paid in capital.

The aggregate fair value of the warrants at Oct8te2006 of $143 million and $60 million for theri&s A warrants and Series B warrants,
respectively, was estimated using the Black-Schadisation method with the following weighted-avgeaassumptions:.

Warrants
Series £ Series E
Expected annual dividends 1.5% 1.5%
Risk free interest rai 4.6% 4.6%
Expected term (in year 7.C 7.C
Volatility 34.(% 34.(%

22. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table summarizes the number of shargstanding as well as our basic and diluted egeper share for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 (in millions, pkper share amounts):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
Net earnings attributable to Owens Corn $ 27¢€ $ 93¢ $ 64
Weightec-average number of shares outstanding used for basiings per sha 122.5 125.¢ 124.¢
Non-vested restricted and performance sh 0.7 0.8 2.3
Options to purchase common st¢ 0.2 0.2 —
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding @mdhon equivalent shares used for diluted
earnings per sha 123.t 126.€ 127.1
Earnings per common share attributable to OwengiGgicommon stockholder
Basic $ 2.2F $ 7.4% $ 0.51
Diluted $ 228 $ 7.37 $ 0.5C

Basic earnings per share is calculated by divigi@gings attributable to Owens Corning by the weidtaverage number of shares of the
Company’s common stock outstanding during the pex@utstanding shares consist of issued sharesrésssry stock.

On August 1, 2010, the Company approved a new sharéack program under which the Company is aigkdrto repurchase up to
10 million shares of the Company’s outstanding camrstock (the “Repurchase Program”). The RepurcRasgram authorizes the
Company to repurchase shares through open m;
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22. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

privately negotiated, or other transactions. Theaaumber of shares repurchased will dependmoimgj, market conditions and other factors
and will be at the Company’s discretion. As of Dmber 31, 2011, 3.7 million shares were availabtedpurchase under the Repurchase
Program.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the numtsdrasés used in the calculation of diluted earnpegsshare did not include 0.8 million
options to purchase common stock, 17.5 million cammquivalent shares from Series A Warrants omilllon common equivalent shares
from Series B Warrants due to their anti-dilutifieet.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the numtsdranés used in the calculation of diluted earnpegsshare did not include 0.2 million
performance shares, 2.4 million options to purcliasemon stock, 17.5 million common equivalent shdrem Series A Warrants or
7.8 million common equivalent shares from Serie&/&rants due to their anti-dilutive effect.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the numtsdrasés used in the calculation of diluted earnpegsshare did not include 3.0 million
options to purchase common stock, 17.5 million cammquivalent shares from Series A Warrants omillon common equivalent shares
from Series B Warrants due to their anti-dilutifieet.

23. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Items Measured at Fair Value

The Company classifies and discloses assets avilitiés carried at fair value in one of the follog three categories:
Level 1: Quoted market prices in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobgésinputs that are corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroteat®y market data.

The following table summarizes the fair values, lwls within the fair value hierarchy in whictetfair value measurements fall, for assets
and liabilities measured on a recurring basis d&3emfember 31, 2011 (in millions):

Quoted Prices

Significant
Total in Active Other Significant
Measurec Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical

at Fair Assets Inputs Inputs

Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 11 $ 11 $ — $ —
Derivative asset 3 — 3 —
Total asset $ 14 $ 11 $ 3 $ —
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities $ (6 $ 00— $ (6 $ 00—

Total liabilities $ (6) $ — $ (6) $ —
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Cash equivalents, by their nature, utilize Leveifduts in determining fair value. The Company meesuthe value of its natural gas hedge
contracts and foreign currency forward contractsgisevel 2 inputs. The fair value of the Company&ural gas hedges is determined by a
mark to market valuation based on forward curvésgusbservable market prices and the fair valugsdbreign currency forward contracts
determined using observable market transactionsen-the-counter markets.

The following table provides a rollforward of assand liabilities measured at fair value on a néggrbasis using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) (in millions):

Fair Value
Measurements Usin

Significant
Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)
Derivatives
December 31, 2010 $ (@)
Total gains included in net earnings attributabl®©tens Cornin 1
December 31, 201 $ =

Items Disclosed at Fair Value

Long-term notes receivable

The fair value has been calculated using the ergduoture cash flows discounted at market intaasts. The Company believes that the
carrying amounts reasonably approximate the fdiresaof long-term notes receivable. Long-term notegivable were $47 million as of
December 31, 2011 and are included in other norentiassets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Long-term debt

The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt basn calculated based on quoted market pricebdosame or similar issues, or on the
current rates offered to the Company for debt efshme remaining maturities.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company’s 6.50% seamites due 2016 were trading at approximately 109f@ar value, the 7.00% senior
notes due 2036 were trading at approximately 10fp&aovalue and the 9.00% senior notes due 2018 wading at approximately 121% of
par value.

At December 31, 2011, the Company determined teabbok value of the remaining long-term debt instnts approximates market value.
This approach, which utilized indicative markeesafor a new debt issuance, approximated the #irevof the remaining long-term debt at
$360 million.
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24. INCOME TAXES

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009
Earnings before taxe
United State: $ 20z $ 2 $ 11z
Foreign 151 94 (32
Total $ 352 $ 96 $ 81
Income tax expense (benefi
Current
United State: $ (14) $ 49 $ 8
State and loce 2 — (1)
Foreign 28 27 4
Total curren 16 76 11
Deferred
United State: 61 (881) (6)
State and loce 7 (55) —
Foreign (10 20 9
Total deferrec 58 (91€) 3
Total income tax expense (bene $ 74 $ (840 $ 14

The reconciliation between the United States fddstadutory rate and the Company’s effective incdanerate from continuing operations is:

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2011 2010 200¢
United States federal statutory rate 35% 35% 35%
State and local income taxes, net of federal tavefie 2 2 6
Foreign tax rate differentii (20 (30 4
Valuation allowanct 2 (944 (27)
Uncertain tax positions and settleme 3 53 5
Goodwill — 11 —
Other, ne! (5 @ G
Effective tax rate 21% _(879% 17%

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has not peavidr withholding or United States federal incotaees on approximately $1.254
billion of accumulated undistributed earnings sffitreign subsidiaries and affiliates as they aresiered by management to be either
permanently reinvested or, if such earnings wemdtted, the taxes payable on such remittance wooltde material. Quantification of the
deferred tax liability, if any, associated with $keundistributed earnings is not practicable.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had federak stiadl foreign net operating loss carryforwards2268 billion, $3.286 billion and $633
million, respectively. If not utilized, the federahd state net operating Ic
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carryforwards will expire through 2028 while thed@n net operating loss carryforwards will begirekpire in 2012, with the majority
having no expiration date. Certain of these losg/f@wards are subject to limitation as a restithe changes of control that resulted from
the Company’s emergence from bankruptcy in 2006taadcquisition of certain foreign entities in Z0Blowever, the Company believes
that these limitations on its loss carryforwardfi mot result in a forfeiture of any of the carryfieards.

The cumulative temporary differences giving ris¢he deferred tax assets and liabilities at DecerBbge2011 and 2010 are as follows (in
millions):

2011 2010
Deferred Deferred
Deferred
Deferred Tax
Tax Tax Tax

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Other employee benefits $ 16¢€ $ — $ 177 $ —
Pension plan 13€ — 14C —
Operating loss carryforwart 1,04(C — 1,00(C —
Depreciatior — 37€ — 37¢
Amortization — 38C — 391
State and local taxe 4 — 4 —

Other 15E — 167 —
Subtotal 1,501 75€ 1,48¢ 77C

Valuation allowance (189 — (174) —
Total deferred taxe $ 1,314 $ 75€ $ 131 $ 77C

The Company had current deferred tax assets ofrflfidn and $90 million which are included in othasrrent assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2Gk&atévely.

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporafferdinces between amounts of assets and liabifitienancial reporting purposes and-
basis of such assets and liabilities as measuréer@nacted tax laws and regulations, as well alsSN@x credit and other carryforwards. A
valuation allowance will be recorded to reduce defittax assets if, based on all available evidghé®considered more likely than not that
some portion or all of the recorded deferred tasetswill not be realized in future periods.

The valuation allowance of $187 million and $174liovi as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respegtivelated to tax assets for certain
state and foreign jurisdictions.

In 2010, the Company reversed $937 million in vibraallowance primarily associated with its Unitethtes federal and state deferred tax
assets. The valuation allowance was originallytdistaed in 2008 based primarily on negative evigeoicthe Company’s losses before
income taxes in the United States during 2007 &@820ther negative evidence considered at thewiagethe Company’s then estimates for
nearterm results in the United States. Financial penfonce in the United States during that time peniad adversely impacted by the dec

in United States housing starts. Since that tiramiags performance in our United States operati@ssstrengthened and has resulted in
positive cumulative earnings in recent years aluag 30, 2010, which was the primary evidence ursddtermining to reverse the valuation
allowance in the second quarter. Other positivdente considered was the Company’s forecast, whitbates the Company’s positive
earnings trend will continue in the Ic-term.
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The Company, or one of its subsidiaries, files medax returns in the United States and otherdargirisdictions. The Company is no lon
subject to U.S. federal tax examinations for ydefere 2008 or state and foreign examinations éary before 2001. Due to the potential for

resolution of federal, state and foreign examimaj@nd the expiration of various statutes of i, it is reasonably possible that the gross
unrecognized tax benefits balance may change wiltlemext 12 months by a range of zero to $15 onilli

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inlimis):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009

Balance at beginning of period $ 21C $ 167 $ 95
Tax positions related to the current y

Gross addition 8 64 6

Gross reduction — (18) —
Tax positions related to prior ye¢

Gross addition 6 88 87

Gross reduction (46) (64) (6)
Settlement: (7 (24) —
Lapses on statutes of limitatio @® (©) (15
Balance at end of peric $ 17C $ 21C $ 167

The Company classifies all interest and penaltei®@ome tax expense. As of December 31, 2011, 26d®009, the Company recognized
$13 million, $20 million and $19 million respectlyein liabilities for tax related interest and péties on its Consolidated Balance Sheets and
$(15) million, $0 million and $2 million, respectly, of interest and penalty expense on its Codatéd Statements of Earnings. If these
unrecognized tax benefits were to be recognizexf Becember 31, 2011, the Company’s income tax msgp&vould decrease by about $144
million.

25. ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@dssued authoritative guidance on the presentati comprehensive income requiring
companies to present the total of comprehensivenie; the components of net income, and the comp®éther comprehensive income
either in a single continuous statement of comprsive income or in two separate but consecutivierstants. This guidance eliminates the
option to present components of other comprehernisomme as part of the Consolidated Statementsowk8olders’ Equity. There are no
changes to the components that are recognized ing@ne or other comprehensive income under ctiecounting guidance. The
amendments in this update are to be applied regotisgely and are effective for fiscal years, angiim periods within those years, beginning
after December 15, 2011. The Company believes thigrbe no material impact on its Consolidateddfinial Statements.

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stashsi&oard issued updated guidance on the periostingeof goodwill for impairment. Tt
updated guidance gives companies the option t@pera qualitative assessment to determine whetligemore likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carryamgount and, thus, whether further impairmentigsit necessary. The updated accounting
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginningabecember 15, 2011, with early adoption permitithe Company elected to ea
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adopt this guidance for impairment testing effexfior the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 .aboption of this authoritative guidance
had no impact on the Consolidated Financial Statésne

26. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)

Select quarterly financial information is presenitethe tables below for the quarterly periods @12 and 2010, respectively (in millions,
except per share amounts):

Quarter

First Secon( Third Fourth
2011
Net sales $1,23¢ $ 1,451 $1,45( $1,19¢
Cost of sale: 1,03¢ 1,172 1,13¢ 96€
Gross margir 20z 27¢ 317 23C
Earnings before interest and ta: 61 13t 177 88
Interest expense, n 25 28 28 27
Income tax expens 11 29 23 11
Net earnings attributable to Owens Corn 24 78 124 50

BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARI
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNINC
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ 0.1¢ $ 0.6: $ 1.0Z $ 0.41

DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARI
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNINC
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ 0.1¢ $ 0.6Z $ 1.01 $ 041

During the three months ended March 31, 2011, tvagany recorded additional pre-tax income of $4iomil($4 million after tax) related to
prior periods. The effect was not material to poergly issued financial statements.

Quarter
First Secon( Third Fourth

2010

Net sales $1,26¢ $1,37¢ $1,18¢ $1,16¢
Cost of sale: 1,02¢ 1,094 95C 96¢
Gross margir 23€ 284 23€ 20C
Earnings (loss) before interest and ta 83 12t 69 (72)
Interest expense, n 26 31 28 25
Income tax expense (benel 9 (844) (29 14
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Cort 48 937 58 (110

BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNINC
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ 0.3¢ $ 7.3¢ $ 0.4€ $ (0.89)

DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNINC
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ 0.3¢ $ 7.3¢ $ 0.4¢€ $ (0.89)
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During the three months and six months ended JOn2.0 the Company recorded additional pre-taxeese of $4 million ($5 million after
tax) and pre-tax income of $2 million ($2 millioftex tax), respectively related to prior periodbeTeffect was not material to previously
issued financial statements.

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following Condensed Consolidating Financiat&teents present the financial information requiréth respect to those entities which
guarantee certain of the Company'’s debt. The Ca®teGonsolidating Financial Statements are predemehe equity method. Under this
method, the investments in subsidiaries are recoatieost and adjusted for the Company’s sharkeo$tibsidiaries’ cumulative results of
operations, capital contributions, distributionsl ather equity changes. The principal eliminatiatries eliminate investment in subsidiaries
and intercompany balances and transactions.

Guarantor and Nonguarantor Financial Statements

As described in Note 15, Owens Corning has issuel [fillion aggregate principal amount of Seniottééo The Senior Notes and the Senior
Credit Facilities are guaranteed, fully, unconditity and jointly and severally, by each of Owersring’s current and future 100% owned
material domestic subsidiaries that is a borrowex guarantor under Owens Cornis@redit Agreement, which permits changes to timeet
guarantors in certain situations (collectively, tlaiarantor Subsidiaries”). The remaining subsidmhave not guaranteed the Senior Notes
and the Senior Credit Facilities (collectively, tiNonguarantor Subsidiaries”).

The Company discovered that $105 million and $1@Bom of interest payments on parent loans wereappropriately classified between
the Parent and the Guarantor Subsidiaries witrer2@10 and 2009 Condensed Consolidating Staterok@@sh Flows, respectively. The
misclassification impacted previously reported Raead Guarantor Subsidiaries net cash flow froerations and net cash flow from
financing activities. In addition, the Company digered that $265 million of pension liabilities amdated deferred tax assets of $101 million
were not appropriately classified between the Rared Guarantor Subsidiaries within the 2010 CorddrConsolidating Balance Sheet. 1
item also resulted in insignificant revisions te 2010 and 2009 Condensed Consolidating StateroEhisome. The effect of correcting
these classifications was not material to the 2012009 consolidating financial information, arthted amounts presented for 2010 and
2009 have been revised. The Company will revisQtsl quarterly consolidating financial informatiahen filed in comparison to the 2012
quarterly information
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

(in millions)
Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidatec
NET SALES $ — $ 3,641 $ 2,01¢ $ (329 $ 5,33t
COST OF SALE¢ (23 3,01t 1,63¢ (329 4,307
Gross margir 23 62€ 37¢ — 1,02¢
OPERATING EXPENSE!
Marketing and
administrative expenst 67 314 144 — 52t
Science and technology
expense: — 61 16 — 77
Other expense (88) 15 38 — (35
Total operating
expense: (21 39C 19€ — 567
EARNINGS BEFORE
INTEREST AND TAXES 44 23¢€ 181 — 461
Interest expense (income), | 10t 3 6 — 10¢
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE
TAXES (61) 23¢ 17k — 35:
Income tax expense (benel (23 77 20 — 74
EARNINGS BEFORE
EQUITY IN NET
EARNINGS (LOSS) OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATES (39) 162 15k — 27¢
Equity in net earnings of
subsidiaries 314 154 — (46¢) —
Equity in net earnings (loss) of
affiliates — 2 4 — 2
NET EARNINGS 27¢ 314 15¢ (46%) 281
Less: Net earnings attributable
noncontrolling interes — — 5 — 5
NET EARNINGS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWENS CORNING $ 27¢ $ 314 $ 154 $ (468 $ 27€




Table of Contents

-97-
OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(in millions)
Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations
NET SALES $ — $ 3,38¢ $ 1,95: $ (349
COST OF SALE¢ (19 2,81t 1,58¢ (349
Gross margir 19 573 364 —
OPERATING EXPENSE!
Marketing and
administrative expenst 43 332 141 —
Science and technology
expense: — 63 13 —
Charges related to cost
reduction action — 2 27 —
Other (income) expens (59 132 56 —
Total operating
expense: (16 52¢ 237 —
EARNINGS BEFORE
INTEREST AND TAXES 35 44 127 —
Interest expense (income), 1 11€ ) 1 —
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE
TAXES (81) 51 12¢ —
Income tax expense (benel (59 (837) 50 —
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE
EQUITY IN NET
EARNINGS (LOSS) OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATES (22 882 76 —
Equity in net earnings of
subsidiaries 95( 67 — (1,01%)
Equity in net earnings (loss) of
affiliates 5 1 (2 —

Less: Net earnings attributable
noncontrolling interes

NET EARNINGS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWENS CORNING $ 93¢ $ 95C $ 67 $ (1,019

NET EARNINGS 93¢ 95C 74 (2,017

Consolidatec
$ 4,997
4,041

95¢

51¢

76

29
12¢

75C

20¢€
11C

96
(840

93¢

94C



Table of Contents

-98-

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NET SALES
COST OF SALES
Gross margir
OPERATING EXPENSE:!
Marketing and
administrative expenst
Science and technology
expense:
Charges related to cost
reduction action
Employee emergence
equity program expen:
Other expens
Total operating
expense:
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE
INTEREST AND TAXES
Interest expense (income), |
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE
TAXES
Income tax expens
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE
EQUITY IN NET
EARNINGS (LOSS) OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATES
Equity in net earnings (loss) of
subsidiaries
Equity in net earnings (loss) of
affiliates
NETS EARNINGS (LOSS)
Less: Net earnings attributable
noncontrolling interes
NET EARNINGS (LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWENS CORNING

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS (LOSS)

Parent

$ —
(13
13

88

(140)
(51)

64
11z

(49

Guarantor
Subsidiaries
$ 3,38¢

2,76
621
29t

48
16

23
80

462

15¢
©)

164

16¢
(48)

©)
112

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries
$ 1,67
1,45¢

21&
13¢
13
17

6
71

24¢€

(39)

(39

(49)

(45)

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(in millions)

Eliminations
$ (257)
(257)

(64)

©)

Consolidatec
$ 4,80z
3,95¢

84¢

522

61

34

29
11

657

192
111

81
14

67

67
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables, ne
Due from affiliates
Inventories
Other current asse
Total current asse
Investment in subsidiarie
Due from affiliates
Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Intangible asset
Deferred income taxe
Other nol-current assel

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Due to affiliates
Shor-term debr
Long-term debt — current
portion
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current
portion
Due to affiliates
Pension plan liability
Other employee benefits liabili
Deferred income taxe
Other liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
OWENS CORNING
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY
Common stocl
Additional paid in capita
Accumulated earnings
(deficit)
Accumulated other
comprehensive defic
Cost of common stock in
treasury
Total Owens Corning
stockholder equity
Noncontrolling interes
Total equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

Parent

1,70¢

29¢

224

3,907

47¢
(315)

362

3,701

3,701

Guarantor

Subsidiaries

$ -
2,36¢
447
75

2,891

2,37¢
63
1,27¢
1,06¢
95¢
44¢
72

$ 9,15¢

28
997

247

182

6,357

765

7,12C

7,12(

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011
(in millions)

Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries

$ 52

73C

34¢
10z
1,23
53¢
997
1,242
352

19
10C

$ 4,551

$ 42z

1,19:
20

1,64

192
63
142
20
51
27

1,88¢

48¢

2,37¢
40
2,41¢

Eliminations

$ —
(120)
(2,89

(3,018
(9,499
(1,060)

(23¢)

$ (13,810

$ (120)
(2,899)

(3,019)

(1,060

(239)

(8,240

(1,249

(9,49¢)

(9,499

Consolidatec

$ 52
61C

79t

17¢
1,63¢

2,90«
1,14«
1,07
53¢
232

$ 7,52i

$ 87¢
28

90¢
1,93(
43¢
267
51
19t

3,907

47¢
(315)

362

3,701
40

3,741



EQUITY $7,632 $ 9,15¢ $ 4,551

$ (13810 $ 7,52
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010
(in millions)

Parent
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3
Receivables, ne 1
Due from affiliates 788
Inventories —
Assets held for sal- current —
Other current asse 1
Total current asse 793
Investment in subsidiarie 6,08¢
Due from affiliates —
Property, plant and equipment, | 462
Goodwill —
Intangible asset —
Deferred income taxe 73
Assets held for sal nor-current —
Other nor-current asset 71
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,487
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities $ 47
Due to affiliates 1,611
Shor-term debt —
Long-term debt current portior —
Liabilities held for sale current —
Total current liabilities 1,65¢
Long-term debt, net of current portic 1,56(
Due to affiliates —
Pension plan liability 265
Other employee benefits liabili —
Deferred income taxe —
Other liabilities 35€
Commitments and contingenci
OWENS CORNING STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY
Common stocl 1
Additional paid in capita 3,87¢
Retained earnings (accumulated def 194
Accumulated other comprehensive
deficit (194)
Cost of common stock in treast (229
Total Owens Corning
stockholder’ equity 3,64¢
Noncontrolling interes —
Total equity 3,64¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 7,487

Guarantor

Subsidiaries

22¢
1,934
36¢

83
2,61t
2,23(

1,14%
1,06¢
98(
434

79

$ 850

$ 407

288

691
924
271

13¢

6,08(
44¢

6,52¢

6,52¢

Y

Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries

1,89¢
33t

2,23(
38

2,26¢

$ 418

Eliminations

$ —
(3,007

@3 ,&J:)
(8,758
(964)

(378)

$ (13,10)

(7,979
(789

(8,759

gs;ss)
$ (13,10)

Consolidatec
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
(in millions)

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOW USEL
FOR INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Additions to plant and
equipmen:

Investment in
subsidiaries and
affiliates

Proceeds from the sale
of assets or affiliate

Net cash flow used for
investing activities

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from senior
revolving credit
facility

Payments on senior
revolving credit
facility

Proceeds from longgerm
debt

Payments on long-tern
debt

Net decrease in short-
term debr

Purchases of treasury
stock

Other

Other intercompany
loans

Net cash flow provided
by financing
activities

Effect of exchange rate
changes on cas

Net increase (decrease) in ¢
and cash equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents ¢
beginning of perioc

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT

Parent

$ (70

@)

1,543

(1,429

(13
8

72

74

3

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 23

(222)

(84)

(303)

67

67

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

(219

78

(13%)

164
(10)

18

(139)

33

Eliminations

Consolidatec

(442)

(84)

81

(449

1,543

(1,429
164
(10

26



END OF PERIOD

©“

52

52
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Additions to plant and
equipmen:

Proceeds from the sale
of assets or affiliate

Net cash flow provided
by (used for)
investing activities

NET CASH FLOW USEL
FOR FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from senior
revolving credit
facility

Payments on senior
revolving credit
facility

Proceeds from longerm
debt

Payments on long-term
debt

Investment in
subsidiaries and
affiliates

Net decrease in short-
term debr

Purchases of treasury
stock

Other

Parent loans and
advance:

Net cash flow used for
financing activities

Effect of exchange rate
changes on cas

Net increase (decrease) in ¢
and cash equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents ¢
beginning of periot

CASH AND CASH

Parent

$ (105)

45

45

631

(61¢)

(600)

(120)

231

(479

(53F)

53¢

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ a1

(139)

(139)

(231)
(231)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(in millions)

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

(a7%)

20

(155)

()

(30

(10)

(44)
@
23

26

Eliminations

Consolidatec

$ 48¢

(314)

65

(249

631

(61¢)

(609)

(30)
(10)

(120)

(750

(512)

564



EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF PERIOD

&

w

49

52
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(in millions)

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries

Eliminations

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Additions to plant and
equipmen:

Proceeds from the sale
of assets or affiliate

Net cash flow provided
by (used for)
investing activities

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from senior
revolving credit
facility

Payments on senior
revolving credit
facility

Proceeds from longgerm
debt

Payments on long-term
debt

Net decrease in short-
term debr

Purchases of
noncontrolling
interest

Purchase of treasury
stock

Parent loans and
advance:

Net cash flow provided
by (used for)
financing activities

Effect of exchange rate
changes on cas

Net increase (decrease) in ¢
and cash equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of perioc

$ (109

(4)

16C

(480

34¢

©)
462

48¢

(134)

(126)

(469)

(465)

(14)

14

(108)

30

(75)

10C

(106)

(13

(20

(3)

Consolidatec

$ 541

(249)

39

(209

26C

(58€)
35(
(19)

(20)

32¢

23€



CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF PERIOD

©

53¢ $ = $ 26 $ = $ 564
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Number Description Page
Il Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reser- for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ar@l 10t
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2(®

(in millions)
Balance a
Charged tc Charged tc Acquisitions
Beginning Balance
Costs and Other and at End
of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Divestitures of Period
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 201:
Allowance for
doubtful account $ 19 $ 3 $ — $ (M)(a) $ — $ 15
Tax valuation
allowance $ 174 $ 7 $ — $ 6 $ — $ 187
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 201!
Allowance for
doubtful account $ 23 $ 1 $ — $ 4)(a) $ (@) $ 19
Tax valuation
allowance $ 1,11C $ (90€) $ (32 $ — $ — $ 174
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 200!
Allowance for
doubtful account $ 21 $ 4 $ — $ 2)(a) $ — $ 23
Tax valuation
allowance $ 1,11C $ (16) $ 18 $ — $ — $ 1,112

(@) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoes:
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3.2

4.1

4.4

4.€
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatincofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Owensrihg’s Current

Report on Form-K (File No. 1-33100), filed November 2, 200¢

Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reteréo Exhibit 3.2 of Owens Corning’s Current Reémor Form 8-K
(File No. 1-33100), filed November 2, 200¢

Indenture, dated as of October 31, 2006, by anchgr@wens Corning, each of the guarantors namedithand LaSalle
Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorpatdte reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Owens Corns@urrent Report on For
8-K (File No. 1-33100), filed November 2, 200¢

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of AprilZ()7, by and among Owens Corning, each of theagtians named
therein and LaSalle Bank National Associationrastée (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. Oteens Corning’s
Current Report on Formr-K (File No. 1-33100), filed April 13, 2007,

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Deceh2h@007, by and among Owens Corning, each oftlagantors
named therein and LaSalle Bank National Associatgrtrustee (incorporated by reference to ExHilSito Owens
Cornin¢’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April2208, by and among Owens Corning, each of theagitans named
therein and LaSalle Bank National Associationrastée (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. Oteens Corning’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. -33100) for the quarter ended June 30, 20

Series A Warrant Agreement, dated as of Octobe2@06, between Owens Corning and American Stocksfea & Trust
Company, as Warrant Agent (incorporated by refex¢adExhibit 10.3 to Owens Corning’s Post-Effectd@endment No.
1 to Form -1 Registration Statement (File No. :-136363), filed December 8, 200

Series B Warrant Agreement, dated as of Octobe2@16, between Owens Corning and American StocksFea & Trust
Company, as Warrant Agent (incorporated by refer¢adExhibit 10.4 to Owens Corning’s Post-Effect@endment No.
1 to Form -1 Registration Statement (File No. :-136363), filed December 8, 200

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of JuB0DG, and the First Amendment thereto, dated &ctdber 27, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Ow@uwsning’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Form Registration
Statement (File No. 3:-136363), filed December 8, 2001

Indenture, dated as of June 2, 2009, between O@ersng, certain of Owens Corning’s subsidiaried ®ells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorpatdte reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Owens Corning’gR#&ation Statement
on Form &3 (File No. 33-159689), filed June 3, 200¢

Supplemental Indenture, dated June 8, 2009, bet@agems Corning, the guarantors named therein arits\Wargo Bank,
National Association, as trustee (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 4.1 to Owens Corr’s Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 1-33100), filed June 8, 200¢

Form of 9.000% Senior Notes due 2019 (incorporbterkference to Exhibit 4.2 to Owens Corning’s @atrReport on
Form ¢-K (File No. 1-33100), filed June 8, 200¢
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10.1
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10.4

10.t

10.€

10.7

10.¢

10.2(

10.11

10.12
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10.1¢
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Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May@®0, by and among Owens Corning, certain subgdiaand Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as successor Trustem(porated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Owenm®g’s Current Report
on Form &K (File No. 1-33100), filed May 28, 2010

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Mag@H), by and among Owens Corning, certain subgigdiaand Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorpatdg reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Owens Corning'sré€at Report on Form 8-
K (File No. 1-33100), filed May 28, 2010

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 26, 2010, byaandng Owens Corning, certain of its subsidiaries Jénders signatory
thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National AssociatamAdministrative Agent (incorporated by referetw&xhibit 10.1 to
Owens Cornin’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 1-33100), filed May 28, 2010

First amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as atMa4, 2011 (filed herewith

Second amendment to Credit Agreement, dated ady?®d, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhilfitl to Owens
Cornin¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 1-33100), Filed July 29, 2011

Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreeatedtas of December 16, 2011 (incorporated leyerte to Exhibit
10.1 to Owens Cornir's Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 1-33100), filed December 19, 201

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of March031, Between Owens Corning Sales, LLC and Owensi@pfReceivables
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 tavéhs Corning’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Ne83100), filed April
5, 2011).

Performance Guaranty dated as of March 31, 20tbr(orated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Owenm®g'’s Current
Report on Form-K (File No. 1-33100), filed April 5, 2011)

Key Management Severance Agreement with Charl&aBa (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18%eens Corning’s
annual report on Form -K (File No. 1-33100) for the year ended December 31, 20(

Agreement with Charles E. Dana (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10 to Owens Corning Sales, LLAsual Report on
Form 1(-K (File No. 1-3660) for the year ended December 31, 20C

Key Management Severance Agreement with Duncand®dincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 tee@s Corning’s
Annual Report on Form -K (File No. 1-33100) for the year ended December 31, 20(

Offer Letter from Owens Corning to Duncan Palmated as of August 15, 2007 (incorporated by refer¢a Exhibit 10.3 to
Owens Cornin’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. --33100) for the quarter ended September 30, 20!

Amended and restated Key Management Severance rhgrgavith Michael H. Thaman (incorporated by refieeto Exhibit
10 to Owens Corning Sales, L’s Annual Report on Form -K (File No. 1-3660) for the year ended December 31, 20C

Form of Directors’ Indemnification Agreement (inporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Owens Guagis Current Report
on Form &K (File No. 1-33100), filed November 2, 200¢

Owens Corning Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorpaddig reference to Exhibit 10 to Owens Corning Sadle€’s Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q (File No. -3660) for the quarter ended June 30, 20C

Owens Corning Executive Supplemental Benefit 2809 Restatement (incorporated by reference tolfitxt).28 to Owens
Corninc’'s annual report on Form -K (File No. 1-33100) for the year ended December 31, 20(
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10.1¢ Corporate Incentive Plan Terms Applicable to Cartaxecutive Officers (incorporated by referenc&xhibit 10 to Owens
Corning Sales, LL"s Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. -3660) for the quarter ended March 31, 199
10.1¢€ Owens Corning Supplemental Executive Retirement,Rla amended and restated, effective as of Jaduan09

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Ogv@wrning’s annual report on Form 10-K (File Na&33%00) for the year
ended December 31, 2008

10.15 Corporate Incentive Plan Terms Applicable to Keydiogees Other Than Certain Executive Officers (ipooated by
reference to Exhibit 10 to Owens Corning Sales, sL@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1-366d))the quarter
ended June 30, 1999

10.1¢ Owens Corning Deferred Compensation Plan, effeetssef January 1, 2007 (incorporated by referem&exhibit 10.5 to
Owens Cornin’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. -33100) for the quarter ended March 31, 200
10.1¢ First Amendment to the Owens Corning Deferred Carepson Plan, effective as of January 1, 2009 (poa@ted by
reference to Exhibit 10.33 to Owens Corning’s ahnejort on Form 10-K (File No. 1-33100) for theayended December
31, 2008).*
10.21 Owens Corning 2010 Stock Plan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.1 to Owens Corning’s Currenp&éeon Form 8-K
(File No. 1-33100), filed April 23, 2010).
10.22 Key Management Severance Agreement with David hnsdincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20@teens Corning’s
annual report on Form -K (File No. 1-33100) for the year ended December 31, 20(
14.1 Ethics Policy for Chief Executive and Senior FinahOfficers (filed herewith)
21.1 Subsidiaries of Owens Corning (filed herewit
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (filed hatgw
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantExchange Act Rules 1-14(a) and 15-14(a) (filed herewith)
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot Exchange Act Rules 1-14(a) and 15-14(a) (filed herewith)
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (filed herewit
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (filed herewit
101.INS XBRL Taxonomy Extension Scher
101.SCt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Scher
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba
101.PRI XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb.

* Denotes management contract or compensatory plamamgement required to be filed as an exhibispamt to Form 1-K.
Owens Corning agrees to furnish to the SecuritiesExchange Commission, upon request, copies afsitluments defining the rights of
holders of long-term debt of Owens Corning whegettital amount of securities authorized under ésatre does not exceed ten percent of
the total assets of Owens Corning and its subsdiam a consolidated basis.



Exhibit 10.2
FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT
This FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Amm@ment”) is dated as of March 24, 2011 and is liyamong
(i) OWENS CORNING, a Delaware corporation (the “UB®rrower”);
(ii) the Lenders party to the Credit Agreement refieed below signatory hereto; and
(i) WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Adninistrative Agent (in such capacity, the “Adminatve Agent”).

Unless otherwise indicated, all capitalized termesdiherein and not otherwise defined shall havea$gective meanings provided such
terms in the Credit Agreement referred to below.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the U.S. Borrower, the Lenders, the Adstmaitive Agent and certain other parties are pattehe Credit Agreement dai
as of May 26, 2010 (as amended, supplemented aotiervise modified from time to time through, Ioet including, the date hereof, the
“Credit Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have agreed to amen@ihdit Agreement on the terms and condition$ostt herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premisdédath above, the terms and conditions containe@in, and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficieoicyhich are hereby acknowledged, the partiesthdrave agreed to the following
amendment to the Credit Agreement.

1. Amendments to Credit Agreemer{t) The definition of “Wholly-Owned Domestic Sidliary” set forth in Section 1.1 of the Credit
Agreement is hereby amended and restated in it®gnto read as follows:

“ Wholly-Owned Domestic Subsidiatyshall mean, as to any Person, any Wholly-Ownels&liary of such Person which is a
Domestic Subsidiary. Notwithstanding the foregoimg,SPV that is a party to an Asset Securitizatiermitted hereunder shall be
deemed to constitute a “Wholly-Owned Domestic Sdibsy” for purposes of (i) the definitions of “Imnaial Subsidiary” and
“Material Subsidiary” set forth herein and (ii) Gien 7.12hereof.

(b) A new Section 3.8 is added at the conclusioArtitle Il of the Credit Agreement reading asléols:

SECTION 3.8. Change in Letter of Credit Statidotwithstanding anything herein to the contraysuch time as the
Administrative Agent shall have received documeéataefrom the U.S. Borrower and the applicable Isguiender evidencing their
agreement that the Letters of Credit identifiedSahedule 3.8the “ Designated Letters of Credfjtshall cease to be governed by this
Agreement but shall instead be governed by otheremgents between such Issuing Lender and the Wr&owBer and/or Affiliates
thereof, (a) the Designated Letters of Credit stdise to be “Letters of Crediiereunder, (b) all participations in the Designdtetters
of Credit which have heretofore been granted puntsigethis Article 111 shall terminate and be of fusther force or effect, (c) letter of
credit commissions and fees pursuant to Sectiost®aB cease to accrue with respect to the Desigrniatiers of Credit and (d) the U.S.
Borrower shall cease to have any Reimbursemeng@tioins in respect of such Letters of Credit uridisr Agreement;_provided
however, that (i) such change in status of the Designh&tters of Credit shall not release the U.S. Boepfom the obligation to pay
Letter of Credit commissions or fees hereunderuigrprior to such date or release, reduce or wafiserimpair (A) any expense
reimbursement or indemnification obligations of thé. Borrower under Section 11.3¢a)(b) hereof or (B) subject to clauses (c) and
(d) above, any other rights t




Lenders, Issuing Lender or Administrative Agent rhaye hereunder, in either case in respect of kattbrs of Credit or the
transactions contemplated thereby and (ii) suchghan status shall not occur unless at the tingl siocumentation is received by the
Administrative Agent no drawing under any Desigddtetter of Credit shall have occurred.

(c) The first sentence of Section 7.13 of the Grddreement is amended in its entirety to reacbfews:

Each Borrower will, and the U.S. Borrower will causach of its Material Subsidiaries and each SP¥atisfy in all material
respects customary Company formalities, includivgholding of regular board of directors’ and shatders’ meetings or action by
directors or shareholders without a meeting andrthmtenance of Company records.

(d) A new Schedule 3.8 is added to the Credit Agezdt in the form of Schedule 3.8 hereto.

2. Representations and Warranti@$e U.S. Borrower hereby represents and warthats

(a) The representations and warranties containddticle VI of the Credit Agreement are true and correct imeterial respects
on and as of the date hereof with the same effeiftraade on and as of such date, except for gmmgsentation and warranty made a
an earlier date, which representation and warrartyie and correct in all material respects asuch earlier date; providedhat this
clause (a) shall not apply to the representatiosvearranties contained in Section 6.5tE)he Credit Agreement.

(b) No Default or Event of Default has occurred @&dontinuing as of the date hereof.

3. Effectiveness This Amendment is a Loan Document and shall beceffective upon (a) the execution and deliveryebgby the
U.S. Borrower, the Issuing Lender of the Letter€oddit referred to above, the Administrative Agantl the Required Lenders and (b) the
execution and delivery by the Guarantors of anrAféition of Guaranty Agreements in the form of Extdbhereto.

4. ReferencesUpon the effectiveness hereof, each referenteet@€redit Agreement in the Credit Agreement or attner Loan
Document shall mean and be a reference to the tGkgdtement as modified hereby.

5. No Waiver. The execution, delivery and effectiveness of Anisendment shall not, except as expressly provitedin, operate as a
waiver of any right, power or remedy of the Agentle Lenders, nor constitute a waiver of or cohseany provision of the Credit
Agreement or any other Loan Documents executecbadeélivered in connection therewith.

6. Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in any numbeowohterparts (and by the different parties hereteeparate
counterparts), each of which shall constitute agimal, but all of which when taken together shalhstitute a single contract. Delivery of an
executed signature page of this Amendment by falesion electronic transmission shall be effectigedalivery of a manually executed
counterpart hereof.

7. Governing Law THIS AMENDMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF TH E PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL
BE GOVERNED BY, CONSTRUED AND ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
(INCLUDING SECTION 5-1401 AND SECTION 5-1402 OF THE GENERAL OBLIGATIONS LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW
YORK), WITHOUT REFERENCE TO THE CONFLICTS OR CHOICE OF LAW PRINCIPLES THEREOF.

8. Headings Section headings in this Amendment are includ=eih for convenience of reference only and shatllconstitute a part of
this Amendment for any other purpose.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisedd duly authorized signatories to execute ariyeiethis Amendment as of
the date first above written.

OWENS CORNING
By: /s/ Michael C. McMurray

Name: Michael C. McMurra
Title: Vice President Finance and Treast

By: /s/ Jonathan Lyor
Name: Jonathan Lyor
Title: Assistant Treasurt

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Administrative Agent, as a Lender and as Issuing
Lender

By: /s/ Glenn F. Edward
Name: Glenn F. Edwarc
Title: Managing Directo

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.

By: /s/ Michael J. Balol

Name: Michael J. Balo
Title: Managing Directo

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

By: /s/ Michelle C. Phillips

Name: Michelle C. Phillip:
Title: Director

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A

By: /s/ Peter S. Predt

Name: Peter S. Predi
Title: Executive Directo

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



MORGAN STANLEY BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Dmitriy Barskiy

Name: Dmitriy Barskiy
Title: Authorized Signator

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By: /s/ Navneet Khann

Name: Navneet Khanr
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



DEUTSCHE BANK AG, NEW YORK BRANCH, as a
Lender

By: /s/ Frederick W. Lair
Name: Frederick W. Lair
Title: Managing Directo

By: /s/ Edward D. Herki
Name: Edward D. Herk
Title: Director

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND
INVESTMENT BANK

By: /s/ David Cagle

Name: David Cagl
Title: Managing Directo

By: /s/ Brian Myers

Name: Brian Myer:
Title: Managing Directo

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA

By: /s/ Lauren Day

Name: Lauren Da
Title: Authorized Signator

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



Citibank N.A.

By: /s/ Timicka C. Anderso

Name: Timicka C. Andersc
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



FIFTH THIRD BANK, an Ohio banking corporatic

By: /s/ Brian Jelinsk

Name: Brian Jelinsk
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



[LENDER]
BNP Pariba

By: /s/ Berangere Alle

Name: Berangere Alle
Title: Director

[LENDER]
BNP Paribas

By: /s/ Melissa Balley

Name: Melissa Balle
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



HSBC BANK U.S.A,, N.A.

By: /s/ Gregory R. Duve

Name: Gregory R. Duvi
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Lende

By: /s/ Richard C. Hampsc

Name: Richard C. Hampst
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Paul F. Noe

Name: Paul F. Nog
Title: Managing Directo

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



BANK OF CHINA, NEW YORK BRANCH

By: /s/ Richard Bradspie

Name: Richard Bradspi¢
Title: Deputy General Manag

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreeme



L/CNo.
SM237537

SM237612

SM237596

SM237601

SM237604

SM237605

SM237609

SM237614

SM237616

SM237597

SM237598

SM237599

SM237602

SM237618

SM237743

Issuing Bank

Wells Fargo Bank,
National Associatiol

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Assaociation

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Wells Fargo Bank; National
Association

Owens Corning Credit Agreement

Schedule 3.8

Beneficiary
State of California Self Insurance Plz
Ohio Fire Marshal
Old Republic Insurance Compa

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryla

State of New York Workers’ Compensation
Board

State of New York Workers’ Compensation
Board

Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensatiol

Noranda Aluminun
State of South Carolir

ACE American Insurance Compa

National Union Fire Insurance Co.
Pittsburgt

National Union Fire Insurance Co.
Pittsburgt

Georgia Self-Insurers
Guaranty Trust Fun

Syar Industrie:

SB(Tuaslinc) Investment PTE LT

Currency/Amour
$ 1,173,958.0
$ 55,000.01
$ 10,000,000.0
$ 2,500,000.0
$ 30,000.01
$ 2,808,170.0
$ 2,680,000.0
$ 175,000.0
$ 2,900,000.0
$ 15,519,296.0
$ 2,500,000.0
$ 3,590,776.0
$ 7,500,000.0
$ 2,372,065.9
$ 1,971,465.0

SCHEDULE 3.t

Expiration Date
7/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011
8/1/2011

8/1/2011



EXHIBIT A
AFFIRMATION OF GUARANTY AGREEMENTS

Each of the undersigned acknowledges receipt opg of that certain First Amendment to Credit Agneait dated as of March  , 2(
(the “ Amendment) relating to the Credit Agreement dated as ofdh&e hereof (the “ Credit Agreeméitreferred to therein, consents to
Amendment and each of the transactions refereinggdih, hereby reaffirms its obligations underth8. Borrower’'s Guaranty ( in the case
of the U.S. Borrower) and the Subsidiary Guaraintyt{e case of all other signers hereof) and agtedsall references in the Guaranty
Agreements to the “Credit Agreement” shall mean laaa reference to the Credit Agreement as ameogldte Amendment. Capitalized
terms used herein, but not otherwise defined hesbiall have the meanings ascribed to such terieiCredit Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Guarantor has causediffiisnation of Guaranty Agreements to be executed delivered as of the
date hereof.

Dated as of March , 2011.
OWENS CORNING

By:

Name
Title:

[additional signature pages follow]

Signature Page to
Affirmation of Guaranty Agreemen



CDC CORPORATION

ENGINEERED PIPE SYSTEMS, INC.

ERIC COMPANY

FALCON FOAM CORPORATION

INTEGREX VENTURES LLC

IPM INC.

JEFFERSON HOLDINGS, INC.

MODULO USA LLC

OCCVI, INC.

OCCVZ, LLC

OCV INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL, LLC

OWENS CORNING COMPOSITE MATERIALS, LLC
OWENS CORNING CONSTRUCTION SERVICES,
LLC

OWENS CORNING FOAM INSULATION, LLC
OWENS CORNING FRANCHISING, LLC

OWENS CORNING HOMEXPERTS, INC.

OWENS CORNING HT, INC.

OWENS CORNING INSULATING SYSTEMS, LLC
OWENS CORNING INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL, LLC
OWENS CORNING ROOFING AND ASPHALT, LLC
OWENS CORNING SALES, LLC

OWENS CORNING SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY,
LLC

OWENS CORNING U.S. HOLDINGS, LLC
OWENS-CORNING FUNDING CORPORATION
OWENS-CORNING OVERSEAS HOLDINGS, INC.
PALMETTO PRODUCTS, INC.

SOLTECH, INC.

By:

Name:
Title: Authorized Officer for each of the above
Guarantor

Signature Page to
Affirmation of Guaranty Agreemen



OC CANADA HOLDINGS GENERAL
PARTNERSHIF
By OC Canada Holdings Compa

By:

Name:
Title: Authorized Officet

Signature Page to
First Amendment to Credit Agreement



Exhibit 14.1

ETHICS POLICY
FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND SENIOR FINANCIAL OFFICERS

The Company is committed to conducting its busimesgcordance with applicable laws, rules and leggns and standards of business
conduct, and to full and accurate financial disetesn compliance with applicable law. This Poliepplicable to the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer, aBdrporate Controller (together, “Senior Officerssgts forth specific policies to guide you
in the performance of your duties.

As a Senior Officer, you must not only comply wépplicable law. You also must engage in and prorhoteest and ethical conduct.
Compliance With Laws, Rules And Regulations

You are required to comply with the laws, rules aggllations that govern the conduct of our busraesl to report any suspected violations
to Legal or Corporate Audit Services or to any mentdf the Business Conduct Council. The Company migintains a confidential reportil
system, the Business Council Helpline, at 1-800-2@89 or, for calls outside the United States, 288-4741.

Conflicts Of Interest

No Senior Officer shall make any investment, aceaptposition or benefits, participate in any teat®n or business arrangement
otherwise act in a manner, that creates or appe&reate a conflict of interest unless the Se@ificer makes full disclosure of the facts and
circumstances to, and obtains the prior writterraygl of, the Governance and Nominating Committein® Board of Directors.

Disclosures

It is Company policy to make full, fair, accuratieyely and understandable disclosure, in compliamitie all applicable laws and regulations,
in all reports and documents that the Company ¥iliés, or submits or furnishes to, the Securitiad &xchange Commission and in all other
public communications made by the Company.

Compliance With Ethics Policy

If you know of or suspect a violation of this Pgligou must immediately report that informatioratoy member of the Governance and
Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors. Meill not be subject to retaliation because of adjaith report of a suspected violatit

Violations of this Policy may result in disciplinaaction, up to and including discharge. The Gosaoe and Nominating Committee of the
Board of Directors shall determine, or shall deatgrappropriate persons to determine, approprai®nan response to violations of this
Policy.

Waivers Of Ethics Policy

If you would like to seek a waiver of this Poligggu must make full disclosure of your particulaxcamstances to the Governance and
Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors. Ardments to and waivers of this Policy will be palylidisclosed as required |
applicable law and regulations.

No Rights Created

This Ethics Policy is a statement of certain fundatal principles, policies and procedures that gotlee Company’s Senior Officers in the
conduct of the Company’s business. It is not inézhh and does not create any rights in any emplayestomer/client, supplier, competitor,
shareholder or any other person or entity.



Subsidiaries of Owens Corning (12/31/11)

CDC Corporatior
Crown Mfg. Inc.

Dutch OC Cooperatief Invest U.,
Engineered Pipe Systems, |

EPS Holding AS
Eric Company

European Owens Corning Fiberglas SF

FiberTEK Insulation, LLC

FiberTEK Insulation West, LL(

Instalaciones Especializadas en Confort TermoamugtAmpliacion, S.
de R.L. de C.V

IP Owens Corning I, S. de R.L.de C

IPM Inc.
Modulo SAS

Norske EPS BOT A!

OC Belgium Invest SPR

OC Canada Finance In

OC Canada Holdings Compa

OC Canada Holdings General Partner:
OC Celfortec Compan

OC NL Invest Cooperatief U./

OC PRO CV
OCCV1, Inc.
OCCV2, LLC

OCV (Thailand) Company Limite
OCV Chambéry Franc

OCV Chambéry Internation
OCV Composites (China) Co., Lt

OCV Czech Sr¢

OCV Distribution ANZ Pt-Limited
OCV Fabrics (Changzhou) Co., LI
OCV Fabrics UK Ltd

OCV Finance, LLC

OCV Holdings Belgium Spi

OCV Intellectual Capital, LLC

OCV ltalia Srl

OCV Mexico S. de R.L. de C.\

OCV Reinforcements (Beijing) Co., Lt

OCV Reinforcements (Hangzhou) Co., L
OCV Reinforcements Alcala Spain, S

OCV Reinforcements Manufacturing Private L

OCV Revetex Sr

OCV Servicios Mexico, S.A. de C.\

OCYV Steklovolokno OAC

Owens Corning (China) Investment Company, |
Owens Corning (Guangzhou) Fiberglas Co.,
Owens Corning (Japan) Co., L

State or Other
Jurisdiction
Under the Laws of

Which Organized

Wisconsin
Ontario

The Netherland
Delaware
Norway
Delaware
Belgium

Florida

Utah

Mexico

Mexico
Delaware
France
Norway
Belgium
Canade

Nova Scotie
Delaware
Nova Scotic
The Netherland
The Netherland
Delaware
Delaware
Thailand
France

France

China

Czech Republi
Australia
China

United Kingdom
Delaware
Belgium
Delaware

Italy

Mexico

China

China

Spain

India

Italy

Mexico

Russia

China

China

Japar

Exhibit 21.1



Owens Corning (Jiangyin) Building Materials Co.¢L
Owens Corning (Nanjing) Building Materials Co., L
Owens Corning (Shanghai) Fiberglas Co., |

Owens Corning (Shanghai) Trading Co., L

Owens Corning (Singapore) Pte |

Owens Corning (Tianjin) Building Materials Co., L
Owen: Corning (X’an) Building Materials Co., Ltc
Owens Corning Alloy Canada GP Ir

Owens Corning Alloy Canada L

Owens Corning Argentina Sociedad de Responsabilittadada

Owens Corning (Australia) Pty Limite

Owens Corning Automotive (UK) Lt

Owens Corning BM (Korea), Lt
Owen:-Corning Britinvest Limitec

Owens Corning Building Materials Romania S
Owens Corning Canada GP i

Owens Corning Canada Holdings B

Owens Corning Canada |

Owens Corning Cayman (China) Holdir
Owen:-Corning Cayman Limite:

Owens Corning Celfortec Canada GP |
Owens Corning Celfortec L

Owens Corning Composite Materials, LI
Owens Corning Composite Materials Canada GP
Owens Corning Composite Materials Canade
Owens Corning Construction Services, L
Owens Corning Elaminator Insulation Systems, L
Owens Corning Enterprise (India) Pvt. L
Owens Corning Fabwel, LL

Owens Corning Fiberglas A.S. Limita

Owens Corning Fiberglas S.R.

Owen:-Corning Fiberglas Deutschland Gm!
Owens Corning Fiberglas Espana,

Owens Corning Fiberglas Fran
Owen:-Corning Fiberglas (G.B.) Ltc
Owen:-Corning Fiberglas (U.K.) Pension Plan L
Owens Corning Financial Services Ul

Owens Corning Foam Insulation, LL

Owens Corning Franchising, LL
Owen:-Corning Funding Corporatic

Owens Corning Holdings 1 C

Owens Corning Holdings 3 C

Owens Corning Holdings 4 C

Owens Corning Holdings 5 C

Owens Corning Holdings Holland B.'

Owens Corning HOMExperts, In

Owens Corning Hong Kong Limite

Owens Corning HT, Inc

Owen:-Corning (India) Private Limite:

Owens Corning Insulating Systems, LI

Owens Corning Insulating Systems Canada GF
Owens Corning Insulating Systems Canadz
Owens Corning Intellectual Capital, LL

China

China

China

China
Singapore
China

China

Canads
Manitoba
Argentina
Australia
United Kingdom
Korea

United Kingdom
Romaniza
Canade

The Netherland
Manitoba
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Canade
Manitoba
Delaware

Nova Scotic
Manitoba
Delaware
Delaware

India

Delaware
Brazil

Uruguay
Germany

Spain

France

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Nova Scotic
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

The Netherland
The Netherland
The Netherland
The Netherland
The Netherland
Delaware

Hong Kong
Delaware

India

Delaware
Canads
Manitoba
Delaware



Owens Corning International Holdings C.
Owens Corning Kore

Owens Corning Living Solutions, In

Owens Corning Manufacturing Limite
Owens Corning Mexico, S. de R.L. de C
Owens Corning Receivables LL

Owens Corning Remodeling Canada GP
Owens Corning Remodeling Canada
Owens Corning Remodeling Systems, L
Owens Corning Roofing and Asphalt, L1
Owens Corning Sales, LL

Owens Corning Science and Technology, L
Owens Corning Sunrooms Franchising, L
Owen:-Corning Sweden At

Owens Corning U.S. Holdings, LL
Owen:-Corning Veil Netherlands B.\
Owen:-Corning Veil U.K. Ltd.

Soltech, Inc

Tecnologia Owens Corning I, S. de R.L. de C

The Netherland
Korea
Delaware
Japar

Mexico
Delaware
Canads
Manitoba
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Sweder
Delaware

The Netherland
United Kingdom
Kentucky
Mexico



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Forms S-3 aBdMes. 333-165008, 333-166347, 333-
159689, 333-149476, 333-150770, 333-150771, 333-25@nd 333-138392) of Owens Corning of our regdatéd February 15, 2012

relating to the financial statements, financiatesteent schedule and the effectiveness of inteimakal over financial reporting, which
appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Toledo, Ohio
February 15, 2012



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Michael H. Thaman, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Owens Corning

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or dongttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahaaorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgdeng the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 15, 2012

/s/ Michael H. Thama

Michael H. Thamai
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

[, Duncan J. Palmer, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Owens Corning

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or dongttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahaaorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgdeng the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 15, 2012

/s/ Duncan J. Palmi

Duncan J. Palme
Chief Financial Officel



Exhibit 32.1
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of Owens Cognithe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal yesded December 31, 2011 (the
“Report”), I, Michael H. Thaman, certify, pursuantl8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantttidh 906 of the Sarban€<ley Act of
2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) Information contained in the Report fairly peass, in all material respects, the financial cbodiand results of operations of the
Company

/s/ Michael H. Thama
Michael H. Thamai
Chief Executive Office

February 15, 2012



Exhibit 32.2
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of Owens Cognithe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal yesded December 31, 2011 (the

“Report”), I, Duncan J. Palmer, certify, pursuantiB U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) Information contained in the Report fairly peass, in all material respects, the financial cbodiand results of operations of the
Company

/s/ Duncan J. Palmi
Duncan J. Palme
Chief Financial Officel

February 15, 201



